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1 CALL TO ORDER ROLL CALL

2 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3 AGENDA Request for Deletions Emergency Additions

4 SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

5 CONSENT AGENDA Matters included under the Consent Agenda are self explanatory and are not expected
to require discussion or review Items will be enacted by one motion If discussion is desired by any member of the
Commission that item must be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately If the public wishes to speak on
a matter on the consent agenda they must inform the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting They will be recognized to
speak prior to the approval of the consent agenda

A APPROVAL OF MINUTES

February 4 2014 Commission Meeting

B A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF AVENTURA FLORIDA DECLARING CERTAIN

PROPERTY LISTED UNDER THE ASSETS OF THE CITY AS
SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE CITY DESCRIBING THE
MANNER OF DISPOSAL AUTHORIZING THE CITY

MANAGER TO DO ALL THINGS NECESSARY TO CARRY

OUT THE AIMS OF THIS RESOLUTION AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

C A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF AVENTURA FLORIDA DEDICATING A TWELVE 12

FOOT LONG BY THREE 3 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT TO

MIAMI DADE COUNTY FOR THE AVENTURA PARKING
EXPANSION PROJECT PROVIDING FOR RECORDATION

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO DO ALL THINGS

NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE AIMS OF THIS

RESOLUTION AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

D A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY



MARCH 4 2014

OF AVENTURA FLORIDA AWARDING AND LETTING A
BID CONTRACT FOR BID NO 14 02 18 02 COUNTRY CLUB
DRIVE MILLING AND RESURFACING OUTSIDE HALF OF
RIGHT OF WAY TO GENERAL ASPHALT COMPANY INC
AT THE BID PRICE OF 569 546 AUTHORIZING THE CITY
MANAGER TO EXECUTE ASSOCIATED CONTRACTS

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE NECESSARY
AND EXPEDIENT ACTION TO CARRY OUT THE AIMS OF
THIS RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROPRIATION
AND ALLOCATION OF FUNDS FOR SAID BID AWARD AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

E A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF AVENTURA FLORIDA APPROVING THE APPOINTMENT
OF A MEMBER TO THE CITY OF AVENTURA ARTS AND
CULTURAL CENTER ADVISORY BOARD TO FILL A

VACANCY AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

F MOTION TO ACCEPT FOR FILING OF THE

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT CAFR

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2013 AND
THE LETTER DATED FEBRUARY 12 2014 ATTACHED

HERETO AS ATTACHMENT A

G A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF AVENTURA FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE CITY

MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND OTHERWISE ENTER INTO

THAT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF AVENTURA

AND THE UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA BOARD OF

TRUSTEES FOR THE UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA S
CENTER FOR URBAN TRANSPORTATION RESEARCH

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO DO ALL THINGS
NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE AIMS OF THIS

RESOLUTION AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

6 ZONING HEARINGS QUASI JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS Please be

advised that the following items on the Commission s agenda are quasi judicial in nature If you wish to object or comment upon
any of these items please inform the Mayor when she requests public comments An opportunity for persons to speak on each item
will be made available after the applicant and staff have made their presentations on each item All testimony including public
testimony and evidence will be made under oath or affirmation Additionally each person who gives testimony may be subject to
cross examination If you refuse either to be cross examined or to be sworn your testimony will be given its due weight The
general public will not be permitted to cross examine witnesses but the public may request the Commission to ask questions of
staff or witnesses on their behalf Persons representing organizations must present evidence of their authority to speak for the
organization Further details of the quasi judicial procedures may be obtained from the Clerk

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF

AVENTURA FLORIDA APPROVING SIGN VARIANCE FOR POLLO
TROPICAL RESTAURANT ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 20403

0



MARCH 4 2014

BISCAYNE BOULEVARD CITY OF AVENTURA PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

7 ORDINANCES FIRST READING PUBLIC INPUT

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
AVENTURA FLORIDA AMENDING ORDINANCE NO 2013 04

WHICH ORDINANCE ADOPTED A BUDGET FOR THE 2013 2014
FISCAL YEAR BY REVISING THE 2013 2014 FISCAL YEAR

OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET AS OUTLINED IN EXHIBIT
A ATTACHED HERETO AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER

TO DO ALL THINGS NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE AIMS OF
THIS ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

8 ORDINANCES SECOND READING PUBLIC HEARING

A AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

AMENDING SECTION 31 144 BUSINESS ZONING

DISTRICTS OF THE CITY S LAND DEVELOPMENT

REGULATIONS BY AMENDING SECTION 31 144 C 5 A

COMMUNITY BUSINESS 112 DISTRICT TO ALLOW

INCREASED LOT COVERAGE FOR SHOPPING CENTERS

WITH MORE THAN 1 000 000 SQUARE FEET OF GROSS

LEASABLE AREA WITH HEIGHT NOT GREATER THAN

FIVE STORIES AND THAT PROVIDE A CENTRALIZED

MULTI MODAL TRANSPORTATION FACILITY WHICH IS

ENCLOSED WITHIN A PARKING STRUCTURE AND WHICH

MAY BE USED BY CITY TRANSIT PROVIDERS COUNTY

TRANSIT PROVIDERS ANY OTHER GOVERNMENT

ENTITIES REQUESTING USE OF THE FACILITY AND

PRIVATE TRANSIT PROVIDERS PROVIDING FOR

SEVERABILITY PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE

CODE PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

B AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

AMENDING CHAPTER 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS OF THE

CITY CODE OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA BY CREATING

SECTION 1 17 RETAIL SALE OF DOGS AND CATS

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY PROVIDING FOR

INCLUSION IN THE CODE PROVIDING FOR PENALTY

PROVIDING FOR EFFECTIVE DATE

9 RESOLUTIONS PUBLIC HEARING None

10 REPORTS
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11 PUBLIC COMMENTS

12 OTHER BUSINESS None

13 ADJOURNMENT

FUTURE MEETINGS

MARCH 4 2014

COMMISSION WORKSHOP MARCH 17 2014 9 AM EXEC CONFERENCE RM

COMMISSION MEETING APRIL 1 2014 6 PM COMMISSION CHAMBER

This meeting is open to the public In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 all persons who are disabled and
who need special accommodations to participate in this meeting because of that disability should contact the Office of the City Clerk
305 466 8901 not later than two days prior to such proceeding One or more members of the City of Aventura Advisory Boards may
be in attendance and may participate at the meeting Anyone wishing to appeal any decision made by the Aventura City Commission
with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose may
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the
appeal is to be based Agenda items may be viewed at the Office of the City Clerk City of Aventura Government Center 19200 W
Country Club Drive Aventura Florida 33180 Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of any agenda item should contact the City Clerk at
305 466 8901
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The Citof
Aieii4a

MINUTES

CITY COMMISSION

February 4 2014 6 p m

Aventura Government Center

19200 W Country Club Drive
Aventura Florida 33180

1 CALL TO ORDER ROLL CALL The meeting was called to order by Mayor Susan
Gottlieb at 6 p m Present were Commissioners Enbar Cohen Teri Holzberg Billy Joel
Michael Stern Luz Weinberg Vice Mayor Howard Weinberg Mayor Gottlieb City
Manager Eric M Soroka City Clerk Teresa M Soroka and City Attorney David Wolpin
As a quorum was determined to be present the meeting commenced

2 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Led during preceding LPA Hearing

3 AGENDA REQUESTS FOR DELETIONS EMERGENCY ADDITIONS None

4 SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS Mr Soroka presented Certificates of Appointment to

members of the Arts in Public Places Advisory Board Sandi Jo Gordon Marina
Wecksler and Benjamin Sens

5 CONSENT AGENDA There were no requests from the public to address the
Commission A motion to approve the Consent Agenda was offered by Vice Mayor
Howard Weinberg seconded by Commissioner Joel passed unanimously by roll call
vote and the following action was taken

A The following minutes were approved

January 7 2014 Commission Meeting
January 16 2014 Workshop Meeting

B Resolution No 2014 03 was adopted as follows

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF

AVENTURA FLORIDA AWARDING AND LETTING A BID CONTRACT

FOR BID NO 13 11 22 2 CITY OF AVENTURA MAINTENANCE AND

REPAIR FOR CITY ROADS STREETS AND FACILITIES TO JVA

ENGINEERING CONTRACTOR INC MAGNA CONSTRUCTION INC

AND WEEKLEY ASPHALT PAVING INC AT THE INDIVIDUAL BID

PRICES AS CONTAINED IN EXHIBIT A ATTACHED AUTHORIZING

THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ASSOCIATED CONTRACTS

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE NECESSARY AND

EXPEDIENT ACTION TO CARRY OUT THE AIMS OF THIS

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROPRIATION AND

ALLOCATION OF FUNDS FOR SAID BID AWARD AND PROVIDING

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE



C Resolution No 2014 04 was adopted as follows

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
AVENTURA FLORIDA ADOPTING THE CITY OF AVENTURA 2014
LEGISLATIVE PROGRAM AND PRIORITIES ATTACHED HERETO
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE NECESSARY ACTION
TO CARRY OUT THE AIMS OF THIS RESOLUTION AND PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

D Resolution No 2014 05 was adopted as follows

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF

AVENTURA FLORIDA ACCEPTING DONATION OF ART WORK TO
THE CITY AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO DO ALL THINGS
NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE AIMS OF THIS RESOLUTION
PROVIDING FOR EFFECTIVE DATE

E The following motion was approved

MOTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA
FLORIDA TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE CITY OF
AVENTURA ARTS IN PUBLIC PLACES ADVISORY BOARD TO
AUTHORIZE THE COMMISSION OF A PIECE OF ART TO BE

SELECTED AS AN OPEN COMPETITION IN AN AMOUNT UP TO
30 000 TO BE PLACED IN EITHER THE GOVERNMENT CENTER OR

ARTS AND CULTURAL CENTER

F Resolution No 2014 06 was adopted as follows

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
AVENTURA FLORIDA DECLARING CERTAIN PROPERTY LISTED
UNDER THE ASSETS OF THE CITY AS SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF
THE CITY DESCRIBING THE MANNER OF DISPOSAL AUTHORIZING
THE CITY MANAGER TO DO ALL THINGS NECESSARY TO CARRY
OUT THE AIMS OF THIS RESOLUTION AND PROVIDING AN

EFFECTIVE DATE

G The following motion was approved

MOTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION OF UP TO 14 300

FOR CRIME SCENE STORAGE AND NETWORK VIDEO RECORDER

FROM THE POLICE FORFEITURE FUNDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE CITY MANAGER S MEMORANDUM



H Resolution No 2014 07 was adopted as follows

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
AVENTURA FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE EXTENSION OF THE

GREEN MARKET HELD IN FOUNDERS PARK SOUTH TO MAY 31
2014 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ISSUE A SPECIAL
EVENT PERMIT TO WHODUZ INC BASED ON THE CONDITIONS
CONTAINED IN EXHIBIT A ATTACHED HERETO AUTHORIZING

THE CITY MANAGER TO DO ALL THINGS NECESSARY TO CARRY
OUT THE AIMS OF THIS RESOLUTION AND PROVIDING AN

EFFECTIVE DATE

6 ZONING HEARINGS QUASI JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS Please be advised that

the following items on the Commission s agenda are quasi judicial in nature If you wish to object or

comment upon any of these items please inform the Mayor when she requests public comments An
opportunity for persons to speak on each item will be made available after the applicant and staff
have made their presentations on each item All testimony including public testimony and evidence
will be made under oath or affirmation Additionally each person who gives testimony may be
subject to cross examination If you refuse either to be cross examined or to be sworn your

testimony will be given its due weight The general public will not be permitted to cross examine

witnesses but the public may request the Commission to ask questions of staff or witnesses on their
behalf Persons representing organizations must present evidence of their authority to speak for the
organization Further details of the quasi judicial procedures may be obtained from the Clerk

Mr Wolpin reviewed the quasi judicial procedures Mrs Soroka administered the

oath to all those wishing to offer testimony and Mr Wolpin then read the following
resolution by title

A A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF

AVENTURA FLORIDA GRANTING MODIFICATION OF CONDITIONAL

USE APPROVAL GRANTED THROUGH RESOLUTION NO 2008 24 TO

PERMIT THE SALES AND SERVICE OF WINE AND CHAMPAGNE AT

THE CAVIAR MORE KIOSK AND TABLE SEATING AREA IN THE

AVENTURA MALL AT 19501 BISCAYNE BOULEVARD CITY OF

AVENTURA MODIFYING CERTAIN CONDITIONS OF RESOLUTION

NO 2008 24 DELETING CERTAIN CONDITIONS OF RESOLUTION

NO 2008 24 PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

A motion for approval was offered by Commissioner Holzberg and seconded by
Vice Mayor Howard Weinberg Community Development Director Joanne Carr
addressed the Commission and entered the staff report into the record Mayor

Gottlieb opened the public hearing The following individual addressed the
Commission Robert Burroughs There being no further speakers the public
hearing was closed The motion for approval passed unanimously by roll call
vote and Resolution No 2014 08 was adopted
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B Mr Wolpin read the following resolution by title

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
AVENTURA FLORIDA GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL
TO PERMIT THE SALE AND SERVICE OF BEER WINE AND

CHAMPAGNE AT THE PIACERE NEWS CAFE KIOSK AND TABLE
SEATING AREA IN THE AVENTURA MALL AT 19501 BISCAYNE

BOULEVARD CITY OF AVENTURA PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS
OF APPROVAL PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

A motion for approval was offered by Commissioner Joel and seconded by
Commissioner Luz Weinberg Ms Carr addressed the Commission and entered
the staff report into the record Mayor Gottlieb opened the public hearing There

being no speakers the public hearing was closed The motion for approval

passed unanimously by roll call vote and Resolution No 2014 09 was adopted

7 ORDINANCES FIRST READING PUBLIC INPUT

A Mr Wolpin noted that this hearing incorporates all comments made at the
previous LPA hearing and then read the following ordinance by title

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA AMENDING
SECTION 31 144 BUSINESS ZONING DISTRICTS OF THE CITY S

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS BY AMENDING SECTION 31
144 C 5 A COMMUNITY BUSINESS 132 DISTRICT TO ALLOW

INCREASED LOT COVERAGE FOR SHOPPING CENTERS WITH

MORE THAN 1 000 000 SQUARE FEET OF GROSS LEASABLE AREA

WITH HEIGHT NOT GREATER THAN FIVE STORIES AND THAT
PROVIDE A CENTRALIZED MULTI MODAL TRANSPORTATION

FACILITY WHICH IS ENCLOSED WITHIN A PARKING STRUCTURE

AND WHICH MAY BE USED BY CITY TRANSIT PROVIDERS COUNTY

TRANSIT PROVIDERS ANY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

REQUESTING USE OF THE FACILITY AND PRIVATE TRANSIT

PROVIDERS PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY PROVIDING FOR

INCLUSION IN THE CODE PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

A motion for approval including the incorporation by reference into this
hearing of all amendments and testimony written and verbal relative to
this item given at the preceding Local Planning Agency meeting was

offered by Commissioner Holzberg and seconded by Commissioner Enbar
Cohen Mayor Gottlieb opened the public hearing There being no
speakers the public hearing was closed The motion for approval passed

unanimously by roll call vote
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B Mr Wolpin read the following ordinance by title

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA AMENDING
CHAPTER 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS OF THE CITY CODE OF THE
CITY OF AVENTURA BY CREATING SECTION 1 17 RETAIL SALE
OF DOGS AND CATS PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE PROVIDING FOR

PENALTY PROVIDING FOR EFFECTIVE DATE

A motion for approval was offered by Commissioner Cohen and seconded
by Commissioner Luz Weinberg Mayor Gottlieb opened the public

hearing The following individuals addressed the Commission Don

Anthony 1431 N Federal Highway Ft Lauderdale and Commissioner
Michelle Lazaro City of Hallandale Beach There being no further

speakers the public hearing was closed The motion for approval passed

unanimously by roll call vote

8 ORDINANCES SECOND READING PUBLIC HEARING Mr Wolpin noted that

since item 8B is quasi judicial both ordinances would be incorporated into the quasi

judicial hearing but voted on separately Mrs Soroka administered the oath to all
those wishing to offer testimony in this matter Mr Wolpin then read both of the

following ordinances by title

A AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA AMENDING
THE COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN BY AMENDING THE FUTURE
LAND USE MAP DESIGNATION FOR A 3 359 ACRE PARCEL OF
LAND LOCATED ON NE 207 STREET AT NE 30 AVENUE MORE

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A TO THIS ORDINANCE

FROM MEDIUM HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO TOWN CENTER
AND AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN BY

AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP DESIGNATION OF A 4 032

ACRE PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED ON NE 207 STREET AT NE 30

AVENUE MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT B TO

THIS ORDINANCE FROM BUSINESS AND OFFICE TO TOWN

CENTER PROVIDING FOR TRANSMITTAL TO THE AGENCIES AS

REQUIRED UNDER CHAPTER 163 PART II FLORIDA STATUTES

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

B AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA AMENDING

THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA BY

AMENDING THE ZONING DESIGNATION FOR A 7 391 ACRE PARCEL

OF LAND LOCATED ON NE 207 STREET AT NE 30 AVENUE AS

5



MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A FROM B2
COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT TO TC3 TOWN CENTER
NEIGHBORHOOD DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

A motion for approval of item 8 A was offered by Commissioner Holzberg and
seconded by Commissioner Stern A motion for approval of item 8 13 was offered
by Commissioner Luz Weinberg and seconded by Vice Mayor Howard
Weinberg Mayor Gottlieb opened the public hearing The following individuals
addressed the Commission Ivy Ginsburg 3610 Yacht Club Drive Jeff Bercow
200 S Biscayne Blvd There being no further speakers the public hearing was
closed The motion for approval of item 8 A passed unanimously by roll call vote
and Ordinance No 2014 02 was enacted The motion for approval of item 8 13
passed unanimously by roll call vote and Ordinance No 2014 03 was enacted

9 RESOLUTIONS PUBLIC HEARING None

10 REPORTS As presented

Mr Wolpin requested the scheduling of attorney client session for litigation status
update in the Williams Island Gary Cohen matter The meeting will be scheduled at
a date in March to be announced in the near future

11 PUBLIC COMMENTS Trevor Nesse Dr Michael Krop Senior High School liaison
3758 NE 208 Street Ms Ginsburg Omar Purro 2012 Lumpkin Street Hollywood

12 OTHER BUSINESS None

13 ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to come before the Commission
at this time after motion made seconded and unanimously passed the meeting
adjourned at 7 22 p m

Teresa M Soroka MMC City Clerk

Approved by the Commission on

Anyone wishing to appeal any decision made by the City Commission with respect to any matter considered at a meeting or hearing
will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made
which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based
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CITY OF AVENTURA

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER

MEMORANDUM

TO City Commission

FROM Eric M Soroka ICMA CM City na er

DATE February 5 2014

SUBJECT Resolution Declaring Equipment Surplus

March 4 2014 Commission Meeting Agenda Item

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Commission adopt the attached Resolution declaring
certain equipment as surplus to the needs of the City

BACKGROUND

Section 2 258 of the City Code of Ordinances provides that any property owned by the
City which has become obsolete or which has outlived its usefulness may be disposed
of in accordance with procedures established by the City Manager so long as the
property has been declared surplus by a resolution of the City Commission

If you have any questions please feel free to contact me

EMS act

Attachment



CITY OF ENTURA

COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM

TO Eric M Soroka ICMA CM City Manager

FROM Robert M Sherman Director of Community Services

DATE February 3 2014

SUBJECT Surplus Property

I am requesting to have the City property listed below declared as surplus
property as these items have outlived their useful life and have become
unusable for departmental use

Item Model Serial Asset
Tan

True Treadmill ZTX 850 02 45123L 1643

Five office chairs 4 floor shell N A N A N A

2009 EEVM Bubble Budd 2 passenger Vin L4F6552k390030001 N A

2007 EZGO Golf Cart UT SE 2462865 N A

True Recumbent Bike True CS8 0 003014 CS8 3014

RMS gf

RMS14007



CITY OF AVENTURA

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM

TO Eric M Soroka ICMA CM City Manager
447

FROM Brian K Raducci Finance Director

DATE February 20 2014

SUBJECT Surplus Property

In accordance with Chapter 6 Subsection 5 Page 1 of the City s Administrative Policy
Directives and Procedures Manual I am requesting that the items listed below be
declared Surplus Property as they

have become obsolete or

have outlived their usefulness or

have become inadequate for their public purposes for which they were
intended or

are no longer needed for public purposes

Please let me know if you require any additional information

CITY OF AVENTURA

OFFICE EQUIPMENT INVENTORY
Request to be Declared Surplus Property

Item Asset Tag Description

1 N A 1 Office Chair

2 N A 1 Office Chair

3 N A 1 Office Chair

4 N A 1 Office Chair

5 N A 1 Office Chair

6 N A 1 Office Round Table



RESOLUTION NO 2014

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA DECLARING CERTAIN

PROPERTY LISTED UNDER THE ASSETS OF THE CITY
AS SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE CITY

DESCRIBING THE MANNER OF DISPOSAL

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO DO ALL THINGS
NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE AIMS OF THIS

RESOLUTION AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS the City Manager desires to declare certain property as surplus to
the needs of the City and

WHEREAS Ordinance No 2000 09 provides that all City owned property that
has been declared surplus cannot be disposed of prior to the preparation and formal
approval of a resolution by the City Commission

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA THAT

Section 1 Recitals Adopted The above recitals are hereby confirmed and
adopted herein

Section 2 The property listed on Exhibit A has been declared surplus and is
hereby approved for disposal

Section 3 The City Manager is authorized to dispose of the property listed on
Exhibit A through a public auction sale trade in transfer to other governmental

agency or if of no value discarded

Section 4 The City Manager is hereby authorized to do all things necessary to
carry out the aims of this Resolution

Section 5 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its

adoption

The foregoing Resolution was offered by Commissioner who moved its

adoption The motion was seconded by Commissioner and upon being put to a
vote the vote was as follows

Commissioner Enbar Cohen

Commissioner Teri Holzberg
Commissioner Billy Joel
Commissioner Michael Stern

Commissioner Luz Urbaez Weinberg
Vice Mayor Howard Weinberg
Mayor Susan Gottlieb



Resolution No 2014

Page 2

PASSED AND ADOPTED this
4th

day of March 2014

SUSAN GOTTLIEB MAYOR

ATTEST

TERESA M SOROKA MMC

CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

CITY ATTORNEY



CITY OF AVENTURA
POLICE DEPARTMENT

INTER OFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO Eric M Soroka City Manager

FROM teWnStMeMeMrmg Chief of Police

DATE 27 February 2014

SUBJECT Surplus Property

I would like to have the attached listed items owned by the City of Aventura
declared Surplus Property as per City of Aventura APDP Chapter 6 Subsection
5 Page 1 as these items have become inadequate for public purposes

Request that the list of attached photography items be surplused at the next
available Commission meeting



City of Aventura
Police Department

Memorandum

To Captain Mauer

From Susan Courtney 280

J
PV

Subject Equipment Surplus

Date February 19 2014

1

ti

The following equipment stored in the Crime Scene Unit is obsolete Most of the
items were donated used in August 2011 and are no longer needed or in
working order Request approval to surplus equipment

Camera s

Canon Optura Mini DV Camcorder S N 2610303223

Sony Handy Cam IP S N 1244132
JVC Digital Video Camera S N 2608147
JVC Digital Video CyberCam S N 12810271
Kodak CC2402 Zoom Digital Camera S N EKL91506095
Canon Sure Shot Camera S N 6710387
Polaroid 600 Camera No S N
Polaroid Spectra 2 No S N

Polaroid One step Express No S N
Nikon N90s 35 mm Film Camera S N 2608147
Nikon N90s 35mm Film Camera S N 2541742
Nikon N6006 35mm Film Camera S N 9020294

Misc Equipment

Nikon SB 26 external flash S N 2280609
Nikon SB 26 external flash S N 2235437
Ikelite underwater camera kit from Dive Team

Motorola remote antenna

Ultimate metal stands

Professional lighting supports 2
Misc camera bags 3

Respectfully Submitted



CITY OF AVENTURA

CITY MANAGER S OFFICE

M

TO City Commission

FROM Eric M Soroka ICMA CM City shag r

BY Antonio F Tomei Capital Proj c s Ma ger a f
DATE February 12 2014

SUBJECT Aventura Parking Expansion Project Easement Dedication

March 4 2014 City Commission Meeting Agenda Item 5 C

Recommendation

It is recommended that the City Commission adopt the attached Resolution dedicating
a twelve 12 foot long by three 3 foot wide Easement to Miami Dade County as
required for the Aventura Parking Expansion Project

Background

Miami Dade County requires an Easement to operate and maintain water services for
the Aventura Parking Expansion Project

If you have any questions or need any additional information please feel free to contact
me

Attachment



RESOLUTION NO 2014

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF

AVENTURA FLORIDA DEDICATING A TWELVE 12 FOOT LONG BY
THREE 3 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT TO MIAMI DADE COUNTY FOR
THE AVENTURA PARKING EXPANSION PROJECT PROVIDING FOR
RECORDATION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO DO ALL
THINGS NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE AIMS OF THIS

RESOLUTION AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS the City of Aventura requires potable water service for the

Aventura Parking Expansion Project and

WHEREAS Miami Dade County requires an easement for operation and

maintenance of water service lines for the Aventura Parking Expansion project

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

Section 1 That the Easement dedication as reflected on the attached Grant

of Easement document is hereby accepted and the City Manager is hereby authorized
to cause such Easement to be recorded in the Official Records of Miami Dade County
Florida subject to confirmation by the City Attorney as to the legal form and sufficiency
of the Dedication and instrument of conveyance

Section 2 The City Manager is hereby authorized to do all things necessary to
carry out the aims of this Resolution

Section 3 That this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its
adoption

The foregoing Resolution was offered by
adoption The motion was seconded by
vote the vote was as follows

Commissioner Enbar Cohen

Commissioner Teri Holzberg
Commissioner Billy Joel
Commissioner Michael Stern

Commissioner Luz Urbaez Weinberg
Vice Mayor Harry Howard Weinberg
Mayor Susan Gottlieb

who moved its

and upon being put to a



Resolution No 2014
Page 2

PASSED AND ADOPTED this
4th

day of March 2014

SUSAN GOTTLIEB MAYOR

ATTEST

TERESA M SOROKA MMC
CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

CITY ATTORNEY



WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN

PASTOIRIZA COLE BONISKE P L
MITCHELL BIERMAN P A ATTORNEYS AT LAW
NINA L BONISKE P A

A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
MITCHELL J BURNSTEIN P A

JAMIE ALAN COLE P A INCLUDING PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

STEPHEN J HELFMAN P A

GILBERTO PASTORIZA P A MIAMI DADE OFFICE

MICHAEL S POPOK P A 2525 PONCE DE LEON BOULEVARD
JOSEPH H SEROTA P A

TELEPHONE 954 763 4242 FACSIMILE 954 764 7770

SUSAN L TREVARTHEN P A SUITE 700

RICHARD JAY WEISS P A
CORAL GABLES FLORIDA 33134

DAVID M WOLPIN P A

OF COUNSEL

DANIEL L ABBOTT TELEPHONE 305 854 0800
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SONJA C DARBY
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In connection with the referenced matter enclosed please find two 2 original executed
Opinion of Title as of January 22 2014 concerning the Aventura Government Center Property
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Paralegal

ed

Enclosure as noted

cc David Wolpin Esq w encl
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Tax Folio Number 28 1235 079 0010

Agmt ID 21561 GRANT OF EASEMENT

THIS INDENTURE made this day of

20 between CITY OF AVENTURA A

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA whose

mailing address is 19200 W Country Club Dr Aventura FL 33180
hereinafter called GRANTOR and MIAMI DADE COUNTY a political

subdivision of the State of Florida whose mailing address is c o

Miami Dade Water and Sewer Department P O Box 330316
Miami Florida 33233 0316 hereinafter called GRANTEE

WITNESSETH

THAT the GRANTOR for and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS 10 00 and other good and valuable considerations
the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by the GRANTOR has granted and does hereby grant to the GRANTEE its successors
and assigns forever the right privilege and easement to construct reconstruct lay install operate maintain relocate repair replace
improve remove and inspect water transmission and distribution facilities and all appurtenances thereto including but not limited to
fire hydrants and or sewage transmission and collection facilities and all appurtenant equipment which right privilege and easement
shall include the right to remove or demolish with no obligation to repair or replace same any obstructions placed on the easement
including pavers or that may extend up to twenty five 25 feet vertically above the finished grade over the easement as may be
necessary to carry out any right granted herein This right privilege and easement also provides GRANTEE with full and unlimited right
of ingress thereto and egress there from on the property of the GRANTOR described as follows to wit

See Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof

THE GRANTOR does hereby fully warrant that it has good title to the above described property and that it has full power and
authority to grant this easement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the GRANTOR by its proper officials has hereunto set its hands and seals the year and day first above
written

ATTEST

Signature

Teresa M Soroka City Clerk

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF DADE

CITYSD Et

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE

By
Signature

Eric M Soroka City Manager

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of 20 by Eric M

Soroka as City Manager and Teresa M Soroka as City Clerk of CITY OF AVENTURA A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA They are personally known to me

NOTARY PUBLIC SIGNATURE

PRINT NAME MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

This instrument prepared by
Dan del Mazo New Business Section

Miami Dade Water and Sewer Department

3575 S LeJeune Road

Miami Florida 33146

A 1 of 1



ID 21561

ABSOLUTE BILL OF SALE

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS CITY OF AVENTURA A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE

OF FLORIDA hereinafter called GRANTOR which term shall include the singular or plural

as the context shall require for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars 10 00

and other good and valuable consideration paid and delivered by MIAMI DADE COUNTY a

political subdivision of the State of Florida hereinafter called GRANTEE the receipt

whereof is hereby acknowledged has granted bargained sold transferred and delivered
and by these presents does grant bargain sell transfer and deliver unto the GRANTEE

its successors and assigns the following

All water sewer facilities built and constructed to serve Aventura Government Center

Parking Garage WB 2013 030 SB 2013 582 ID 21561 located in Section 3 52 42

Miami Dade County Florida as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof

and as more particularly described on Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same unto the GRANTEE its successors and assigns forever

GRANTOR does covenant to and with the GRANTEE its successors and assigns that GRANTOR

is the lawful owner of the above described that said property is free from all

encumbrances that GRANTOR has good right to sell the same aforesaid that the GRANTOR

will warrant and defend the sale of the said property unto the GRANTEE its successors

and assigns against the lawful claims and demands of all persons whomsoever

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the GRANTOR has hereunto set its hand and seal this day of

20

ATTEST
By

Signature

Teresa M Soroka City Clerk

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF MIAMI DADE

CITY OF AVENTURA A MUNICIPAL

CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF

FLORIDA

Signature

Eric M Soroka City Manager

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

20 by Eric M Soroka as City Manager and Teresa M Soroka as

City Clerk of CITY OF AVENTURA A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA They

are personally known to me

NOTARY PUBLIC

PRINT NAME SERIAL NUMBER



State of Florida

County of Miami Dade

FINAL WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN DEVELOPER

having been duly sworn deposes and says as follows To wit

1 I Eric M Soroka as City Manager of CITY OF AVENTURA A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION hereinafter called the Developer with the right to execute this
final waiver and release of lien

2 For the consideration of amount of ten dollars 10 00 the Developer hereby waives and releases all liens lien rights claims or demands of every kind whatsoever
which the Developer now has on the construction of certain donated improvements situated in Miami Dade County Florida described as

All water and sewer facilities built constructed and installed to serve Aventura Government Center Parking Garage WB 2013 030 SB 2013 582 ID 21561
located in Section 3 52 42 Miami Dade County Florida as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof as more particularly described on Exhibit

B attached hereto and made a part hereof

3 Developer understands that this is a waiver and release of lien which the Developer has against the facilities described herein Developer acknowledges that is
has been paid in full for all work related to the water and sewer facilities described above

4 Payments in full have heretofore been paid by the Developer to all persons firms and corporations supplying labor materials equipment and supplies used directly
or indirectly by the Developer or any subcontractor in the prosecution of the work provided on water and sewer facilities described herein

5 There are no claims demands or liens of any kind attributable to any action taken by the Developer in connection with the work described above which would cause
create or constitute a charge or lien against said Miami Dade County or the Members of the Board of County Commissioners

6 The undersigned warrants that no assignment of liens or claims nor the right to perfect a lien such as the Notice to Owner provision under Section 713 06 2 a of

the Florida Statutes against improvements described or listed herein has been or will be made and that no claims are outstanding by subcontractors and or vendors
to the Developer

7 The Developer hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Miami Dade County and its officers employees agents and instrumentalities from any and all
liability losses or damages including attorneys fees and costs of defense which the Miami Dade County or its officers employees agents or instrumentalities may
incur as a result of claims demands suits causes of actions or proceedings of any kind or nature arising out of relating to or resulting from the performance of work
by the Developer or its employees agents servants partners principals contractors or subcontractors Developer hereby agrees to pay all claims and losses in
connection therewith and shall investigate and defend all claims suits or actions of any kind or nature in the name of Miami Dade County where applicable including
appellate proceedings and shall pay all costs judgments and attorney s fees which may issue thereon

8 Developer hereby waives and releases all claims of any sort as it may have against Miami Dade County at law or equity arising out of the construction of the above
water and sewer improvements

ATTEST CITY OF AVENTURA A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

By

Signature Signature

Teresa M Soroka City Clerk Eric M Soroka City Manager

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF MIAMI DADE

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of 20 by Eric M Soroka as City Manager and Teresa M

Soroka as City Clerk of CITY OF AVENTURA A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA They are personally known to me

NOTARY PUBLIC

Print name SERIAL NUMBER



N MIAMI DADE COUNTY

SEC 03 TOWN 52 RAN 42
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PROJECT LOCATION 19200 W COUNTRY CLUB DR AVENTURA FL 33180

CONTRACTOR ROCK POWER PAVING

DATE 09 25 2013 1 AGREEMENT ID 21561 ER WB 2013 030



LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A portion of Tract A of AVENTURA GOVERNMENT CENTER according
to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 156 at Page 57 of the

Public Records of Miami Dade County Florida being more particularly
described as follows

Commence at the Northwest corner of said Tract A thence run

S02 27 24 E along the West line of said Tract A for a distance of
156 74 feet to a point of intersection with the South line of said

Tract A thence run N87 032 36 E along the said South line of Tract
A for a distance of 125 00 feet to a point thence run S02 027 24 E

for a distance of 2 50 feet to a Point of Intersection with the North

line of a 25 foot utility easements as recorded in OR BOOK 13760 PAGE
1519 of the Public Records of Miami Dade County Florida as shown on

said plat thence run N87 32 36 E along the said North line of a 25
foot utility easement for a distance of 41 84 feet to the Point of

Beginning thence run NO2 27 24 W for a distance of 2 97 feet thence

run N87 032 36 E for a distance of 12 00 feet thence run S02 27 24 E

for a distance of 2 97 feet to a Point of Intersection with the said

North line of a 25 foot utility easement thence run S87 32 36 W along
the said North line of the 25 foot utility easement for a distance of
12 00 feet to the Point of Beginning

Lying in Section 3 Township 52 South Range 42 East

35 64 Square Feet

PREPARED BY Joseph L Martin

PLS 4368

State of Florida

County Wide Land Surveyors Inc

15358 S W 140 St

Miami Fl 33196

305 772 0766

LB 4680

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE NOTE NOT VALID UNLESS SEALED WITH AN EMBOSSED
SURVEYORS SEAL I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE SURVEY REPRESENTED HEREON
COMPLIES TH THE MINIMUM TECHNICAL STANDARDS ADOPTED BY THE FLORIDA
BOARD OF S RVEYORS AND MAPPERS IN CHAPTER 5J 17 FLORIDA

ADMINISTRA VE CODE PURSURANT TO SECTION 472 027 FLORIDA STATUTES

BY

SHEET 1 OF 2

Joseph L Martin

Professional Land Surveyor 4368

State of Florida
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LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A portion of Tract A of AVENTURA GOVERNMENT CENTER according
to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 156 at Page 57 of the

Public Records of Miami Dade County Florida being more particularly
described as follows

Commence at the Northwest corner of said Tract A thence run

S02 27 24 E along the West line of said Tract A for a distance of

156 74 feet to a point of intersection with the South line of said
Tract A thence run N87 32 36 E along the said South line of Tract

A for a distance of 125 00 feet to a point thence run S02 27 24 E

for a distance of 2 50 feet to a Point of Intersection with the North

line of a 25 foot utility easements as recorded in OR BOOK 13760 PAGE
1519 of the Public Records of Miami Dade County Florida as shown on

said plat thence run N87 32 36 E along the said North line of a 25
foot utility easement for a distance of 41 84 feet to the Point of

Beginning thence run NO2 27 24 W for a distance of 2 97 feet thence

run N87 032 36 E for a distance of 12 00 feet thence run S02 027 24 E

for a distance of 2 97 feet to a Point of Intersection with the said

North line of a 25 foot utility easement thence run S87 32 36 W along
the said North line of the 25 foot utility easement for a distance of
12 00 feet to the Point of Beginning

Lying in Section 3 Township 52 South Range 42 East

35 64 Square Feet

PREPARED BY Joseph L Martin

PLS 4368

State of Florida

County Wide Land Surveyors Inc

15358 S W 140 St

Miami Fl 33196

305 772 0766

LB 4680

SURVEYORS CERT FICATE NOTE NOT VALID UNLESS SEALED WITH AN EMBOSSED

SURVEYORS SEALk I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE SURVEY REPRESENTED HEREON

COMPLIES WITH E MINIMUM TECHNICAL STANDARDS ADOPTED BY THE FLORIDA
BOARD OF SURVE RS AND MAPPERS IN CHAPTER 5J 17 FLORIDA

ADMINISTRATIVE DE PURSURANT TO SECTION 472 027 FLORIDA STATUTES

BY

SHEET 1 OF 2

Joseph L Martin

Professional Land Surveyor 4368

State of Florida
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PREPARED BY COUNTY WIDE LAND SURVEYORS INC
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OPINION OF TITLE

To MIAMI DADE COUNTY FLORIDA

With the understanding that this Opinion of Title is furnished to Miami Dade County Florida as
inducement for execution of an easement covering the real property hereinafter described it is
hereby certified that I have examined Owner s Policy No FA 35 566188 issued by First American
Title Insurance Company with an Effective Date of December 29 1998 at 2 30 P M together with
Ownership and Encumbrance Report issued by First American Title Insurance Company under File

No 1062 2674055 covering the period from December 29 1998 to January 4 2012 at the hours of
8 00 A M inclusive Search Update No I thereof covering the period from January 4 2012 at 8 00
A M to July 8 2013 at 11 59 P M inclusive and Search Update No 2 thereof covering the
period from July 8 2013 at 11 59 P M to January 22 2014 at 11 59 P M inclusive of the

following described property collectively Evidence of Title

SEE EXHIBIT A ATTACHED HERETO FOR LEGAL DESCRIPTION

AND SKETCH OF EASEMENT THE PROPERTY

Basing my opinion on said Evidence of Title I am of the opinion that on the last mentioned date
the fee simple title to the above described real property was vested in

City of Aventura a Florida municipal corporation

Subject to the following encumbrances liens and other exceptions

RECORDED MORTGAGES

None

2 RECORDED CONSTRUCTION LIENS CONTRACT LIENS AND JUDGMENTS

None

Note Although the said Notice of Commencement and Claim of Lien have been recorded

against the Property they are of no force or effect by virtue of exemption of municipal
property from the Construction Lien Law set forth in Section 713 01 26 Florida Statutes

GENERAL EXCEPTIONS

a Real estate taxes for 2013 and subsequent years and taxes or special assessments

which are not shown as existing liens by the Public Records

b Rights or claims of parties in possession not shown by the Public Records

K DOCS 0328 001 36K7117 DOC



Opinion of Title

Page 2

C Encroachments overlaps boundary line disputes and any other matters which
would be disclosed by an accurate survey and inspection of the Property

d Easements or claims of easements not shown by the Public Records

e Any lien or right to a lien for services labor or material heretofore or hereafter
furnished imposed by law and not shown by the Public Records

f Any adverse claim to all or any part of the land which is now under water or which
has previously been under water but filled or exposed through the efforts of man

4 SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS

a Restrictions dedications and easements contained in Plat of FIFTH ADDITION

BISCAYNE YACHT AND COUNTRY CLUB recorded in Plat Book 99 at Page

20

b Agreement with Dade County in regard to development of property dated February
12 1969 filed March 31 1970 in Official Records Book 6808 at Page 548

C Restrictions for Biscayne Village Dade County Florida filed for record June 16

1970 in Official Records Book 6889 at Page 4 as amended by Resolution of the
County Commission of Metropolitan Dade County passed and adopted on February
27 1973 filed March 27 1973 in Official Records Book 8198 at Page 259

d Agreement and Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions filed October 21 1981

in Official Records Book 11246 at Page 944 amongst the condominium

associations and owners of residential commercial and undeveloped property in the
Aventura area together with the Amended and Restated By Laws of The Joint
Council of Aventura Inc recorded in Official Records Book 11246 at Page 961

both as amended by that certification of The Joint Council of Aventura Inc filed
September 22 1982 in Official Records Book 11564 at Page 1052 and amended

by that Certificate of Amendment to The Joint Council of Aventura Inc dated April
28 1991 and recorded May 6 1991 in Official Records Book 15010 at Page 2387

e Non Exclusive Mutual Grant of Easement and Sanitary Lift Station Agreement
between Eugene Colley as Trustee and Donarl of Florida dated December 19
1984 filed December 24 1984 in Official Records Book 12363 at Page 1680

f Terms provisions restrictive covenants and conditions contained in Covenant

Running with the Land filed December 24 1984 in Official Records Book 12363
at Page 1675



Opinion of Title

Page 3

g Declaration of Reservation of Non Exclusive Easement filed February 28 1986 in
Official Records Book 12805 at Page 2184

h Terms provisions restrictive covenants conditions reservations and easements

contained in Declaration of Restrictive Covenants in Lieu of Unity of Title filed
January 16 1987 in Official Records Book 13151 at Page 632

Easement to Florida Power and Light Company tiled July 25 1988 in Official
Records Book 13758 at Page 1887

J Grant of Easement to Metropolitan Dade County filed July 26 1988 in Official
Records Book 13760 at Page 1519

k Easement to Dade County for Public Bikeway and Sidewalk Purposes filed

December 18 1995 in Official Records Book 17029 at Page 3957

Terms provisions restrictive covenants conditions reservations and easements

contained in Declaration of Restrictive Covenants in Lieu of Unity of Title filed
March 13 1996 in Official Records Book 17127 at Page 2933

M Rights of the United States Government arising under the United States Government
control over navigable waters as to any part of the premises described in Schedule
A which may be artificially filled in lands in what was formerly navigable water
and any accretions thereto

n Easement in favor of Florida Power Light Company recorded August 23 2000 in
Official Records Book 19251 at Page 4732

o Resolution No 99 41 of the City of Aventura approving the Aventura Government
Center Final Plat recorded February 23 2001 in Official Records Book 19514 at
Page 557

P Grant of Easement in favor of Miami Dade County for water transmission and
distribution facilities and sewage transmission and collection facilities recorded

September 17 2001 in Official Records Book 19902 at Page 2879

q Restrictions dedications conditions reservations easement and other matters

shown on the Plat of Aventura Government Center recorded in Plat Book 156 at

Page 57

r Agreement for Water and Sanitary Sewage Facilities between Miami Dade County
and City of Aventura recorded on August 26 2013 in Official Records Book
28789 at Page 2284



Opinion of Title

Page 4

All of the foregoing instruments recorded in the Public Records of Miami Dade County
Florida

Therefore it is my opinion that the following party ies must join in the easement in order
to make the agreement a valid and binding covenant on the lands described herein

Name Interest Special Exception Number

City of Aventura a Florida Owner

Municipal corporation

None of the exceptions listed above will restrict the use of the Property for the purposes set
forth in the easement

I the undersigned further certify that I am an attorney at law duly admitted to practice in
the State of Florida and a member in good standing of the Florida Bar

Respectfully submitted this 10 day of February 2014

Lillian M Arango

Florida Bar No 0826 90

Weiss Serota Helfman Pastoriza Cole Boniske P L

2525 Ponce de Leon Boulevard Suite 700

Coral Gables Florida 33134

STATE OF FLORIDA

SS

COUNTY OF MIAMI DADE 1

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this
4r

day of February 2014 by
Lillian M Arango who check one X is personally known to me or who has produced

Florida Driver s License as identification

SEAL h

otarv public State o lorida

G yl a L b x yJe6 e yo ry
Print Name of Not

Commission No fF O 6 q
Commission Expires 5 op 7

ELVIA L DUNKLEBER6ER
Notary Public Sol of Florida148oridedTkoughko W AWL

My Comm Expka May o 2o17
Commission I FF 016227

h

otarv public State o lorida

G yl a L b x yJe6 e yo ry
Print Name of Not

Commission No fF O 6 q
Commission Expires 5 op 7



Opinion of Title

Page 5

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND SKETCH OF EASEMENT PROPERTY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A portion of Tract A of AVENTURA GOVERNMENT CENTER according

to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 156 at Page 57 of the
Public Records of Miami Dade CounLy Florida being more particularly
described as follows

Commence at the Northwest corner of said Tract A thence run

S02 27 24 E along the West line of said Tract A for a distance of
156 74 feet to a point of intersection with the South line of said
Tract A thence run N87 32 36 E along the said South line of Tract

A for a distance of 125 00 Meet to a point thence run S02 027124 E

for a distance of 2 50 feet to a Point of Intersection with the North
line of a 25 foot utility easements as recorded in OR BOOK 13760 PAGE
1519 of the Public Records of Miami Dade County Florida as shown on

said plat thence run N87 32 36 E along the saki North line of a 25
foot utility easement for a distance of 41 84 feet to the Point of
Beginning thence run 1402 27 2 4 W for a distance of 2 97 feet thence

run N87 3213b E for a distance of 12 00 feet thence rur S02 27 24 E

for a distance of 2 97 feet to a Point of Intersection with the said

North lino of a 25 foot utility easemeuL thence run 987 32 36 11 along
the said Norta line of the 25 foot utility easement for a distance of
12 00 feet to the Point of Beginninq

Lying in Section 3 Township 52 South Range 42 East

35 64 square Feet

PREPARED BY Joseph L Martin

PIS 4368

State of Florida

County Wide Land Surveyors Inc

15358 S W 140 St

Miami Fl 33196

305 772 0766

U N 4680

Y 3 C YFIC T6 Wt0TEr NOT VALID UNLE93 SEALED WITH AN EMBOSSED
SVq ET 11111 1 WEREIr CMTIFY THAT THE SURVIY AEPR900 PAD HEAEON
COMPETE ITN THE NIRIIItNI TZ NICAL STANDARDS ADOPTED BY THE FLORIDA
HOARD U gVSYOP6 AND JIPPERB IN CHAPTER SJ 17 FLORIDA

ADMIXIST A VP CobE PURSORANT TO SRCTIOM 472 027 FLORIDA STATUTES

DYr
OF 2

Jooaph L MnRln
Prnreaa3cnal Lind SUrVeyoC 4348
Sibto of Florlda
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OPINION OF TITLE

To MIAMI DADE COUNTY FLORIDA

With the understanding that this Opinion of Title is furnished to Miami Dade County Florida as
inducement for execution of an easement covering the real property hereinafter described it is
hereby certified that I have examined Owner s Policy No FA 35 566188 issued by First American
Title Insurance Company with an Effective Date of December 29 1998 at 2 30 P M together with
Ownership and Encumbrance Report issued by First American Title Insurance Company under File

No 1062 2674055 covering the period from December 29 1998 to January 4 2012 at the hours of
8 00 A M inclusive Search Update No l thereof covering the period from January 4 2012 at 8 00
A M to July 8 2013 at 11 59 P M inclusive and Search Update No 2 thereof covering the
period from July 8 2013 at 11 59 P M to January 22 2014 at 11 59 P M inclusive of the

following described property collectively Evidence of Title

SEE EXHIBIT A ATTACHED HERETO FOR LEGAL DESCRIPTION

AND SKETCH OF EASEMENT THE PROPERTY

Basing my opinion on said Evidence of Title I am of the opinion that on the last mentioned date
the fee simple title to the above described real property was vested in

City of Aventura a Florida municipal corporation

Subject to the following encumbrances liens and other exceptions

1 RECORDED MORTGAGES

None

2 RECORDED CONSTRUCTION LIENS CONTRACT LIENS AND JUDGMENTS

None

Note Although the said Notice of Commencement and Claim of Lien have been recorded

against the Property they are of no force or effect by virtue of exemption of municipal
property from the Construction Lien Law set forth in Section 713 01 26 Florida Statutes

3 GENERAL EXCEPTIONS

a Real estate taxes for 2013 and subsequent years and taxes or special assessments

which are not shown as existing liens by the Public Records

b Rights or claims of parties in possession not shown by the Public Records

K DOCS 0328 001 36K71 17 DOC



Opinion of Title

Page 2

C Encroachments overlaps boundary line disputes and any other matters which
would be disclosed by an accurate survey and inspection of the Property

d Easements or claims of easements not shown by the Public Records

e Any lien or right to a lien for services labor or material heretofore or hereafter
furnished imposed by law and not shown by the Public Records

f Any adverse claim to all or any part of the land which is now under water or which
has previously been under water but filled or exposed through the efforts of man

4 SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS

a Restrictions dedications and easements contained in Plat of FIFTH ADDITION

BISCAYNE YACHT AND COUNTRY CLUB recorded in Plat Book 99 at Page

20

b Agreement with Dade County in regard to development of property dated February
111969 filed March 31 1970 in Official Records Book 6808 at Page 548

C Restrictions for Biscayne Village Dade County Florida filed for record June 16
1970 in Official Records Book 6889 at Page 4 as amended by Resolution of the
County Commission of Metropolitan Dade County passed and adopted on February
27 1973 filed March 27 1973 in Official Records Book 8198 at Page 259

d Agreement and Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions filed October 21 1981

in Official Records Book 11246 at Page 944 amongst the condominium

associations and owners of residential commercial and undeveloped property in the
Aventura area together with the Amended and Restated By Laws of The Joint
Council of Aventura Inc recorded in Official Records Book 11246 at Page 961

both as amended by that certification of The Joint Council of Aventura Inc filed

September 22 1982 in Official Records Book 11564 at Page 1052 and amended

by that Certificate of Amendment to The Joint Council of Aventura Inc dated April
28 1991 and recorded May 6 1991 in Official Records Book 15010 at Page 2387

e Non Exclusive Mutual Grant of Easement and Sanitary Lift Station Agreement
between Eugene Colley as Trustee and Donarl of Florida dated December 19
1984 filed December 24 1984 in Official Records Book 12363 at Page 1680

f Terms provisions restrictive covenants and conditions contained in Covenant

Running with the Land filed December 24 1984 in Official Records Book 12363
at Page 1675
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g Declaration of Reservation of Non Exclusive Easement filed February 28 1986 in
Official Records Book 12805 at Page 2184

h Terms provisions restrictive covenants conditions reservations and easements

contained in Declaration of Restrictive Covenants in Lieu of Unity of Title filed
January 16 1987 in Official Records Book 13151 at Page 632

i Easement to Florida Power and Light Company filed July 25 1988 in Official
Records Book 13758 at Page 1887

j Grant of Easement to Metropolitan Dade County filed July 26 1988 in Official
Records Book 13760 at Page 1519

k Easement to Dade County for Public Bikeway and Sidewalk Purposes filed

December 18 1995 in Official Records Book 17029 at Page 3957

Terms provisions restrictive covenants conditions reservations and easements

contained in Declaration of Restrictive Covenants in Lieu of Unity of Title filed
March 13 1996 in Official Records Book 17127 at Page 2933

m Rights of the United States Government arising under the United States Government
control over navigable waters as to any part of the premises described in Schedule
A which may be artificially filled in lands in what was formerly navigable water
and any accretions thereto

n Easement in favor of Florida Power Light Company recorded August 23 2000 in
Official Records Book 19251 at Page 4732

o Resolution No 99 41 of the City of Aventura approving the Aventura Government
Center Final Plat recorded February 23 2001 in Official Records Book 19514 at
Page 557

P Grant of Easement in favor of Miami Dade County for water transmission and
distribution facilities and sewage transmission and collection facilities recorded

September 17 2001 in Official Records Book 19902 at Page 2879

q Restrictions dedications conditions reservations easement and other matters

shown on the Plat of Aventura Government Center recorded in Plat Book 156 at

Page 57

r Agreement for Water and Sanitary Sewage Facilities between Miami Dade County
and City of Aventura recorded on August 26 2013 in Official Records Book
28789 at Page 2284
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All of the foregoing instruments recorded in the Public Records of Miami Dade County
Florida

Therefore it is my opinion that the following party ies must join in the easement in order
to make the agreement a valid and binding covenant on the lands described herein

Name Interest Special Exception Number

City of Aventura a Florida Owner

Municipal corporation

None of the exceptions listed above will restrict the use of the Property for the purposes set
forth in the easement

1 the undersigned further certify that I am an attorney at law duly admitted to practice in
the State of Florida and a member in good standing of the Florida Bar

Respectfully submitted this l
Ot

day of February 2014

7 1440P
Lillian M Arango

Florida Bar No 0826790

Weiss Serota Helfman Pastoriza Cole Boniske P L

2525 Ponce de Leon Boulevard Suite 700

Coral Gables Florida 33134

STATE OF FLORIDA

SS

COUNTY OF MIAMI DADE

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this O day of February 2014 by
Lillian M Arango who check one X is personally known to me or who has produced

Florida Driver s License as identification

otary Public State of Florida
C vig 4 eb ci

Print Name of Notary
Commission No FFO16 22 I
Commission Expires 4 4 47

SEAL

ELVIA L DUNKLESERGER
z Notary Public State of Florida

e My Comm Expires May 8 2017
E F Commission N FF 016227

Bonded TiroupA Nei Net Assn

otary Public State of Florida
C vig 4 eb ci

Print Name of Notary
Commission No FFO16 22 I
Commission Expires 4 4 47



Opinion of Title

Page 5

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND SKETCH OF EASEMENT PROPERTY

LEGAL DESCR1PTIOU

A portior of Tract A of AVENTURA GUVE104PUMT TER according

to the plat thereof as recorded in P1aL Book 156 at Page 57 of the
Public Records of Miami llade County Florida being more particularly
described as follows

Coirmence at the Northwest corner of said Tract A thence run

S02 27 24 E alon i the West line of said Tract A for a distance of
156 74 feet to a point of inLersection with the south line of said
Tract A thence run M87 32 36 E along tho said south line of Tract

A for u distance of 125 00 feet to a point thence run S02 027 24 E
for a distance of 2 50 feet to a Point of Intersection with the North
line of a 25 toot utility easements as recorded in OR BOOR 13760 PAGE
1519 of the Public Records of Miami Dade County rlorida as shown oil

said plat thence run N87 32 36 E along the said North line of a 25
foot utility easement for a distance of 41 64 feet to the Point of
Beginning thence run 1302 27 2 4 14 for a distance of 2 97 feet thence
run 1467 32 3b E for a distance of 12 00 feet thence run S02 27 24 E

for a distance of 2 97 feet to a Point of 10teTAection with the said
North line of a 25 foot utility easemenL thence run S87 32 36 W along

the said North line of the 25 foot utility easement for a distance of
12 00 feet to the Point of Beginnir y

Lying in Section 3 Township 52 South Range 42 East

35 54 Square Feet

PREPARED BY Joseph L Martin

PIS i4 4368
State of Florida

County Wide Land Surveyors Inc

15358 S W 140 St
Miami Fl 33196

305 772 0766

LP p 4680

C TITIC T6 FaTEi ROT VALID 0101 618 SEALED RITE AN EMBOSSED
SUR BI SEAL Y SEREST cSRTIPT THAT THE SURVEY RBPRESRNTBD RBRBON
COMPLIB ITH THE MINIMUM TSCHRI CAL STANDARDS ADOPTED By THB PL08IDA
BOARD 4 R S O AND 11APPERB IN CHAPTER 5 7 17 VLORIDA

AOMIIIIGT A VV MDE PURSuBANT TO SECTION 4172 OZ7 FLORIPA STATUT83

S w T 1 or

J000ph l Marti n
Proreaaional Lana UIVPYOr 141350
Staha at Florida
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IRFPARER BY CCUNTY WIDE LANE SURVWOPS T

1535B r w 140 St
Fl d kjh

t L

P0 FcAn 7 t mmer ce nt

Voin of Begin7in7
win North west

Degree

Misere or fooL

Ae f7l 3Z u E

v

or P2 jd

e co

flu I V

SHEET 2 W 2

4 10

Ae f7l 3Z u E

v

or P2 jd

e co

flu I V

SHEET 2 W 2



CITY OF AVENTURA

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER

ORANDUM

TO City Commission

FROM Eric M Soroka ICMA CM Citf dfaniger

BY Antonio F Tomei Capital P ects M Hager

DATE February 20 2014

SUBJECT Recommendation Bid No 14 02 18 02 Country Club Drive Milling
Resurfacing Outside Half of Right of Way

March 4 2014 City Commission Meeting Agenda Item b

Recommendation

It is recommended that the City Commission adopt the attached Resolution awarding
Bid No 14 02 18 02 Country Club Drive Milling Resurfacing Outside Half of Right of
Way to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder General Asphalt for the price of

569 546 This project will be funded by Budget Line Item Number 120 5001 541 6305

Background

In accordance with the City s Purchasing Ordinance bids for this project were solicited
advertised and opened on February 18 2014 The City received seven 7 bids for this
project The following represent the three 3 lowest submittals

General Asphalt Co Inc

H R Paving Inc
Weekley Asphalt Paving Inc

569 546 00

594 115 54

633 564 00

This bid price allows for milling of asphalt pavement installation of asphalt pavement
curbing and sidewalk repairs re setting of brick pavers handicap ramp installs
adjusting of utilities pavement marking installation grading and restoration

If you have any questions or need any additional information please feel free to contact
me



RESOLUTION NO 2014

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
AVENTURA FLORIDA AWARDING AND LETTING A BID CONTRACT
FOR BID NO 14 02 18 02 COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE MILLING AND
RESURFACING OUTSIDE HALF OF RIGHT OF WAY TO GENERAL
ASPHALT COMPANY INC AT THE BID PRICE OF 569 546

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ASSOCIATED
CONTRACTS AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE

NECESSARY AND EXPEDIENT ACTION TO CARRY OUT THE AIMS
OF THIS RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROPRIATION AND
ALLOCATION OF FUNDS FOR SAID BID AWARD AND PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS the City Manager has pursuant to the various laws of the State of
Florida and the Code of the City of Aventura properly solicited and accordingly
accepted bids for BID NO 14 02 18 02 Country Club Drive Milling and Resurfacing
Outside Half of Right of Way and

WHEREAS sealed bids have been submitted to and received by the City
pursuant to the City s Invitation to Bid Notice to Bidders specifications proposals and
requirements for the project work as cited above and

WHEREAS staff has determined that General Asphalt Company Inc has

submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid for said project work and

WHEREAS the City Commission upon the recommendation of the City
Manager is therefore desirous of awarding said bid contract to said lowest responsible
and responsive bidder

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE

CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

Section 1 That bid contract for BID NO 14 02 18 02 Country Club Drive

Milling and Resurfacing Outside Half of Right of Way is hereby awarded to General

Asphalt Company Inc in the amount of 569 546

Section 2 That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of

the City a contract by and between the parties embodying the terms conditions and



Resolution No 2014
Page 2

specifications as set forth in the subject Invitation to Bid Notice to Bidders bid

specifications bid proposal and bid requirements or if a City prepared contract was

part of said bid proposal said parties shall execute said prepared contract on behalf of

the City

Section 3 That the City Manager is hereby authorized and requested to take

all necessary and expedient action to carry out the aims of this Resolution in awarding

this bid contract

Section 4 That the funds to be allocated and appropriated pursuant hereto

and for the purpose of carrying out the tenets of this Resolution shall be from Budget

Line Item Number 120 5001 541 6305

Section 5 This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption

The foregoing resolution was offered by Commissioner

moved its adoption The motion was seconded by Commissioner

upon being put to a vote the vote was as follows

Commissioner Enbar Cohen

Commissioner Teri Holzberg
Commissioner Billy Joel
Commissioner Michael Stern

Commissioner Luz Urbaez Weinberg
Vice Mayor Howard Weinberg
Mayor Susan Gottlieb

who

and
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PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4t

day of March 2014

SUSAN GOTTLIEB MAYOR

ATTEST

TERESA M SOROKA MMC
CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

CITY ATTORNEY



MEMORANDUM

CRAVEN THOMPSON AND ASSOCIATES INC

Date February 19 2014

To Tony Tomei City of Aventura Capital Projects Manager

From Adolfo A Gonzalez PE LEED AP Consulting Engineer AAG 90

Reference Country Club Drive Milling Resurfacing Outside Half of Right of Way
Bid Package Review Bid Number 14 02 18 2

At your request we have reviewed the bid results for the above referenced project A
total of seven bids were received However we only reviewed the bids for the three
apparent low bidders Please see below regarding a summary of the base bid and the
enclosed bid evaluation for a detailed accounting of the three apparent low bids

Bidder Total Base Bid

Community Asphalt Corp 907 467 00

General Asphalt Co Inc 569 546 00

H J Asphalt Inc 659 554 00

H R Paving Inc 594 115 54

JVA Engineering Contractor Inc 730 918 40
Metro Express Inc 649 671 24

Weekly Asphalt Paving Inc 633 564 00

General Asphalt Co Inc is the apparent low bidder for the Base Bid Based on our

review of the bids and previous experience it is my professional opinion that General
Asphalt Co Inc is qualified to perform the work under this contract and has

successfully performed similar types of roadway work for government agencies in the
past Therefore I am recommending the award of the contract for this project to
General Asphalt Co Inc as the lowest responsive responsible bidder

If you have any questions or require any additional information please call

Enclosure Bid Evaluation

Cc Indra Sarju City of Aventura
Don Shaver CTA
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SECTION 00410

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

FOR LUMP SUM

CONTRACT

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Item Quantity Description Unit Unit Price Extended Cost

GENERAL

t 1 GENERAL CONDITIONS LS tQ 000 k j mo

2 1 MOBILIZATION LS QQo p 000

3 I MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC LS 10 DOD dJ 00 0

SUB TOTAL Q
J

ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS

4 28 REMOVE DISPOSE EXISTING LF

CURB i

5 46 988 MILL 1 OF ASPHALT SY
cw

q 3 9 o

6 46 988 INSTALL 1 ASPHALTIC SY r 2 8 I q2 c O

CONCRETE SUPERPAVE TYPE SP l
9 5 INCLUDING TACK COAT

7 20 FURNISH INSTALL TYPE D LF
CC

000
v J

CURB J

8 17 FURNISH INSTALL TYPE F LF

CURB GU T TER

9 594 PROVIDE ASPHALT PAVEMENT SY rj
00

y5 2
00

RESTORATIONIUP TO AVERAGE 4
THICK SEE NOTE 1

10 14 ADJUST EXISTING VALVES EA
00

Li G V
0 J

Country Club Drive Milling and Resurfacing Outside Half of Right of Way
City of Aventura Bid No 14 02 18 2
CTA Project No 01 0103 171

Addendum No 1

2 13 2014

00410 4



11 6 ADJUST EXISTING STORM AND EA y Q
CYD

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

12 2 ADJUST EXISTING ELECTRICAL EA
MANHOLE

13 2 ADJUST EXISTING SANITARY EA
J pO

CLEANOUT

14 8 RESTORE EXISTING LOOP EA

o0

DETECTORS AND WIRELESS
VEHICLE DETECTORS

rr3 a
IS 12 RESTORE EXISTING WIRELESS EA 6

VEHICLE DETECTORS

16 4 RE SETTING OF EXISTING BRICK SY
Do

PAVERS

17 12 FURNISH INSTALL SIDEWALK SY

SUB TOTAL

PAVEMENT MARKINGS

18 1 FURNISH INSTALL PAVEMENT LS 5
MARKINGS THERMOPLASTIC

INCLUDING ARROWS MESSAGES

AND REFLECTIVE PAVEMENT

MARKERS

19 9 REMOVE AND RE INSTALL EA a 60
c

EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGN

20 6 REMOVE EXISTING SIGN AND EA
00

J
FURNISH INSTALL TRAFFIC

SIGN TO EXISTING POST

21 I FURNISH INSTALL TEMPORARY LS j

60

PAVEMENT MARKINGS

22 12 FURNISH INSTALL A NEW SIGN EA
et

00

j b
TO NEW POST

aJ

SUB TOTAL ica

Country Club Drive Milling and Resurfacing Outside Half of Right of Way
City of Aventura Bid No 14 02 18 2
CTA Project No 01 0103 171

Addendum No 1
2 13 2014

00410 5



23 l ALLOWANCE FOR CITY OF LS 34 000 34 000
AVENTURA POLICE DEPARTMENT
PRESENCE 40 HR

TOTAL BASE BID S 5G 3 5 j

O

NOTE 1 Includes replacement of existing asphaltic concrete pavement or flowable fill for an average

depth of 4 If the Contractor selects the use of flowable fill the top surface layer shall be at least I of

Superpave Type SP 9 5 asphaltic concrete

BIDDER understands and agrees that the Contract Price is lump sum to furnish and install all of the Work

complete in place The Schedule of Values is provided for the purpose of Bid Evaluation and when

initiated by the City the pricing of change orders Contractor s price will not be adjusted to reflect any

deviation from the Schedule of Values except to the extent that the City changes the scope of Project after
the Contract Date

Allowance Items will be paid based on the actual cost for each item Any allowance item or portion of an

allowance item that is not used shall be reconciled at the completion of the project and deleted from the

Contract

Country Club Drive Milling and Resurfacing Outside Halfof Right of Way
City of Aventura Bid No 14 02 1 8 2
CTA Project No 01 0103 171

Addendum No 1

2 13 2014

00410 6



SIGNATURE PAGE FOR A CORPORATION

V Corporatiofi Name

tdG

State of Incorporation

Name of Person Authorized to Sign

ca

C

SEA
ga

Attest
e

t tl tr

t v em S

Title

President

Business address q

Phone N 1 Facsimile 4

Country Club Drive Milling and Resurfacing Outside Half of Right of Way
City of Aventura Bid No 14 02 18 2
CTA Project No 01 0103 171

00410 9



CITY OF AVENTURA

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER

MEMORANDUM

TO City Commission

FROM Eric M Soroka ICMA CM FMa r

DATE February 13 2014

SUBJECT Recommended Appointment to Arts Cultural Center

Advisory Board

March 4 2014 City Commission Meeting Agenda Item 5 E

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Commission adopt the attached Resolution appointing
one member to the Arts Cultural Center Advisory Board to fill a current vacancy

BACKGROUND

As pervious discussed a vacancy currently exists on the seven member Arts Cultural

Center Advisory Board The vacancy was announced using the various communication
methods available to the City

PROCESS

The City received six 6 applications from many highly qualified individuals This made

the selection process a difficult one All the applicants were interviewed with the Mayor

present

After a careful review of the applicants and in accordance with the goals of the

Ordinance establishing the Board the Mayor is recommending the City Commission
appoint Renee Rotta to the Board

If you have any questions please feel free to contact me

EMS act

Attachment



r

09 12 2012 12 17 FAX 3059335954

0
CITY OF AVENTURA
APPLICATION FOR

ARTS CULTURAL CENTER ADVISORY BOARD

Five members of the Board shall be residents of the City and four remaining members may be from within
or outside the City limits Potential Board members shall have resided at their residence for a continuous
period of six months immediately prior to an appointment to the Board Applicants must have specific
experience and a strong commitment to performing arts including music dance the dramatic arts the
visual arts and the cultural arts

2001

wA l

Name of Applicant
eaa o t1

Address J r 7 f v 1 f o U

Home Phone 79 3 V6 l 90J Email Address

Business Name Sir o Tl P Ooccupation

Business Address e

Business Phone

Qualifi

Briefly specific expertise and or abilities you can contribute as a member of this Board

Please attach a resume along with your application

I understand that in accordance with the State of Florida Government in the Sunshine

Law this information may be made public I understand that all board appointments are
for voluntary uncompensated services and I will be subject to the requirements of the
Sttaate of Florida Financial Disclosure Requirements

Signature of Applicant Date

Fax Mail or E Mail completed application resume to

Office of the City Manager
Government Center

19200 West Country Club Drive Aventura FL 33180
305 466 8910 305 466 8919 fax

sorakaQCcbcitvofaventura com

The Ordinance Establishing the Arts Cultural Center Advisory Board Is available for review on
the City s web site at www citvofaventura com



09 12 2012 12 17 FAX 3059335954

Hello Eric

2002

It s been recommended by your colleague Steve Clark that we discuss my participating in
the Advisory Board for The Aventura Cultural Center

My brief resume is as follows
Graduate High School of Music and Art the Fame H5 New York Unversity B5 MA
Additional studies in Voice at Juilliard Manhattan School of Music 5alzburg Academy
Rubin Academy Jerusalem

Soprano Light Opera of Manhattan performing every Gilbert Sullivan operetta you can

imagine within a 5 year period

Administrative experience

New York City Opera and City Center Assistant Director of Education
Steinway Concert Series Fisher Island FL

Tanglewood Music Festival Pre concert lecturer for The Boston Symphony Orchestra
Served on numerous Boards

There s more but I didn t want to overwhelm you

I ve been an Aventura resident for the past 5 years and frankly think we could expand
the cultural offerings for our community We have an extraordinary venue and I m happy
to offer my help and expertise
My tel is 786 416 1808 It would be my pleasure to speak and or meet with you in
person

Very bes ds

Renee
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Renee

Z 003

I am in receipt of your e mail and appreciate your interest in volunteering at the Aventura Arts Cultural Center With

your background you may be a viable candidate for the Cultural Centers Advisory Board if you are interested
please get in touch with the City Manager Eric Soroka e mail esoroka@cityofaventura com

Thanks

Steve Clark

Aventura Arts Cultural Center

Phone 305 488 8002

3385 N E 188th Street

Aventura Florida 33180

Phone 305 466 8006

E mall sc ar Oayenturacentanorn

E mall sclar @irowardcenter org



RENEE ROTTA
Two Columbus Avenue Apt 7A

New York New York 10023

786 416 1808 reneerotta@gmail com

CURRENT PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Martin Bookspan s Memoirs My History in Broadcasting 2013 Present

Coordinator

Publication of a biography in progress by noted Live From Lincoln Center broadcaster Martin Bookspan
as told to Renee Rotta

BOSTON SYMPHONY ORCHESTRA TANGLEWOOD LENOX MA 2008 Present

Educator

Introduce groups of families and children of all ages to the Boston Symphony Orchestra through lectures
demonstrations and tours of Tanglewood

The Gateways Inn Cultural Series Lenox MA 2012 Present

Arts Administrator

Coordinate presenters Manage productions Oversee all public relations including press releases and media
exposure for artists throughout the Berkshire Region

EDUCATION AND CREDENTIALS

M A Arts in Education 1976

NEW YORK UNIVERSITY New York New York

B S Music Education and Music Therapy 1975
NEW YORK UNIVERSITY New York New York

High School of Music and Art 1970

Additional studies Manhattan School of Music voice major Mozarteum Salzburg Austria
Rubin Academy of Music Jerusalem Israel

Licensed Teacher music and Music Therapist NYC Department of Education and NYS Education
Department 1978

Professional Vocal Experience The Light Opera of Manhattan 1982 1988

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

National Children s Music Project West Stockbridge MA 2008 2011

Board Member Alumni Friends of LaGuardia High School of Music Art

and Performing Arts 2004 2005

Sunday Afternoons of Music Miami FL 2002 2004



RESOLUTION NO 2014

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA APPROVING THE

APPOINTMENT OF A MEMBER TO THE CITY OF

AVENTURA ARTS AND CULTURAL CENTER ADVISORY
BOARD TO FILL A VACANCY AND PROVIDING AN

EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS Section 2 191 of the Aventura City Code provides for the creation of
the Arts and Cultural Center Advisory Board and

WHEREAS there presently exists a vacancy in the seven member Board and

WHEREAS in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 11 of the Aventura

City Charter the City Commission wishes to provide for approval of the Mayor s
appointment of Renee Rotta to fill that vacancy

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA THAT

Section 1 The City Commission hereby approves the appointment by the
Mayor of the following individual to serve as a member of the Arts and Cultural Center
Advisory Board for a term of two years

Renee Rotta

Section 2 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its

adoption

The foregoing Resolution was offered by Commissioner who moved its

adoption The motion was seconded by Commissioner and upon being put to a
vote the vote was as follows

Commissioner Enbar Cohen

Commissioner Teri Holzberg
Commissioner Billy Joel
Commissioner Michael Stern

Commissioner Luz Urbaez Weinberg
Vice Mayor Howard Weinberg
Mayor Susan Gottlieb



Resolution No 2014

Page 2

PASSED AND ADOPTED this
4th

day of March 2014

SUSAN GOTTLIEB MAYOR

ATTEST

TERESA M SOROKA MMC

CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

CITY ATTORNEY



CITY OF AVENTURA

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM

TO City Commission

FROM Eric M Soroka ICMA CM City Manager 7
BY Brian K Raducci Finance Director

DATE February 20 2014

SUBJECT Comprehensive Annual Financial Report CAFR

Fiscal Year Ended September 30 2013

March 4 2014 City Commission Meeting Agenda Item

Recommendation

It is recommended that the City Commission approve the following motion

Motion to accept for filing of the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report CAFR for the fiscal year ended September 30 2013 and

the letter dated February 12 2014 attached hereto as Attachment
A

Background

The CAFR a letter from our independent auditors Keefe McCullough Co

LLP dated February 12 2014 and a staff prepared memorandum were

distributed to the City Commission on February 20 2014

The Rules of the Auditor General Chapter 10 550 require that the CAFR be

filed as an official record at a public meeting This motion satisfies that

requirement In addition the auditors have requested that their letter dated

February 12 2014 identified as Attachment A on the staff prepared

memorandum be accepted for filing with the City Commission

A representative from the auditing firm will be present at the March
4th

City
Commission meeting However since the CAFR is the City s responsibility I
respectfully request that any questions be discussed with the City Manager prior
to the meeting

BKR bkr



ATTACHMENT A

A LETTER FROM OUR INDEPENDENT AUDITORS KEEFE MCCULLOUGH CO LLP

DATED FEBRUARY 12 2014



I

Keefe McCullough Co LLP
Certified Public Accountants

February 12 2014

To the Honorable Mayor

Member of the City Commission and City Manager
City of Aventura Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities business type activities each

major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Aventura Florida the City
for the year ended September 30 2013 However we did not audit the financial statements of the City of
Aventura Police Officers Retirement Plan Pension Trust Fund which represent 100 of the total assets

net position and revenues of the fiduciary funds Those statements were audited by other auditors whose
report has been furnished to us and our opinion insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the City
of Aventura Police Officers Retirement Plan Pension Trust Fund is based solely on the report of the
other auditors Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our

responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards Government Auditing Standards and OMB
Circular A 133 as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit We

have cormnunicated such information in our engagement letter to you dated November 13 2013

Professional standards also require that we comrnunicate to you the following information related to our
audit

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects ofAccounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements No new

accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year
except for the implementation of GASB Statement No 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position and GASB Statement No 65 Items

Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the
year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus All significant transactions have been
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about

future events Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly
from those expected The most sensitive estimates affecting the City s financial statements were

Defined Benefit Pension Plan The net pension asset is calculated as the difference

between the annual required contribution and the actual contributions made by the City
The City with input from its pension actuary developed the actuarial assumptions based on
relevant criteria Management reviewed and approved the financial statements estimates
derived from the pension actuarial report

6550 N Federal Highway Suite 410 Fort Lauderdale FL 33308 954 771 0896 954 938 9353 F www kmccpa com
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Depreciation of capital assets Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis over the

respective estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 40 years The City has informed us
they used all relevant facts available to them at the time of acquisition to make the best
judgments about the depreciation methods and estimated useful lives of capital assets

Net OPEB Obligation In Florida state statutes require that the employer make health

insurance coverage available to retirees at the employer s group rate This creates an

implicit cost arising as a result of the blended rate premium since retiree health care costs
on average are higher than those of active employee healthcare costs In addition the

City s policy is to pay those premiums for certain department directors at retirement The
City obtained an actuarial valuation to record its estimated cost and liability in accordance
with the requirements of GASB Statement No 45 Accountingfor Financial Reporting by
Employers for Post Employment Benefits Other than Pensions OPEB

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used by management to develop and report the above
significant estimates in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as
a whole

The financial statement disclosures are neutral consistent and clear

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit other than those that are clearly trivial and com inunicate them to the appropriate level of
management There were no such misstatements identified during our audit

In addition we are responsible to communicate adjustments made to the financial statements arising
from our auditing procedures that could in our judgment have a significant effect on your current
financial reporting process There were no such adjustments identified during our audit

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter a disagreement with management is a financial accounting reporting or
auditing matter whether or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor s report We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management

representation letter dated February 12 2014

Management Consultations with Other Independent Auditors

In some cases management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters similar to obtaining a second opinion on certain situations If a consultation

involves application of an accounting principle to the City s financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor s opinion that may be expressed on those statements our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts To our
knowledge there were no such consultations with other accountants
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Other Audit Findings or Issues

We are to discuss with the City Commission any major issues discussed with management in
connection with our retention as auditors including the application of accounting principles or auditing
standards There were no issues discussed with management in connection with our retention as auditors

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form content and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period and the information is
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements We compared and reconciled
the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Commission and management of the City
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties

1 ee e ihc u6t h 9 Co Z1
KEEFE McCULLOUGH CO LLP
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February 12 2014

City of

Aventurit
Government Center

19200 West Country Club Drive
Aventura Florida 33180

SUSAN GOTTLIEB

MAYOR

COMMISSIONERS

ENBAR COHEN

TERIHOLZBERG

BILLY JOEL

MICHAEL STERN

HOWARD WEINBERG

To the Honorable Mayor
LUZ URBAEZ WEINBERG

Members of the City Commission
ERIC M SOROKA ICMA CM

and Citizens of the

City of Aventura Florida
CITY MANAGER

In accordance with Section 11 45 Florida Statutes and Section 4 11 of the City of Aventura the City Charter submitted
herewith is the City s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report the CAFR for the fiscal year ended September 30 2013

The financial statements included in this report conform to the generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
GAAP as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board GASB The City is responsible for the

accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation including all disclosures The financial

statements have been audited by Keefe McCullough Co LLP C P A s The independent auditors have issued an

unmodified opinion that this report fairly presents the financial position of the City and complies with all reporting standards
noted above

The contents of this report are aimed at compliance with GASB pronouncements including Statement No 34 requiring the
preparation of government wide financial statements on a full accrual basis of accounting for all funds and including
Management s Discussion and Analysis Also included are additional and enhanced Statistical Tables required by GASB
Statement No 44

THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

The City was incorporated on November 7 1995 and is a political subdivision of the State of Florida The City operates
under a commission manager form of government and provides General Government Public Safety and Community
Services to its residents and business community The Mayor and six 6 Commissioners are responsible for establishing
the City s policies The Mayor and Commission appoint the City Manager who is the Chief Administrative Officer of the City
and is responsible for implementing policies adopted by the Commission

This report includes all of the funds for which the City is financially accountable Although the Miami Dade Board of County
Commissioners Miami Dade District School Board South Florida Water Management District and Florida Inland Navigation

District levy and collect taxes on property located within the City s corporate limits financial information on these taxing
authorities is not included in this report since each has a separate elected governing body are legally separate and are
fiscally independent of the City Annual financial reports of these units of government are available upon request from each
authority

PHONE 305 466 8900 FAX 305 466 8939

www cityofaventura com



ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

The City serves an area of approximately 4 square miles with a population of nearly 38 000 residents Prior to

incorporation the City received services from Miami Dade County the County as a part of their unincorporated

municipal services taxing unit The City received no real property facilities or equipment from the County upon
incorporation

Fiscal Year 2013

The City s combination of upscale residential Aventura Mall and commercial developments resulted in a taxable value of
approximately 7 5 billion within a land area of less than 4 square miles After years of decline due to the economic

recession the City s taxable value had increased again for the second consecutive year and overall property values had
shown a modest increase During the year we continued to see positive signs that the local economy had improved as
the number of building permits and applications for commercial and residential projects increased Importantly these new
projects will produce jobs for the local economy The City s population surpassed 37 000 residents

MAJOR INITIATIVES

In the continued effort in making the maintenance of its infrastructure a priority the City completed the following major
capital improvements during fiscal year 2013

Country Club Drive Right Turn Lane at 34th Avenue
Country Club Drive Northbound Road Resurfacing
Traffic Signal Installation Intersection of NE 185th NE 28th Court

In addition the following major capital improvements were in process at the end of fiscal year 2013
Biscayne Boulevard Decorative Lighting Improvements Phase III IV

Admiral s Port Crosswalk Safety Improvements

At the end of fiscal year 2013 the Government Center Parking Expansion project was 95 complete This project

consisted of constructing a new parking garage containing three levels adjacent to the Government Center to
accommodate additional parking

The Aventura Arts Cultural Center completed its third season and has become the cultural heart of the City since
opening in 2010 Thousands have enjoyed a wide range of shows in this beautiful waterfront facility

Since its opening on August 25 2003 the Aventura Charter Elementary School School has achieved several

milestones in the City s short history The School was the first within the City s boundaries and the first municipal
sponsored charter school in Miami Dade County The 2012 13 school year represented the 10th year of operations of the
School The School has been well received and has been at full capacity since its inception The School has obtained
academic success receiving an A grade issued by the State of Florida for the past nine 9 years The School served
984 students in the 2012 13 school year and will serve 996 students in the 2013 14 school year

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Intemal Accounting Control

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP Internal control
is designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that these objectives are met The concept of reasonable

assurance recognizes that 1 the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and 2 the
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework We believe that the City s internal accounting controls
adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions



Budqetary Control

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for all governmental funds with the exception of the Charter School Fund
Federal Forfeiture Fund and Law Enforcement Trust Fund Special Revenue Funds and the Capital Projects Fund which
was established in fiscal year 2013 In accordance with City Ordinance appropriations are legally controlled at the
Department level Encumbrance accounting under which purchase orders and other commitments for the expenditure of
funds are recorded in the accounting records and is utilized throughout the fiscal year

Overview of Financial Activity

The accompanying financial statements reflect that the City has continued to expand its services to meet the demands of
its residential and business communities A summary of the major financial activities is included in the Management
Discussion Analysis Section of this report

Fund Balances

In fiscal year 2011 the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board GASB Statement No 54 Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions for its governmental activities GASB Statement No 54

establishes various classifications of fund balance based on a hierarchy which details constraints placed on the use of
resources by creditors grantors contributors laws or regulations of other governments and those internally imposed
Fund balances classified as restricted are those with externally enforceable limitations on use Fund balances classified
as committed can only be used for specific purposes determined by formal action of the City Commission through an
ordinance Commitments can only be changed or lifted only by the City Commission through formal action Assigned

fund balances are amounts that the City intends to use for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed
The intent to utilize these funds is delegated to the City Manager Unassigned fund balance can be viewed as the net
resources available at the end of the year

Retirement Programs

The City contributed to four 4 defined contribution pension plans based on employee classifications created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 401 a The plans currently cover all full time employees of the City
Under these plans the City contributes between 7 and an amount equal to the annual IRS maximum depending on the
employee classification There are no employee contributions Employer contributions for the fiscal year ended

September 30 2013 were approximately 709 500

A defined contribution pension plan provides pension benefits in return for services rendered provides an individual
account for each participant and specifies how contributions to the individual s account are to be determined instead of
specifying the amount of benefits the individual is to receive Under a defined contribution pension plan the benefits a

participant will receive depend solely on the amount contributed to the participant s account the returns earned on
investments on those contributions and forfeitures of other participant s benefits that may be reallocated to such
participant s account

In order to encourage employees to supplement the defined contribution plan a deferred compensation program is also

available to all full time employees Under this program employees may voluntarily elect to defer a portion of their salary
to future years Both programs are administered by the ICMA Retirement Corporation under a trust agreement The plan
assets are separate and the City does not exercise any control or fiduciary responsibility over the assets Therefore the
assets liabilities and transactions are not included in the City s financial statements

As discussed in the Notes to the Financial Statements the City through collective bargaining with the City s police officers
agreed to establish a defined benefit retirement program covering all sworn officers This program is funded by a
combination of City and employee contributions and state insurance premium taxes Please see Note 12 in the Notes to
the Financial Statements for a detailed discussion of the retirement program

Financinq Programs and Debt Administration

The City currently has four 4 outstanding long term debt issues At September 30 2013 the principal balance

outstanding totaled 27 215 000

The Series 2000 Revenue Bonds are bank qualified debt secured solely by a covenant to budget and appropriate the
required debt service payments each year This loan is structured the same as a serial bond issue with principal

payments due on October 151 and semi annual interest payments due on April 151 and October 1st of each year with the

final maturity on October 1 2020 Debt service requirements average approximately 535 000 per year over the 20 year
life of the obligation The interest rate is locked at 5 04

iii



The Series 2010 Refunding Revenue Bonds are bank qualified debt secured solely by a covenant to budget and
appropriate the required debt service payments each year This loan is structured the same as a serial bond issue with
principal payments due on April 151 and semi annual interest payments due on April 1st and October 1s of each year with

the final maturity on April 1 2029 Debt service requirements average approximately 751 000 per year over the 19 year
life of the obligation The interest rate is locked at 3 42

The Series 2011 Refunding Revenue Bonds are bank qualified debt secured solely by a covenant to budget and
appropriate the required debt service payments each year This loan is structured the same as a serial bond issue with
principal payments due on April 1st and semi annual interest payments due on April 15t and October 1st of each year with

the final maturity on April 1 2029 Debt service requirements average approximately 406 000 per year over the 19 year
life of the obligation The interest rate is locked at 3 64

The Series 2012 Refunding Revenue Bonds are bank qualified debt secured solely by a covenant to budget and
appropriate the required debt service payments each year This loan is structured the same as a serial bond issue with

principal payments due August 151 and semi annual interest payments due on February 1 and August 1s1 of each year
with the final maturity on August 1 2027 Debt service requirements average approximately 779 000 per year over the
15 year life of the obligation The interest rate is locked at 2 18

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

In accordance with Section 11 45 3 a 4 Florida Statutes and Article I Section 4 11 of the City Charter the City
engaged the firm of Keefe McCullough Co LLP to perform the independent audit of the City s accounts and records
The independent auditor s reports are included in the Financial section

Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada GFOA awarded a Certificate of

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Aventura for its comprehensive annual financial report for
the fiscal year ended September 30 2012 This was the seventeenth consecutive year that the City has achieved this
prestigious award In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement a government must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only We believe that our current comprehensive annual
financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program s requirements and we are submitting it to the
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate

Acknowledgements

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of the entire Finance Department We express our appreciation to all members of the Department who assisted
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Keefe McCullough Co LLP
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor

Members of the City Commission and City Manager
City of Aventura Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities the

business type activities each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Aventura Florida the City as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30 2013 and the

related notes to the financial statements which collectively comprise the City s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents

Management s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America this

includes the design implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to
fraud or error

Auditor s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit We did

not audit the financial statements of the City of Aventura Police Officers Retirement Plan Pension
Trust Fund which represent 100 of the assets net position and revenues of the fiduciary funds
Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us and our

opinion insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the City of Aventura Police Officers
Retirement Plan Pension Trust Fund is based solely on the report of the other auditors We

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor s judgment

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due
to fraud or error In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity s internal control Accordingly we express no such opinion An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinions

655C N Federal Highway N Suite 410 Fort Lauderdale FL 33308 4 954 771 0896 954 938 9353 F L www kmccpo com



City of Aventura Florida

Opinions

In our opinion based on our audit and the report of other auditors the financial statements
referred to above present fairly in all material respects the respective financial position of the
governmental activities the business type activities each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City as of September 30 2013 and the respective changes in financial
position and where applicable cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management s discussion and analysis and the schedules of funding progress for pension and other
post employment benefits and contributions from the employer and the State of Florida on pages 4

through 13 and 58 through 59 respectively be presented to supplement the basic financial statements
Such information although not a part of the basic financial statements is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial

reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational economic or

historical context We and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required

supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management s responses to our
inquiries the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or

provide any assurance

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City s basic financial statements The introductory section other financial
information budgetary comparison schedules and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements The schedule of

expenditures of Federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U S
Office of Management and Budget Circular A 133 Audits of States Local Governments and Non
Profit Organizations and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements

The other financial information budgetary comparison schedules and schedule of expenditures of
Federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements Such

information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves and other additional procedures in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America In our opinion the other

financial information budgetary comparison schedules and schedule of expenditures of Federal

awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly we do not express an opinion or

provide any assurance on them

2



City of Aventura Florida

Other Reports Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also issued our report dated February
12 2014 on our consideration of the City s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws regulations contracts and grant agreements and other
matters The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance

Kee e Wfc C t1ouqA Co LLB

KEEFE McCULLOUGH CO LLP

Fort Lauderdale Florida

February 12 2014
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30 2013

As management of the City of Aventura the City we offer readers of the City s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the City s financial activities for the
fiscal year ended September 30 2013 We encourage readers to consider the information
presented herein in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal which can be found on pages i
through iv of this report All amounts unless otherwise indicated are expressed in thousands of
dollars

Financial Highlights

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close
of the most recent fiscal year by 111 9 million net position Of this amount 38 4

million represents unrestricted net position which may be used to meet the government s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors

The City s total net position increased by 2 1 million over the course of this year s
operations Net position of our business type activities decreased by 0 02 million and

the net position of our governmental activities increased by 2 2 million

At the close of the current fiscal year the City s governmental funds reported combined
fund balances of 41 6 million a decrease of 2 5 million in comparison with the prior
year Approximately 35 of this amount 14 5 million is available for spending at the
government s discretion unassigned fund balance

At the end of the current fiscal year unrestricted fund balance the total of committed
assigned and unassigned components of fund balance for the General Fund was 36 2

million or approximately 105 of total General Fund expenditures

Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial section of this annual report consists of four 4 parts management s

discussion and analysis this section the basic financial statements required supplementary

information and other financial information that presents combining and individual fund financial
statements and budgetary comparison schedules

I MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS I

I BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS I

Government Wide Full Accrual

Governmental Activities

Business Type Activities

No Fiduciary Activities

Fund

Governmental Modified Accrual

Proprietary Full Accrual
Fiduciary Full Accrual

I Notes to the Financial Statements I

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Supplementary Information Combining Fund Financial
Statements Budgetary Comparison Schedules

EI



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30 2013

Major Features of the Basic Financial Statements

Basic Financial Statements

Government wide financial statements The focus of the government wide financial

statements is on the City s overall financial position and its activities Reporting is similar to that
of a private sector business The government wide financial statements report information about

the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer questions about the City s
financial health and whether the current year activities contributed positively or negatively to that
health

The City s government wide financial statements include the statement of net position and
statement of activities As described below these statements do not include the City s fiduciary
activities because resources of these funds cannot be used to finance the City s activities
However the financial statements of fiduciary activities are included in the City s fund financial
statements because the City is financially accountable for those resources even though they belong
to other parties

The Statement of Net Position presents financial information on the assets held and
liabilities owed by the City both long and short term as well its deferred outflows inflows
of resources Assets are reported when acquired by the City and liabilities are reported
when they are incurred regardless of the timing of the related cash flows to acquire these
assets or liquidate such liabilities For example the City reports buildings and
infrastructure as assets even though they are not available to pay the obligations incurred by
the City On the other hand the City reports liabilities such as other post employment
benefits even though these liabilities might not be paid until several years into the future

Deferred outflows inflows of resources represent the consumption acquisition respectively
of net position that applies to a future period s

Government Wide

Financial Statements Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds

Scope Entire City government Activities of the City that Activities of the Ciry that Instances in which the City
except fiduciary activities are not proprietary or are operated similar to is the trustee or agent for

fiduciary private business someone else s resources

Required financial Statement of net position Balance sheet Statement of net position Statement of net position
statements Statement of activities Statement of revenues Statement of revenues Statement of changes in

expenditures and net expenses and changes in net position

changes in fund balances net position

Statement of cash flows

Accounting basis and Accrual accounting and Modified accrual Accrual accounting and Accrual accounting and
Measurement focus economic resources focus accounting and current economic resources focus economic resources focus

financial resources focus

Type of asset All assets and liabilities Only assets expected to be All assets and liabilities All assets and liabilities

liability and both financial and capital used up and liabilities that both financial and capital both short term and long
deferred and short term and long come due during the year and short term and long term It also includes the

outflows inflows term It also includes the to soon thereafter no term It also includes the consumption and the

information consumption and the capital assets and long consumption and the acquisition of net position

acquisition of net position term liabilities are acquisition of net position that applies to future

that applies to future included It also includes that applies to future period s

period s the consumption and the period s

acquisition of net position

that applies to future

period s

Basic Financial Statements

Government wide financial statements The focus of the government wide financial

statements is on the City s overall financial position and its activities Reporting is similar to that
of a private sector business The government wide financial statements report information about

the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer questions about the City s
financial health and whether the current year activities contributed positively or negatively to that
health

The City s government wide financial statements include the statement of net position and
statement of activities As described below these statements do not include the City s fiduciary
activities because resources of these funds cannot be used to finance the City s activities
However the financial statements of fiduciary activities are included in the City s fund financial
statements because the City is financially accountable for those resources even though they belong
to other parties

The Statement of Net Position presents financial information on the assets held and
liabilities owed by the City both long and short term as well its deferred outflows inflows
of resources Assets are reported when acquired by the City and liabilities are reported
when they are incurred regardless of the timing of the related cash flows to acquire these
assets or liquidate such liabilities For example the City reports buildings and
infrastructure as assets even though they are not available to pay the obligations incurred by
the City On the other hand the City reports liabilities such as other post employment
benefits even though these liabilities might not be paid until several years into the future

Deferred outflows inflows of resources represent the consumption acquisition respectively
of net position that applies to a future period s



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30 2013

The difference between the City s total assets deferred outflows of resources total

liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is net position Over time increases or decreases in

net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the City s financial position is improving or
deteriorating Although the City s purpose is not to accumulate net position in general as this
amount increases it indicates that the City s financial position is improving over time

The Statement of Activities presents the revenues and expenses of the City The items
presented on the statement of activities are measured in a manner similar to the approach
used in the private sector in that revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
reported when incurred Accordingly revenues are reported even when they may not be
collected for several months after the end of the accounting period and expenses are
recorded even though they may not have used cash during the current period

Both of the government wide financial statements distinguish City functions that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue governmental activities from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees
and charges business type activities The City s governmental activities include general
government public safety and community services The City s business type activities include
stormwater utility

Fund financial statements Unlike government wide financial statements the focus of

fund financial statements is directed to specific activities of the City rather than the City as a
whole Except for the General Fund separate funds are established to maintain control over

resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives The City like other state
and local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance
related legal requirements All of the funds of the City can be divided into three 3 categories
governmental funds proprietary funds and fiduciary funds

Governmental funds Financial statements consist of a balance sheet and a statement of
revenues expenditures and changes in fund balances These statements are prepared on an

accounting basis that is significantly different from that used to prepare the government wide
financial statements

In general these financial statements have a short term emphasis and for the most part

measure and account for cash and other assets that can easily be converted to cash For example

amounts reported on the balance sheet include items such as cash and receivables but do not

include capital assets such as land and buildings The difference between the fund s total assets

deferred outflows of resources total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is fund balance

and generally indicates the amount that can be used to finance the next fiscal year s activities The

operating statement for governmental funds reports only those revenues that were collected during
the current period or very shortly after the end of the year Expenditures are recorded when

incurred

For the most part the balances and activities accounted for in governmental funds are also
reported in the governmental activities columns of the government wide financial statements

However because different accounting basis are used to prepare governmental fund financial
statements and government wide financial statements there are often significant differences

between the totals presented For this reason there is an analysis after the governmental funds
balance sheet that reconciles the total fund balances for all governmental funds to the amount of
net position presented in the governmental activities column on the statement of net position

Also there is an analysis after the statement of revenues expenditures and changes in fund

balances that reconciles the total change in fund balances for all governmental funds to the change
in net position as reported in the governmental activities column in the statement of activities

2



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30 2013

Proprietary funds Financial statements consist of a statement of net position statement
of revenues expenses and changes in net position and statement of cash flows These statements

are prepared on an accounting basis that is similar to the basis used to prepare the government
wide financial statements For financial reporting purposes proprietary funds are grouped into
Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds

The City uses Enterprise Funds to account for business type activities that charge fees to
customers for the use of specific goods or services These funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business type activities in the government wide financial statements
Internal Service funds are used to account for services provided and billed on an internal basis

The City does not have any Internal Service Funds

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government wide financial
statements only in more detail The City has one major enterprise fund the Stormwater Utility
fund A statement of cash flows is presented at the fund financial statement level for proprietary
funds but no equivalent statement is presented in the government wide financial statements for
either governmental activities or business type activities

Fiduciary funds Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government wide financial
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City s own
programs Fiduciary financial statements consist of a statement of net position and a statement of
changes in net position The City reports one fiduciary fund to account for the Police Officers
Retirement Plan Fund

Notes to the financial statements The notes provide additional information that is

essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government wide and fund financial
statements

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes this report also

presents certain required supplementary information concerning various issues such as a
comparison between the City s adopted and final budget and actual financial results for its General
Fund and major special revenue funds if applicable The City adopts an annual appropriated
budget for its governmental funds A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for the
General Fund and major special revenue funds if applicable to demonstrate compliance with this
budget Required supplementary information is also presented for the City s defined benefit
pension plan including a schedule of funding progress and schedule of employer and State of
Florida contributions as well as a schedule of funding progress for other post employment benefits

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Budgetary Schedules

Combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental
internal service and fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the required

supplementary information Additional budgetary schedules are presented in this section
including as applicable nonmajor special revenue funds debt services funds and capital projects
funds

VA



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30 2013

Government Wide Financial Analysis

The table below presents a summary of net position as of September 30 2013 and 2012
derived from the government wide Statement of Net Position

Current and other assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Total deferred outflows

of resources

Long term liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net position

Net investment in

capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

Net Position in thousands

Governmental Business Type

Activities Activities Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

46 703 48 108 1 747 1 473 48 450 49 581

90 942 87 374 6 829 7 127 97 771 94 501

137 645 135 482 8 576 8 600 146 221 144 082

568 608 SFR FnR

30 036 31 536 30 036 31 536

4 849 3 392 43 44 4 892 3 436

34 885 34 928 43 44 34 928 34 972

63 727 59 177 6 829 7 127 70 556 66 304

2 910 2 240 2 910 2 240

36 691 39 745 1 704 1 429 38 395 41 174

103 328 101 162 8 533 8 556 111 861 109 718

As noted earlier net position may serve over time as a useful indication of a government s
financial position At the close of the most recent fiscal year the City s assets and deferred
outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities by approximately 112 million

The largest component of the City s net position is net investment in capital assets and is
63 of total net position This category reflects its investment in capital assets net of any
outstanding related debt used to acquire these assets The City uses these capital assets to provide
services to the citizens of the City consequently this component of net position is not available for
future spending Although the capital assets are shown net of debt it should be noted that the

resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources The next largest portion

of the City s net position is unrestricted and is 34 of total net position Unrestricted net position

represents resources that are available for spending Restricted net position represents 3 of total

net position Restricted net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on

how they can be used

Capital assets and net investment in capital assets increased approximately 3 6 million

and 4 6 million respectively in the governmental activities primarily due to the net effect of
new capital infrastructure projects increase in accumulated depreciation disposal of equipment
and decrease in related debt Current and other assets and unrestricted net position in the

governmental activities decreased by approximately 1 4 million and 3 1 million respectively
due to the decrease in cash cash equivalent and investments primarily used to self finance the
acquisition and construction of the new capital infrastructure projects of the City There were no

significant changes in business type activities



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
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September 30 2013

Over time increases and decreases in net position measure whether the City s financial
position is improving or deteriorating In the current fiscal year property taxes increased by

0 36 million as the assessed value of our taxable property increased modestly over the prior year
coupled with no change in our ad valorem millage rate We also experienced increases in the

following revenue categories utility tax electric 0 27 million unified communications tax

0 17 million state revenue sharing 0 10 million and half cent sales tax 0 13 million as the

economy continued to show some signs of recovery

The table below presents a summary of changes in net position for the years ended
September 30 2013 and 2012 as derived from the government wide Statement of Activities

Changes in Net Position in thousands

Governmental Business Type

Activities Activities Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues

Program revenues

Charges for services 6 981 7 035 847 893 7 828 7 928

Operating grants and
contributions 7 324 7 032 7 324 7 032

Capital grants and

contributions 724 677 724 677

General revenues

Property taxes 12 080 11 724 12 080 11 724

Utility service taxes 7 552 7 772 7 552 7 772

Franchise fees 2 824 3 070 2 824 3 070

Intergovernmental revenues 5 239 4 917 5 239 4 917

Other revenues 1 319 481 2 4 1 321 485

Total revenues 44 043 42 708 849 897 44 892 43 605

Expenses

General government 5 117 4 977 5 117 4 977

Public safety 19 777 19 571 19 777 19 571

Community services 16 006 15 188 16 006 15 188

Interest and fiscal charges 977 1 187 977 1 187

Stormwater utility 872 758 872 758

Total expenses 41 877 40 923 872 758 42 749 41 681

Increase in net position

before transfers 2 166 1 785 23 139 2 143 1 924

Transfers

Change in net position 2 166 1 785 23 139 2 143 1 924

Net position beginning of year 101 162 99 377 8 556 8 417 109 718 107 794

Net position end of year 103 328 101 162 8 533 8 556 111 861 109 718

Financial Analysis of the City of Aventura s Funds

As noted earlier the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance related legal requirements
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30 2013

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City s governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows
outflows and balances of spendable resources Such information is useful in assessing the City s
financing requirements In particular unrestricted fund balance committed assigned and

unassigned may serve as a useful measure of a government s net resources available for spending
at the end of the fiscal year

The General Fund is the City s chief operating fund At end of the current fiscal year
unrestricted fund balance of the General Fund was 36 2 million while the total fund balance
reached 36 5 million Much of the unrestricted fund balance will be utilized in future years to

continue to fund various capital needs and to maintain a hurricane emergency and disaster
recovery reserve As a measure of the General Fund s liquidity it may be useful to compare both
unrestricted fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund expenditures Unrestricted

fund balance and total fund balance represent approximately 105 of total general fund
expenditures Approximately 40 of the General Fund total fund balance 14 5 million
constitutes unassigned fund balance which is available for spending at the government s
discretion

The fund balance of the City s General Fund decreased by 3 1 million during the current
fiscal year Key factors of this net decrease include the planned use of fund balance to finance the
following capital projects

3 3 million to construct the Government Center Parking Garage containing three levels
adjacent to the Government Center to accommodate additional parking

Nearly 2 million to upgrade the Police Department P25 Radio System Only 1 million

actually expensed at year end with the remaining 1 million encumbered and automatically
reappropriated into fiscal year 2014 so that the project could be completed in January 2014

The Charter School Fund is used to record the operations of the Aventura City of
Excellence School The School s intergovernmental revenues increased by approximately 0 4

million due to the State Legislature increase in funding for education approximately 2 in FTE
revenues In addition the departmentalization of the fourth grade allowed increasing the school s
capacity by 12 students from 972 to 984 in the 2012 13 school year Additionally expenditures
increased 0 3 million primarily as a result of teachers salary increases based on the revised pay
plan and the services award based on years of service In addition the departmentalization of the
fourth grade added a new full time teacher position

The Street Maintenance Fund is used to record the operations of the street maintenance and

construction costs which are designated by State Statute Debt Service Fund 2000 Series is used

to record principal retirement and did not have any significant changes from the prior year

Proprietary Fund

The proprietary fund showed approximately a 23 000 decrease in net position from the

prior year Total revenues remained at a similar level and expenses increased by approximately
114 000 due to an increase in cost of sales and services

Le
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year the original budget was amended and revenues and expenditures were
increased by approximately 4 22 million as follows

0 3 18 million related to the reappropriation of remaining capital funds from fiscal year
2012 for various capital projects which were either incomplete or assigned at the end of
that fiscal year

0 27 million related to the increase in building permit activity

0 52 million related to operational overages in various departments which were offset by
additional revenue

0 25 million related to capital outlay overages in various departments which were offset
by additional revenue

During the year revenues exceeded budgetary estimates and expenditures were less than
budgetary estimates resulting in the net utilization of fund balance of approximately 3 1 million

As explained earlier much of the unrestricted fund balance will continue to be utilized in future
years to fund various capital needs Utility service taxes franchise fees intergovernmental

revenues licenses and permits charges for services and fines and forfeitures revenue exceeded

the revised budget by 0 3 million 0 04 million 0 3 million 0 1 million 0 2 million
and 0 4 respectively Nondepartmental capital outlay was approximately 14 4 million less

than budgeted because the City budgets a reserve for future capital expenditures which accounts
for a significant portion of the appropriated beginning fund balance

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

As of September 30 2013 and 2012 the City had 97 7 and 94 5 respectively invested
in a variety of capital assets as reflected in the following schedule

Capital assets in thousands net of depreciation

Debt Administration

As of year end the City had 27 215 million in debt outstanding compared to the
28 805 million last year a 5 5 decrease All debt is secured only by a covenant to budget and

appropriate

Governmental Business Type

Activities Activities Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Land 17 102 17 102 17 102 17 102

Buildings 32 956 34 197 32 956 34 197

Improvements other than buildings 8 152 8 033 8 152 8 033

Furniture machinery and equipment 3 770 3 644 3 770 3 644

Infrastructure 22 829 23 823 6 829 7 127 29 658 30 950

Construction in progress 6 133 575 6 133 575

Total 90 942 87 374 6 829 7 127 97 771 94 501

Additional information can be found in Note 6 Capital Assets

Debt Administration

As of year end the City had 27 215 million in debt outstanding compared to the
28 805 million last year a 5 5 decrease All debt is secured only by a covenant to budget and

appropriate
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The debt position of the City is summarized below and is more fully explained in Note 7

Bonded Debt and Notes Payable in thousands

Governmental Business Type

Activities Activities Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Non Ad Valorem bonds S 27 215 S 28 805 S S 27 215 S 28 805

Economic Factors and Next Year s Budgets and Rates

The State of Florida by constitution does not have a state personal income tax and

therefore the State operates primarily using sales gasoline and corporate income taxes Local

governments cities counties school boards primarily rely on property and a limited array of
permitted other taxes utility taxes franchise fees and occupational licenses as well as

intergovernmental revenues for their governmental activities For business type activities and
certain governmental activities construction services and recreational programs the user pays a

related fee or charge associated with the service

The adopted operating and capital budget for fiscal year 2014 totals approximately 52 3
million 9 9 lower than the final operating and capital budget for fiscal year 2013 This was due

primarily to the completion of major capital projects in the current fiscal year Operating costs
were limited to a 3 6 increase as compared to the previous year A major portion of the increase
is attributed to a 10 increase or 200 000 in health insurance premiums The budget maintains

our current level for all City services except funding for recreational special events have been
increased to add more family events The model of privatizing many service areas of the City s
operations over the years has served the City well and has allowed for a more cost effective
service delivery system as compared to the traditional government structure This along with
implementing various energy saving measures throughout the organization assisted greatly in
reducing our overall cost increases The City s Go Green efforts continue to be been very
beneficial in keeping our operating costs down

After years of decline due to the economic recession the City s taxable value has increased
again for the second consecutive year and overall property values have shown a modest increase
This year the City experienced a 3 8 increase in property values The new value of 7 786

Billion is still sharply down from the pre recession value of 9 609 Billion

Recently we have witnessed positive signs that the local economy has shown some
improvement Many of the shopping centers along Biscayne Boulevard have completed major
renovations and added new stores New residential construction is on the upswing for the first time
in five years The number of building permits and applications for commercial and residential
projects are on the upswing Importantly these new projects will produce jobs for the local

economy The new construction values rose less than one million in value Although the local
economy has made strides we need to continue to remain prudent and conservative in our

financial management of the City

Strong fiscal policies and prudent budgeting have enabled the City to maintain the lowest
tax rate in the County while providing high quality services to our residents In order to continue
this philosophy the following principles guided the preparation of the 2013 2014 budget 1 limit
the overall operating costs increase to 4 while maintaining the current service levels and
programs 2 not increasing the tax rate 3 bridge the revenue gap by utilizing reserve funds to
support nonrecurring capital improvements and 4 develop conservative revenue estimates and
ensure that expenditure levels are maintained within the projected revenue amounts
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Our mission is to join with our community to make Aventura a city of the highest quality
and a city of excellence We do this by providing responsive cost effective and innovative local
government services

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens taxpayers customers and investors

and creditors with a general overview of the City s finances and to demonstrate the City s
accountability If you should have any questions pertaining to the information presented in this
report or would like additional information please contact the City s Finance Director at 19200
W Country Club Drive Aventura Florida 33180
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30 2013

ASSETS

Cash cash equivalents and investments

Receivables net of allowance for uncollectibles
Due from other governments

Prepaid expenses

Inventories

Net pension asset

Restricted cash cash equivalents and investments
Capital assets

Nondepreciable

Depreciable net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred charge on refunding

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Retainage payable

Due to other governments

Unearned revenues

Accrued interest payable

Due within one year

Compensated absences payable

Bonds payable

Due in more than one year

Compensated absences payable

Bonds payable

OPEB obligation

Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for

Community services
Public safety
Debt service

Unrestricted

Total net position

Governmental

Activities

44 019 255

686 427

1 018 133

273 704

11 352

193 330

500 657

23 234 997

67 707 122

137 644 977

Business Type

Activities

1 610 539

136 641

6 829 449

8 576 629

45 629 794

686 427

1 154 774

273 704

11 352

193 330

500 657

23 234 997
4 Z

146 221 606

568 389 568 389

568 389 568 389

2 560 966 43 467 2 604 433

1 345 678 1 345 678

153 766 153 766

3 324 3 324

751 806 751 806

33 772 33 772

639 459 639 459

1 675 000 1 675 000

1 918 375 1 918 375

25 540 000 25 540 000

263 000 263 000

34 885 146 43 467 34 928 613

63 727 119 6 829 449 70 556 568

1 727 550 1 727 550

871 518 871 518

311 384 311 384

36 690 649 1 703 713 38 394 362

103 328 220 8 533 162 111 861 382

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

FUNCTIONS PROGRAMS
Governmental activities

General government

Public safety
Community services
Interest and fiscal charges

Total governmental activities

Business type activities

Stormwater utility

Total

Expenses

5 116 689

19 776 833

16 006 410

976 609

41 876 541

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Services Contributions Contributions

5 276 699

1 704 529

6 981 228

12 670

193 040

7 118 131

7 323 841

872 010 846 921

42 748 551 7 828 149 7 323 841

General revenue

Taxes

Ad valorem taxes

Utility service taxes
Franchise fees

Intergovernmental not restricted for specific purposes

Interest income

Impact fees

Miscellaneous

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position beginning of year as restated Note 14

Net position end of year

194 382

529 615

723 997

723 997

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Net Revenue Expense and

Chanize in Net Position

Governmental Business Type

7 551 899

Activities Activities Total

5 104 019 5 104 019

14 112 712 14 112 712

6 654 135 6 654 135
976 609 976 609

26 847 475 26 847 475

25 089 25 089

26 847 475 25 089 26 872 564

12 080 224 12 080 224

7 551 899 7 551 899

2 823 490 2 823 490

5 238 710 5 238 710

65 726 2 436 68 162

655 743 655 743

597 916 597 916

29 013 708 2 436 29 016 144

2 166 233 22 653 2 143 580

101 161 987

103 328 220

8 555 815

8 533 162

109 717 802

111 861 382
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30 2013

Debt

Service

Charter Street Fund Nonmajor Total

General School Maintenance Series Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund 2000 Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

and investments 38 211 166 2 452 300 1 551 993 S 79 634 1 724 162 S 44 019 255

Restricted cash cash equivalents

and investments 500 533 124 500 657

Accounts receivable net 633 004 53 423 686 427

Due from other governments 688 370 8 391 316 676 4 696 1 018 133

Inventories 11 352 11 352

Prepaid expenditures 273 704 273 704

Total assets 39 817 596 2 460 691 1 868 669 580 167 S 1 782 405 S 46 509 528

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable S 1 906 501 125 618 192 383 S 336 464 S 2J60 966

Accrued liabilities 495 292 178 448 416 224 255 714 1 345 678

Retainage payable 150 634 3 132 153 766

Due to other governments 3 324 3 324

Unearned revenues 751 806 751 806

Total liabilities 3 304 233 307 390 195 515 416 224 592 178 4 815 540

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue intergovernmental 86 537 30 335 116 872

Total deferred inflows of resources 86 537 30 335 116 872

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable

Inventories 11 352 11 352

Prepaid expenditures 273 704 273 704

Restricted for

Community services 1 586 617 140 933 1 727 550

Public safety 871 518 871 518

Debt service 163 943 147 441 311 384

Committed to

Capital reserves 14 773 488 14 773 488

Hurricane emergency and disaster

recovery operating reserves 5 000 000 5 000 000

Assigned to

Charter school operations 2 153301 2 153 301

Subsequent year s budget 1 995 152 1 995 152

Unassigned

General Fund 14 459 667 14 459 667

Total fund balances 36 513 363 2 153 301 1 586 617 163 943 1 159 892 41 J77 116

Total liabilities deferred inflows

of resources and fund balances 39 817 596 2 460 691 1 868 669 580 167 S 1 782 405 S 46 509 528

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30 2013

Total Fund balances governmental funds 41 577 116

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds

The cost of capital assets is 132 565 287

Accumulated depreciation is 41 623 168 90 942 119

Certain revenue that is not available to pay for current
period expenditures and therefore is deferred in the funds 116 872

Net pension asset resulting from excess contributions to
pension plans is not reported in the fund financial statements 193 330

OPEB obligation resulting from deficiency of contributions
to OPEB plans is not reported in the fund financial

statements as it is not due and payable in the current period 263 000

Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds

Deferred charge on refunding 568 389

Compensated absences 2 557 834

Bonds payable 27 215 000

Accrued interest payable 33 772 29 238 217

Net position of governmental activities 103 328 220

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

REVENUES

Ad valorem taxes

Utilitv service taxes

Franchise fees

Intergovernmental

Licenses and permits

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures

Impact fees

Interest income

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government

Public safety
Community services

Capital outlay
Debt service

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of
revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing
sources uses

Net change in fund

balances

FUND BALANCES beginning of year

FUND BALANCES end of year

Debt

Charter Street

General School Maintenance

Fund Fund Fund

12 080 224 S

7 856 769

Funds Funds

2 823 490

S 12 080 224

3 567 507 6 721 240 1 978 747

2 489 707

2 408 326 589 590

12 432 705

2 203 501

494 919

31034 4 516 1 485

146 502 226 244

33 608 060 7 541 590 2 475 151

Debt

Service

4 437 525

Fund Nonmajor Total

Series Governmental Governmental

2000 Funds Funds

S 12 080 224

6 501 558 236 377

7 856 769

498 846

2 823 490

165 211 12 432 705

325 000

2 489 707

2 997 916

182 449

168 043 2371 544

34 535 006

160 824 655 743

25 410 2 281 65 726

7 700 380 446

25 410 504 059 44 154 270

4 437 525 4 437 525

18 682 026 138 601 18 820 627

4 913 897 7 035 149 778 001 12 727 047

6 501 558 236 377 921 846 498 846 8 158 627

325 000 1 265 000 1 590 000

182 449 766 320 948 769

34 535 006 7 271 526 1 699 847 507 449 2 668 767 46 682 595

926 946 270 064 775 304 482 039 2 164 708 2 528 325

8 000 100 000 507 810 2 042 072 2 657 882

2 205 882 444 000 8 000 2 657 882

2 197 882 344 000 507 810 2 034 072

3 124 828 73 936 775 304 25 771 130 636 2 528325

39 638 191 2 227 237 811 313 138 172 1 290 528 44 105 441

36 513 363 2 153 301 S 1 586 617 163 943 1 159 892 41 577 116

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

Net change in fund balances total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

statement of activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures

However in the statement of activities the cost of

those assets is depreciated over their estimated useful

lives and reported as depreciation expense This is the

amount by which depreciation exceeded capitalized
capital outlays in the current period

Expenditures for capital assets

Less current year s depreciation

In the statement of activities the loss on the disposal

of assets is reported whereas in the governmental

funds the proceeds from the sale increase financial

resources The change in net position differs from the

change in fund balance by

Cost of the assets disposed

Related accumulated depreciation

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the

governmental funds but the repayment reduces

long term liabilities in the statement of net position

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities

do not require the use of current financial resources

and therefore are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds

Net pension obligation asset

OPEB obligation

Interest

Amortization of deferred charge on refunding
Compensated absences

Revenues that are earned but not received within the

availability period are recognized in the statement of
activities when earned and subsequently in the
governmental fund financial statements when they
become available The net difference is recorded

as a reconciling item

Change in net position of governmental activities

2 528 325

7 854 877

4 278 092 3 576 785

597 668

588 681 8 987

12 453

59 000

11 322

39 162

31 562

1 590 000

130 855

332 385

2 166 233

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

September 30 2013

Stormwater

Utility
Fund

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash cash equivalents and investments 1 610 539

Due from other governments 136 641

Total current assets 1 747 180

Noncurrent assets

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 6 829 449

Total noncurrent assets 6 829 449

Total assets 8 576 629

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 43 467

Total liabilities 43 467

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 6 829 449

Unrestricted 1 703 713

Total net position 8 533 162

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of sales and services

Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses

Operating income loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES

Interest income

Change in net position

NET POSITION beginning of year

NET POSITION end of year

Stormwater

Utility
Fund

846 921

574 687

297 323

872 010

25 089

2 436

22 653

8 555 815

8 533 162

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers users and other 884 183
Cash paid to suppliers 575 385

Net cash provided by operating activities 308 798

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 2 436

Net cash provided by investing activities 2 436

Net increase in cash cash equivalents and investments 311 234

CASH CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS beginning of year 1 299 305

CASH CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS end of year 1 610 539

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME LOSS TO NET

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income loss 25 089

Adjustments to reconcile operating income loss to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation expense 297 323

Changes in assets and liabilities

Decrease in due from other governments 37 262

Decrease in accounts payable 698

Total adjustments 333 887

Net cash provided by operating activities 308 798

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUND POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN
September 30 2013

ASSETS

Investments at fair value

Common stocks net of options and futures 15 434 555
U S Government securities 3 758 394
Corporate bonds 2 842 839

Money market funds 1 547 175
Real estate 1 073 317

Receivables

Employer contributions 35 091
Due for securities sold 8 315

Accrued interest 75 209

Total assets 24 774 895

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 4 366

Due for securities purchased 135 253

Total liabilities 139 619

Net position held in trust for pension benefits 24 635 276

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUND POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN
For the Year Ended September 30 2013

ADDITIONS

Contributions

Employer 1 671 831
Employees 529 177

State of Florida premium tax 287 726

Total contributions 2 488 734

Investment earnings

Net appreciation in fair value of investments 2 019 589

Interest and dividend income 495 354

Total investment income 2 514 943

Less investment expense 196 174

Net investment income 2 318 769

Other income 88

Total additions 4 807 591

DEDUCTIONS

Administrative expenses 62 369

Benefits paid 284 567

Refund of contributions 21 504

Total deductions 368 440

Change in net position 4 439 151

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS beginning of year 20 196 125

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS end of year 24 635 276

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Aventura Florida the City was incorporated on November 7 1995 under

the provisions of Chapter 63 1675 Laws of Florida The City operates under a commission
manager form of government and provides the following full range of municipal services as
authorized by its charter public safety highways and streets building licensing and code
compliance culture and recreation public works and stormwater management public records and

general administrative services

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report the CAFR of the City includes all funds
The financial statements of the City have been prepared to conform with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America GAAP as applicable to state and local

governments The Governmental Accounting Standards Board GASB is the accepted standard

setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles

Significant accounting and reporting policies and practices used by the City are described
below

A Financial Reporting Entity

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Government Accounting
Standards which establishes standards for defining and reporting on the financial reporting entity
The definition of the financial reporting entity is based upon the concept that elected officials are
accountable to their constituents for their actions One of the objectives of financial reporting is to
provide users of financial statements with a basis for assessing the accountability of the elected
officials The financial reporting entity consists of the City organizations for which the City is
financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity s financials
statements to be misleading or incomplete The City is financially accountable for a component
unit if it appoints a voting majority of the organization s governing board and it is able to impose
its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the City of Aventura Based upon the

application of these criteria there were no organizations that met the criteria described above

B Government Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both government wide based on the City as a whole
and fund financial statements

The government wide financial statements i e the statement of net position and the

statement of activities report information on all activities of the City As a general rule the effect
of interfund services provided and used has been eliminated from these statements Governmental

activities which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues are reported
separately from business type activities which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
services

The government wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct

expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program revenues Direct expenses are those
expenses that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment Program revenues

include 1 charges to customers or applicants who purchase use or directly benefit from goods
services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2 grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operation or capital requirements of a particular function or segment
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

The net cost by function is normally covered by general revenue i e property taxes
sales taxes franchise taxes unrestricted intergovernmental revenues interest income etc

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds proprietary funds
and fiduciary funds even though the latter are excluded from the government wide financial
statements The focus of fund financial statements is on major funds Major individual

governmental funds and the major individual enterprise fund are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements GASB Statement No 34 sets forth minimum criteria percentage of
assets deferred outflows liabilities deferred inflows revenues or expenditures expenses of either

fund category for the governmental and enterprise combined or funds that management deems of
public importance for the determination of major funds The nonmajor funds are combined and
presented in a single column in the fund financial statements

The government wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the
change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period The focus
of the fund financial statements is on the major individual funds of the governmental and business
type categories by category Each presentation provides valuable information that can be

analyzed and compared to enhance the usefulness of the information

C Measurement Focus Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary and fiduciary fund
financial statements Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a

liability is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year when an enforceable lien exists and when levied for Grants and similar

items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period For this purpose the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred as under accrual accounting However debt service expenditures as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences pension other postemployment benefits and claims

and judgments are recorded only when due

Property taxes when levied for franchise fees utility taxes charges for services impact
fees intergovernmental revenues when eligibility requirements are met and interest associated with
the current fiscal period are all considered to be measurable and have been recognized as revenues
of the current fiscal period if available All other revenue items such as fines and forfeitures and
licenses and permits are considered to be measurable and available when cash is received by the
City
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases e g revenues and decreases

e g expenses in net total position Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and
expenses from non operating items Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund s
principal ongoing operations The principal operating revenues of the proprietary fund are charges
to customers for sales and services Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the costs of
sales and services administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets All revenues and

expenses that do not meet this definition are reported as non operating revenues or expenses

The City reports the following major governmental funds

General Fund This fund is the principal operating fund of the City All general tax
revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to
another fund are accounted for in this fund

Charter School Fund This fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures

from the operations of the Aventura City of Excellence School a special revenue
fund of the City

Street Maintenance Fund This fund is used to account for revenues and
expenditures which by State Statue are designated for street maintenance and
construction costs

Debt Service Fund Series 2000 is used to account for the payment of principal

interest and other expenditures associated with the Series 2000 Revenue Bonds

The City reports the following major proprietary fund

Stormwater Utility Fund This fund accounts for the operation of the City s
stormwater system

Additionally the government reports the following fiduciary fund type

Police Officers Retirement Plan Fund This fund accounts for the activities of the

Police Officers Retirement Plan that accumulates resources for pension benefits to

qualifying police officers

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government
wide financial statements Amounts reported as program revenues include 1 charges to customers
or applicants for goods services or privileges provided and fines and forfeitures 2 operating
grants and contributions and 3 capital grants and contributions Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues Likewise general revenues include
all taxes

1 Cash cash equivalents and investments Cash and cash equivalents are defined as demand

deposits money market accounts and other short term investments with original maturities
of three months or less from the date of acquisition
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

The City maintains a pooled cash account for all funds This enables the City to invest
large amounts of idle cash for short periods of time and to optimize earnings potential
Cash and cash equivalents represents the amount owned by each City fund Resources of
all funds with the exception of the pension fund are also combined into investment pools
for the purpose of maximizing investment yields Earnings on pooled cash and investments
are allocated monthly based on balances of the respective funds

The City s investments are reported at their fair value based on quoted market prices as
reported by recognized security exchanges except for the Guaranteed Investment Contract
which is recorded at cost and the City s investment in the Florida PRIME which is
recorded at the amortized cost method

The pension plan s investments in common stocks U S government securities corporate
bonds and real estate are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices Investments
in money market funds are valued at amortized cost

2 Receivables and payables Activities between funds that are representative of

lending borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as
either due to from other funds the current portion of interfund loans or advances

to from other funds the noncurrent portions of interfund loans Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business activities are reported in the
government wide financial statements as internal balances

Prepaid expenses expenditures Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to a

future accounting period and are recorded as prepaid items in both government wide and
fund financial statements

4 Inventories Inventories are valued at the lower of cost first in first out or market These

amounts are reported as nonspendable in governmental fund financial statements Inventory
is accounted for using the consumption method whereby inventories are recorded as
expenditures when they are used

5 Capital assets Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of 5 000 or

more are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost Contributed assets are
reported at fair value as of the date received Additions improvements and other capital

outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized Other costs
incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred Depreciation on all assets is

provided on the straight line basis over the following estimated useful lives

Buildings 25

Improvements other than buildings 20 30

Infrastructure 20 40

Furniture machinery and equipment 3 20

Within governmental funds government wide level amounts incurred for the acquisition

of capital assets are reported as fund expenditures Depreciation expense is not reported
within the governmental fund financial statements
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

6 Deferred outflows inflows of resources In addition to assets the statement of financial
position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources This
separate financial statement element deferred outflows of resources represents a

consumption of net position that applies to a future period s and so will not be recognized

as an outflow of resources expense expenditure until then The City only has one item
that qualifies for reporting in this category It is deferred charge on refunding reported in
the government wide statement of net position A deferred charge on refunding results
from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding
debt

In addition to liabilities the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources This separate financial statement element

deferred inflows of resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period s and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources revenue until that

time The City has only one type of item which arises only under a modified accrual basis
of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category Accordingly the item
unavailable revenue is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet The

governmental funds report unavailable revenues from intergovernmental revenue These
amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the
amounts become available

7 Compensated absences payable The City s sick leave policy permits employees to
accumulate earned but unused sick pay benefits Upon termination sick pay is paid out
between 0 100 based on length of service

The City s vacation policy is that earned vacation is cumulative although limited to certain
maximums based on length of service

Accumulated compensated absences are recorded in the government wide and proprietary
fund financial statements when earned Expenditures for accumulated compensated

absences have been recorded in the governmental funds only if they have matured e g

resulting from employee resignations and retirements Payments are generally paid out of
the General Fund

8 Long term obligations In the government wide financial statements and proprietary fund
types in the fund financial statements long term debt and other long term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities business type activities or

proprietary fund type statement of net position Bond premiums and discounts are deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method which approximates
the effective interest method Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premiums

and discounts

In the fund financial statements governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and

discounts during the current period The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Net position Net position in the government wide and proprietary funds are categorized as
net investment in capital assets restricted or unrestricted Net investment in capital assets
is the difference between the cost of capital assets less accumulated depreciation reduced
by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition construction or
improvement of those assets

Restricted consists of net position with constraints placed on their use by external parties
creditors grantors contributors or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed

by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation Unrestricted indicates that
portion of net position that is available to fund future operations

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted

e g restricted bond or grant proceeds and unrestricted resources In order to calculate
the amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the

government wide and proprietary fund financial statements a flow assumption must be
made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied It is the

government s policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before
unrestricted net position is applied

10 Fund balance

The City follows GASB Statement No 54 Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions which requires that governmental fund financial

statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is
based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the
specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent
The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows

Nonspendable This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because

they are either a not in spendable form or b are legally or contractually required
to be maintained intact Not in spendable form includes items that are not
expected to be converted to cash such as inventories and prepaid amounts and

items such as long term amount of loans and notes receivable as well as property
acquired for resale The corpus or principal of a permanent fund is an example of

an amount that is legally or contractually required to be maintained intact In fiscal
year 2013 this represents 285 056

Restricted This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been

placed on the use of the resources either a externally imposed by creditors such as
through a debt covenant grantors contributors or laws or regulations of other

governments or b imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation In fiscal year 2013 this represents 2 910 452

Committed This classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government s highest level of
decision making The City Commission is the highest level of decision making
authority for the government that can by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end
of the fiscal year commit fund balance Once adopted the limitation imposed by
the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken the adoption of
another ordinance to remove or revise the limitation Resources accumulated

pursuant to stabilization arrangements are reported in this category In fiscal year

2013 this represents 19 773 488
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Assigned This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City s
intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed
The City Commission has by resolution authorized the City Manager to assign fund
balance The City Commission may also assign fund balance as it does when
appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and
appropriations in the subsequent year s budget Unlike commitments assignments

generally can only exist temporarily In other words an additional action does not
normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment Conversely as

discussed above an additional action is essential to either remove or revise a
commitment In fiscal year 2013 this represents 4 148 453 In the general fund
assigned fund balance for subsequent year s budget is comprised of 245 945 and

1 749 207 representing the appropriation of a portion of existing fund balance in
the 2014 budget and outstanding encumbrances respectively

Unassigned This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General
Fund This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to
other funds and that has not been restricted committed or assigned to specific

purposes within the General Fund Unassigned fund balance may also include
negative balances for any governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts
restricted committed or assigned for those specific purposes In fiscal year 2013
this represents 14 459 667

The City uses restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available unless there are legal documents contracts that

prohibit doing this such as in grant agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending
Additionally the City would first use committed fund balance followed by assigned fund
balance and then unassigned fund balance when expenditures are incurred for purposes for

which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used

11 Minimum Fund Balance Policy and Hurricane Emergency and Disaster Recovery Reserve
The City s policy is to maintain an adequate General Fund balance to meet seasonal

shortfalls in cash flow and reduce susceptibility to emergency and unanticipated
expenditures and or revenue shortfalls The City s Commission has adopted a financial
standard to maintain a Hurricane Emergency and Disaster Recovery s Operating Reserve
at a minimum level of 5 000 000 and a Fiscal Stability Reserve of 10 of the annual

General Fund revenue

12 Encumbrances Encumbrance accounting under which purchase orders contracts and

other commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that

portion of the applicable appropriation is employed as an extension of formal budgetary
integration

Encumbrances are recorded at the time a purchase order or other commitment is entered

into Encumbrances outstanding at year end represent the estimated amount of expenditures
which would result if unperformed purchase orders and other commitments at year end are
completed Encumbrances lapse at year end however the City generally intends to honor
purchase orders and other commitments in process As a result encumbrances outstanding
at year end are re appropriated in the next fiscal year and are therefore presented as
committed or assigned fund balance for the subsequent year
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13 Use of estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures

Accordingly actual results could differ from those estimates

14 Date of management review Subsequent events were evaluated by management through
February 12 2014 which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued

NOTE 2 PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are assessed as of January 1 each year and are first billed levied and due
the following November 1

Under Florida law the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county
municipal school board and special district property taxes are consolidated in the Offices of the
County Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector The laws for the State regulating tax
assessments are also designed to assure a consistent property valuation method statewide State
statutes permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills 10 per 1 000 of

assessed taxable valuation The millage rate assessed by the City for the year ended September
30 2013 was 1 7261 mills

The City s tax levy is established by the City Commission prior to October 1 of each year
and the County Property Appraiser incorporates the millage into the total tax levy which includes
Miami Dade County Miami Dade County School Board and certain other special taxing districts

All property is reassessed according to its fair market value as of January 1 each year
Each assessment roll is submitted to the Executive Director of the Florida Department of Revenue

for review to determine if the assessment rolls meet all of the appropriate requirements of State
Statutes

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1 each year
or as soon as practicable thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the County Property
Appraiser Miami Dade County mails each property owner on the assessment roll a notice of the
taxes due and collects the taxes for the City Taxes may be paid upon receipt of the notice from
Miami Dade County with discounts at the rate of 4 if paid in the month of November 3 if

paid in the month of December 2 if paid in the month of January and 1 if paid in the month of

February Taxes paid during the month of March are without discount and all unpaid taxes on real
and tangible personal property become delinquent and liens are placed on April 1 of the year
following the year in which the taxes were assessed Procedures for the collection of delinquent
taxes by Miami Dade County are provided for in the laws of Florida There were no material
delinquent property taxes as of September 30 2013
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Deposits

The City s custodial credit risk policy is in accordance with Florida Statutes Florida

Statutes authorize the deposit of City funds in demand deposits or time deposits of financial
institutions approved by the State Treasurer These are defined as public deposits All City public
deposits are held in qualified public depositories pursuant to Chapter 280 Florida Statutes

Florida Security for Public Deposits Act Under the act all qualified public depositories are

required to pledge eligible collateral having a market value equal to or greater than the average
daily or monthly balance of all public deposits times the depository s collateral pledging level The
collateral pledging level may range from 50 to 125 depending upon the depository s financial
condition and the length of time that the depository has been established All collateral must be
deposited with the State Treasurer Any losses to public depositors resulting from insolvency are
covered by applicable deposit insurance sale of securities pledged as collateral and if necessary
assessment against other qualified public depositories of the same type as the depository in default
The City s bank balances were insured either by the Federal depository insurance corporation or
collateralized in the bank s participation in the Florida Security for Public Deposits Act

The Florida SBA Pool is not a registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC however its board has adopted operating procedures consistent with the requirements

for a 2a 7 fund The SBA investments are allocated among two funds Fund A and Fund B
hereinafter referred to as Florida PRIME and LGIP B For the Florida PRIME a 20 like

pool the value of the City s position is the same as the value of the pool shares and is recorded at
amortized cost At September 30 2013 the City s investment in the Florida PRIME was that of

17 316 434 In accordance with these requirements the method used to determine the

participants shares sold and redeemed is the amortized cost method The amortized cost method is
the same method used to report investments Amortized cost includes accrued income and is a

method of calculating an investment s value by adjusting its acquisition cost for the amortization of
discount or premium over the period from purchase to maturity Thus the City s account balance
in the SBA is its amortized cost The LGIP B pool is accounted for as a fluctuating net asset value
NAV The balance of the City s investment in LGIP B at year end amounted to 40 017 with

a net asset value factor of 1 13262284 The SBA is governed by Chapter 19 7 of the Florida
Administrative Code These rules provide guidance and establish the general operating procedures
for the administration of the SBA Additionally the Office of the Auditor General of the State of
Florida performs the operational audit of the activities and investment of the SBA The SBA

accounts are not subject to custodial credit risk as these investments are not evidenced by securities
that exist in physical or bank entry form

Investments

On June 2 2009 and on November 1 2011 the City adopted and re adopted respectively
Chapter 6 6 of the Administrative Policy and Directives and Procedures Manual entitled

Investments Objective and Parameters as the City s Investment Policy for the management of
Public Funds the policy The policy was created in accordance with Section 218 415 Florida
Statutes The policy applies to all investments held and controlled by the City with the exception
of the Police Officers Pension Plan and its debt issuance where there are other existing policies or
indentures in effect for the investment of related funds
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NOTE 3 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS continued

The City s policy for investments other than pension plan and debt issuance is summarized
herein The Finance Director has responsibility for the type of investments the City snakes The
investment policy establishes permitted investments asset allocation issuer limits credit rating
requirements and maturity limits to protect the City s assets All investment securities are held by
a Trust custodian and are managed by financial advisors In general the City s policy allows to
invest in the following 1 securities and obligations of the United States and its agencies 2

nonnegotiable interest bearing time deposits or savings accounts provided that such deposits are
secured by collateral as prescribed by the Florida Security for Public Deposits Act Chapter 280
Florida Statutes 3 repurchase agreements collateralized by full or general faith and credit
obligations of the U S Government or Agency securities 4 the Florida Local Government
Surplus Funds Trust Fund SBA 5 intergovernmental investment pools authorized pursuant to

the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act provided by Section 163 01 Florida Statutes and provided
that such funds contain no derivatives 6 money market mutual funds registered investment

companies with the highest credit quality rating 7 commercial paper of any U S company 8

corporate notes and 9 taxable tax exempt municipal bonds

The City policy for pension investments is under the oversight of the Plan s Board of
Trustees the Board The Board contracts with investment advisory firms and approves any new
investment vehicles presented by the consultants The Board follows all applicable state statutes

The City has a Guaranteed Investment Contract GIC that is not subject to interest rate

risk classification because it is a direct contractual investment and is not a security The GIC also
is not rated for credit risk classification purposes The GIC provides for a guaranteed return on
investments over a specific period of time at a rate of 5 04 per annum The collateral value of

the GIC as of September 30 2013 is 526 276 and is expected to continue to be sufficient to meet

the reserve fund requirement for the Series 2000 Revenue Bond of a minimum of 500 000 The

GIC is recorded at the contract amount which is 500 657

As of September 30 2013 the City s cash cash equivalents and investments consisted of
the following

Cash and cash equivalents and investments

State Board of Administration

SBA Florida PRIME

Deposits with financial institutions

U S Treasury bills
U S Government obligations

Asset backed securities

Corporate bonds

Municipal obligations

Commercial paper

Guarenteed investment contract

Collateralized mortgage obligations

Money market funds
Mortgage backed securitires

State Board of Administation Fund B

Petty Cash
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17 316 434

12 606 501

6 475 177

4 684 017

1 413 951

1 023 431

880 952

699 586

500 657

335 955

80 916

70 402

40 017

2 455

46 130 451
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Fiduciary fund investments
Common stocks net of options and futures 15 434 555
U S Government securities 3 758 394
Corporate bonds 2 842 839

Money market funds 1 547 175
Real estate 1 073 317

24 656 280

70 786 731

Cash cash equivalents and investments are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows

Statement of Net Position

Cash cash equivalents and investments 45 629 794
Restricted cash cash equivalents and
investments 500 657

46 130 451

Statement of Net Position Fiduciary Fund
Common stocks net of options and futures 15 434 555

U S Government securities 3 758 394

Corporate bonds 2 842 839

Money market funds 1 547 175

Real estate 1 073 317

24 656 280

70 786 731

Interest rate risk The City s policy is to limit its exposure to fair value losses arising from
changes in interest rates by structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet
cash requirements for ongoing operations thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open
market prior to maturity and investing operating funds primarily in shorter term securities money
market mutual funds or similar investment pools

This is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment Generally the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of
its fair value to changes in market interest rates The City s policy is that unless matched with
specific cash flow the City will not directly invest in securities maturing more than seven 7
years from the date of purchase Because of inherent difficulties in accurately forecasting cash
flow requirements a portion of the portfolio should be continuously invested in readily available
funds to ensure that proper liquidity is maintained to meet ongoing obligations

The City does not have a formal investment policy for its pension funds that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates
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Information about the exposure of the City s debt type investments to this risk using the
segmented time distribution model is as follows

Time to Maturity in Years
Greater

Summary of Investments Fair Less Than 1 5 6 10 Than

and Interest Rate Risk Value 1 Year Years Years 10 Years

City Investments
State Board of Administration

SBA Florida PRIME 17 316 434 17 316 434

U S Treasury bills 6 475 177 1 753 874 4 721 303

U S Government obligations 4 684 017 953 775 3 730 242

Asset backed securities 1 413 951 6 028 1 407 923

Corporate bonds 1 023 431 748 314 275 117

Municipal obligations 880 952 466 208 414 744

Commercial paper 699 586 699 586

Collateralized mortgage obligations 335 955 237 218 98 737

Money market funds 80 916 80 916

Mortgage backed securities 70 402 70 402

State Board Administration

SBA Fund B 40 017 40 017

Subtotal City Investments 33 020 838 22 025 135 10 896 966 98 737

Fiduciary Fund
U S Government securities 3 758 394 676 550 1 959 574 1 122 270

Corporate bonds 2 842 839 395 505 1 761 129 686 205

Money market funds 1 547 175 1 547 175

Subtotal Fiduciary Fund 8 148 408 2 619 230 3 720 703 1 808 475

Total investments 41 169 246 24 644 365 14 617 669 1907 212

Credit Risk Generally credit risk is the risk that an issuer of a debt type investment will
not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment This is measured by assignment of a rating
by a nationally recognized rating organization The City s investment policy provides strict
guidelines and limits investments to highly rated securities with minimum ratings of AAA Aaa
long term securities A 1 P 1 short term securities and AAAm money market mutual funds

The Finance Director shall determine the appropriate action for any investment held that is
downgraded below the minimum rating by one or more rating agencies

The pension fund limits its credit risk by limiting its fixed income investments to securities
with the top 4 ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations
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U S government securities or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U S government are
not considered to have credit risk exposure Investments in the LGIP B certain money market
funds certain U S government obligations and certain corporate bonds are not rated The City s
and fiduciary fund s portfolio is rated by Standard Poor s and Moody s Investor Services
respectively as follows

Rating
Fair

Value

City Investments
AAA 1 794 157

AAAm 17 397 350
AA 11 731 304

AA 617 459

AA 335 972

A 1 299 987

A 1 599 607

Not Rated 245 002

33 020 838

Fiduciary Fund
Al 824 245

A2 1 250 645

A3 355 864

Aa3 412 085

Not rated 5 305 569

8 148 408

41 169 246

Concentration The City s policy is to maintain a diversified portfolio to minimize the
risk of loss resulting from concentration of assets in a specific issuer Specific limits have been
established which limit the percentage of portfolio assets that can be invested with a specific
issuer GASB Statement No 40 Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures requires disclosure
when the percentage is 5 or more in any one issuer Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed
by the U S government and investments in mutual funds external investments pools or other
pooled investments are excluded from this requirement At September 30 2013 the City had
investments in the Federal National Mortgage Association Fannie Mae amounting to 6 70 of

the total investments held by the City

The pension fund limits investments that may be invested in any one issuer to no more than
5 of plan s net position other than those issued by the U S Government or its Agencies More
than 5 of the plan s net position is invested in debt securities issued by the U S Treasury The
U S Treasury investments represented 11 79 of Plan s Net Position Given the restriction to the

highest rating this concentration is not viewed to be an additional risk to the City

Custodial credit risk For an investment custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event

of the failure of the counterparty e g broker dealer to a transaction a government will not be
able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of

another party The City s investment policy requires securities with the exception of certificates of
deposit to be registered in the City s name and held with a third party custodian

9M



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 3 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS continued

Foreign credit risk For an investment foreign credit risk is the risk that fluctuations in
currency exchange rates may affect transactions conducted in currencies other than U S dollars
and the carrying value of foreign investments The City is not exposed to foreign credit risk The

pension fund s investments include American Depository Receipts ADRs which are non U S

equity issued in U S dollars and have no foreign credit risk The total of the investments in
foreign securities all of which are ADRs is 3 229 985 The investment policy limits the
foreign investments to no more than 25 of the plan s investments balance At September 30
2013 these foreign investments were 13 10 of the total investments

NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of September 30 2013 consist of the following

General

Fund

Governmental funds

Utility service taxes 428 627

Police services 74 339

Vendors and miscellaneous 91 305

Franchise fees 38 733

Total governmental

funds 633 004

NOTE 5 INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Nonmajor

Govermental

Funds

53 423

53 423

Total

428 627

127 762

91 305

38 733

686 427

Interfund transfers during the year ended September 30 2013 were as follows

Transfers Transfers

In Out

General Fund 8 000 2 205 882

Charter School Fund 100 000 444 000

Debt Service Fund Series 2000 507 810

Other nonmajor governmental funds 2 042 072 8 000

2 657 882 2 657 882

Transfers are used to 1 move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires
to collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them from or 2 use of
unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in

other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations Transfers to the General Fund represent
reimbursement of cost from the 911 Fund of 8 000 The transfer to the Charter School Fund

consists of 100 000 from the General Fund which is being used to support future capital projects
occurring in the Charter School Special Revenue Fund The remaining transfers represent transfers
to meet debt service requirements in the Debt Service Funds
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Capital assets activity for the year ended September 30 2013 was as follows

Balance Retirements Balance

October 1 and September 30

2012 Additions Transfers 2013

Governmental activities

Capital assets not

being depreciated
Land 17 102 344 17 102344

Construction in progress 574 554 6 132 653 574 554 6 132 653

Total capital assets

not being depreciated 17 676 898 6 132 653 574 554 23 234 997

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 44 239 938 56 861 44 296 799

Improvements other

than buildings 11 233 799 549 551 11 783 350

Infrastructure 37 920 867 433 643 38 354 510

Furniture machinery
and equipment 14 236 576 1 256 723 597 668 14 895 631

Total capital assets

being depreciated 107 631 180 2 296 778 597 668 109 330 290

Less accumulated depreciation for

Buildings 10 042 389 1 298 620 11 341 009

Improvements other

than buildings 3 200 975 430 290 3 631 265

Infrastructure 14 098 217 1 427 212 15 525 429

Furniture machinery
and equipment 10 592 176 1 121 970 588 681 11 125 465

Total accumulated

depreciation 37 933 757 4 278 092 588 681 41 623 168

Total capital assets

being depreciated net 69 697 423 1 981 314 87987 67 707 122

Governmental activities

capital assets net 87374 321 4 151 339 583 541 90 942 119

Business type activities

Capital assets being depreciated
Infrastructure 9 658 576 9 658 576

Less accumulated depreciation 2 531 804 297 323 2 829 127

Total capital assets

being depreciated net 7 126 772 297 323 6 829 449

Business type activities

capital assets net 7 126 772 S 297 323 6 829 449
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions programs of the primary government as
follows

Governmental activities
General government

Public safety
Community services

Business type activities

Stormwater utility

523 857

728 418

3 025 817

4 278 092

297 323

NOTE 7 LONG TERM LIABILITIES OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Changes in Governmental Activities long term liabilities during the year ended September
30 2013 were as follows

Balance Balance

October 1 September 30 Due Within

2012 Additions Reductions 2013 One Year

Series 2000 Revenue

Bonds payable 3 620 000 325 000 3 295 000 345 000

Series 2010 Refunding
Revenue Bonds payable 9 955 000 445 000 9 510 000 455 000

Series 2011 Refunding
Revenue Bonds payable 5 345 000 230 000 5 115 000 240 000

Series 2012 Refunding
Revenue Bonds payable 9 885 000 590 000 9 295 000 635 000

Compensated absences

payable 2 526 272 1 252 808 1 221 246 2 557 834 639 459

Other post employment

benefits 204 000 59 000 263 000

31 535 272 1 311 808 2 811 246 30 035 834 2 314 459

Revenue bonds as of September 30 2013 were comprised of the following

Series 2000 Revenue Bonds principal is due annually over
20 years in various amounts through October 2020 The

bonds bear interest at 5 04 and are payable semi annually
on October 1 and April 1 of each year The bonds are

collateralized by available Non Ad Valorem revenues 3 295 000

Series 2010 Refunding Revenue Bonds principal is due

annually over 18 years in various amounts through April
2029 The bonds bear interest at 3 42 and are payable

semi annually on October 1 and April I of each year The
bonds are collateralized by available Non Ad Valorem

revenues 9 510 000
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Series 2011 Refunding Revenue Bonds principal is due

annually over 18 years in various amounts through April
2029 The bonds bear interest at 3 64 and are payable

semi annually on October 1 and April 1 of each year The
bonds are collateralized by available Non Ad Valorem
revenues

Series 2012 Refunding Revenue Bonds principal is due

annually over 15 years in various amounts through August
2027 The bonds bear interest at 2 18 and are payable

semi annually on February 1 and August 1 of each year The
bonds are collateralized by available Non Ad Valorem
revenues

5 115 000

9 295 000

27 215 000

Compensated absences attributable to governmental activities are generally liquidated by
the General Fund

Series 2000 Revenue Bonds

The City previously issued 6 555 000 in Series 2000 Revenue Bonds to finance the

acquisition of land for parks and recreational purposes and for the construction of a community
recreation center The bond indenture relating to this issue requires that a reserve fund of

500 000 be established the balance of which as of September 30 2013 was sufficient to meet

this requirement The indenture also requires the maintenance of a minimum debt service
coverage ratio of 2 50 1 00

Series 2010 and 2011 Refunding Revenue Bonds

The City previously issued 21 000 000 in Series 1999 Revenue Bonds to finance the

acquisition of land buildings and other improvements related to municipal parks and the City s
administrative complex and police station At September 30 2013 this bond series was fully
defeased

In fiscal year 2010 the City issued Series 2010 Refunding Revenue Bonds to partially
advance refund 10 580 000 of the then outstanding Series 1999 Revenue Bonds In fiscal year

2011 the City issued Series 2011 Refunding Revenue Bonds to advance refund the remaining
5 700 000 of the then outstanding Series 1999 Revenue Bonds The City refunded the Series

1999 Revenue Bonds to reduce its aggregate debt service payments by approximately 3 166 000

Series 2012 Refunding Revenue Bonds

The City previously entered into a bond indenture agreement with the Florida

Intergovernmental Finance Commission through an interlocal governmental agreement As a

result the City issued 12 610 000 in Series 2002 Revenue Bonds to finance the acquisition of

land and construction of a charter school as well as the construction of the community recreation
center At September 30 2013 this bond series was fully defeased
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In fiscal year 2012 the City issued 9 885 000 in Series 2012 Refunding Revenue Bonds
to advance refund 10 165 000 including a City contribution of 597 856 of the then

outstanding Series 2002 Revenue Bonds The City advance refunded the Series 2002 Revenue
Bonds to reduce its total debt service payments by approximately 3 810 000

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the revenue bonds are approximately
as follows

Year Ending
September 30 Principal Interest Total

2014 1 675 000 868 300 2 543 300
2015 1 735 000 812 200 2 547 200
2016 1 790 000 754 200 2 544 200
2017 1 850 000 693 900 2 543 900
2018 1 820 000 631 500 2 451 500

2019 2023 9 055 000 2 168 000 11 223 000
2024 2028 8 120 000 834 700 8 954 700

2029 1 170 000 20 500 1 190 500

27 215 000 6 783 300 33 998 300

NOTE 8 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

Various claims and lawsuits which arise in the normal course of operations are pending
against the City It is management s opinion based on the advice of the City Attorney that the
outcome of these actions will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements of the

City Management also believes that the litigation against the City will be covered by insurance

Government grants

Revenue recognized from grants may be subject to audit by the grantor agencies In the
opinion of City management as a result of such audits disallowances of grant revenues if any
would not have a material adverse effect on the City s financial condition

Employment agreement

The City has an employment contract with its City Manager that provides for an annual
salary adjusted for cost of living increases and certain benefits This agreement is effective for an
indefinite term subject to termination of the City Manager by the City Commission in accordance
with Article III Section 3 08 of the City Charter The City Manager must provide two 2 months
advance written notice to resign voluntarily
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Charter school agreements

The City has a contract with the School Board of Miami Dade County Florida that allows
for Aventura City of Excellence School to provide the residents of the City of Aventura an
elementary and middle school education choice In 2012 the City Commission acting in their
capacity as the School s Governing Board signed their third contract amendment with the County
to increase the School s capacity from 972 to 1032 students over five years commencing with the
school year 2012 2013 The contract ends on June 30 2018 but provides for a renewal of up to 15
years by mutual agreement of both parties

The City previously entered into an agreement with Charter School USA Inc CSUSA

to provide administrative and educational services for the City s charter school The agreement
expired on June 30 2013 and both parties agreed to a five year renewal term through June 30

2018 The renewed agreement provides for an additional renewal term of up to five years upon
agreement of both parties and provided the Miami Dade County School Board extends the charter
granted to the City

Other agreements

The City has a three year nonexclusive agreement with an engineering consulting firm the
Consultant to provide building inspections and plan review services Pursuant to the agreement

the Consultant receives 70 of the gross building permit fee revenues for the first 50 000 in fees
in a month and 65 of the amount in excess of 50 000 per month However the Consultant
receives 35 of the permit fee for all projects owned paid for and to be operated by the City
The agreement may be renewed for one additional three year term

Pension funding

Economic developments surrounding the overall market liquidity credit availability and

market collateral levels may result in declines in the value of the investment securities held by the
Police Officers Retirement Plan Consequently the City s required contribution amount to the
Plan which is necessary to maintain the actuarial soundness and to provide the level of assets
sufficient to meet participant benefits could significantly increase in future periods It is

management s opinion that future contributions to the Plan will not have a material adverse effect

on the City s financial position

Construction agreements

The City has entered into various agreements in reference to the construction and
maintenance of the City streets and other infrastructure projects At year end outstanding

construction commitments amounted to approximately 110 000

NOTE 9 RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts thefts of damage to and
destruction of assets errors and omissions employee health workers compensation and natural

disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance Settlement amounts have not exceeded
insurance coverage for any of the past three 3 fiscal years In addition there were no reductions
in insurance coverage from those in the prior year
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NOTE 10 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City had previously implemented the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No 45 Accounting and Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pension OPEB for certain postemployment health care benefits provided by the City

As of October 1 2013 the latest actuarial valuation health care and dental plan
participants consisted of

Active Plan participants
Retiree Plan participants

Plan Description

165

2

167

Pursuant to Section 112 0801 Florida Statutes the City is required to permit participation
in the health insurance program to retirees and their eligible dependents at a cost to the retiree that
is no greater than the cost at which coverage is available for active employees Other than certain

department directors retirees must pay a monthly premium as determined by the insurance carrier
Retirees pay 100 of the blended equivalent premium rates The blended rates provide an implicit

subsidy for retirees because on an actuarial basis their current and future claims are expected to
result in higher costs to the plan on average than those of active employees Pursuant to

Resolution 2006 64 department directors who retire at age 55 or later with at least 10 years of

service are not required to pay a premium for medical or dental coverage for themselves prior to
age 65 For these individuals there is an explicit subsidy where the City provides for the retiree s
coverage

The plan described above is currently offered by the City under a single employer plan

structure The City provides all financial information and required disclosures of its other post
employment benefit plan in this document therefore a separate audited post employment benefits
plan report is not available

Funding Policy

The City is funding the post employment benefits on a pay as you go basis For the fiscal
year ended September 30 2013 the annual required contribution was 116 000 The City made
estimated explicit and implicit contributions of 43 000 towards this amount Retirees contributed

approximately 48 000 towards the cost of these benefits for the fiscal year ended September 30
2013 At September 30 2013 the City recorded a net OPEB obligation of 263 000 for

governmental activities in its government wide statement of net position

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The annual other postemployment benefit OPEB cost expense is calculated based on the
annual required contribution ARC an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement No 45 The ARC represents a level of funding that if paid on an
ongoing basis is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liability over a period not to exceed 30 years The following table shows the components of the
City s annual OPEB cost for the year the amount actually contributed and the changes in the net
OPEB obligation

M



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 10 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS continued

Annual Required Contribution ARC 116 000
Interest on net pension obligation 8 000

Adjustment to annual required contribution 21 000
Total annual OPEB cost 103 000

Employer contributions made 43 000

Interest on employer contributions 1 000

Increase in net OPEB obligation 59 000

Net OPEB obligation beginning of year 204 000

Valuation Value of

Net OPEB obligation end of year 263 000

estimated reflects both the explicit and implicit subsidy

The City s annual OPEB cost the percentage of annual OPEB costs contributed to the plan
and the net OPEB obligation for 2013 and two preceding years were as follows

Percentage

Annual of Annual

Year Ending OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB

September 30 Cost Contributed Obligation

2013 103 000 43 00 263 000

2012 111 000 87 00 204 000

2011 113 000 86 00 190 000

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The schedule of funding progress presented as RSI following the notes to the financial
statements presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets

are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits An
analysis of funding progress the last plan year valuation date is as follows

Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members and include the types of benefits

provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between
the employer and plan members to that point The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets consistent with the long term perspective of the
calculations

M

Actuarial

Accrued Unfunded

Liability Actuarial UAAL

Actuarial Actuarial at Entry Accrued as of

Valuation Value of Age Liability Funded Covered Covered

Date Assets AAL UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

10 01 13 679 000 679 000 0 0 11 640 000 5 8

Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members and include the types of benefits

provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between
the employer and plan members to that point The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets consistent with the long term perspective of the
calculations
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 10 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS continued

In the October 1 2013 actuarial valuation the projected unit credit cost method was used
The annual required contribution ARC reflects a 12 year open period level dollar payment

amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability UAAL The actuarial assumptions
included a 4 0 investment rate of return

The following assumptions were made

Eligibility

For police officers retirement was assumed to occur at the earlier of any age with at least
25 years of service or at age 55 with at least six 6 years of service for all other employees

eligibility was assumed to occur at the earlier of any age with at least 30 years of service or at age
62 with at least six 6 years of service

Mortality

Sex distinct mortality rates set forth in the RP 2000 mortality table for annuitants and non
annuitants projected to 2013 by Scale AA as published by the IRS for purposes of IRC section
430

Disability

Sex distinct disability rates set forth in the Wyatt 1985 Disability Study class 4 rates were
used for police officers and class 1 rates were used for all other employees

Permanent Withdrawal from Active Status

Sex distinct withdrawal rates set forth in Scale 155 table

Investment Rate of Return

A discount rate of 4 00 per annum includes inflation at 2 50 per annum

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The cost of covered medical services has been assumed to increase in accordance with the

following rates compounded annually

2012 2013 7 50

2013 2014 7 00

2014 2015 6 50

2015 2016 6 00

2016 2017 5 50

2017 2018 and later 5 00

With respect to the fully subsidized dental insurance the assumed dental costs increase at
the rate of 3 00 per year
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 10 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS continued

Implied Subsidy Medical Insurance

The implied subsidy for a 62 year old retiree is assumed to be 6 300 per year for each
the retiree and the retiree s spouse

Implied Subsidy Dental Insurance

There is no implied subsidy for the dental insurance since we have assumed that the
premium charged for the covered individuals does not increase with age

Age Related Morbidity

The cost of the medical services has been assumed to increase with age at the rate of
3 50 per annum

Retiree Contributions

Other than eligible department directors retirees electing post employment healthcare
coverage have been assumed to make monthly contributions equal to the premium charged to
active employees Eligible department directors have been assumed to make the required
contribution for healthcare coverage for their spouses

Cost of LivinL Increase

Retiree contributions have been assumed to increase in accordance with the healthcare cost
trend assumption

Future Participation Rates

Other than eligible department directors 5 of eligible employees were assumed to elect

coverage until age 65 upon retirement or disability 100 of department directors who are eligible

for the explicit subsidy from the City were assumed to elect coverage until age 65

Marriage and Dependent Assumption

80 of males and 50 of females are assumed to elect coverage at retirement for

themselves and their spouses with husbands assumed to be three 3 years older than their wives

active employees were not assumed to have any dependent children upon retirement or disability

COBRA Assumption

Future healthcare coverage provided solely pursuant to COBRA was not included in the
OPEB valuation because the COBRA premium is determined periodically based on plan
experience it is assumed that the COBRA premium to be paid by the participant fully covers the
cost of providing healthcare coverage during the relevant period



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 11 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLANS

The City is a single employer that contributes to four 4 defined contribution pension plans
based on employee classification created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section
401 a The plans currently cover all full time employees of the City Under these plans the City
contributes between 7 and an amount equal to the annual IRS maximum depending on employee
classifications City contributions for the City Manager department directors and assistant

department directors vest in the year they are contributed City contributions to general employees
vest beginning after one year of service through year five in 20 increments Participants are not

permitted to make contributions during the year The City made plan contributions of
approximately 709 500 during the year Plan provisions and contribution requirements may be
amended by the City Commission In addition the City provides to all full time employees a
deferred compensation plan under Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code Under this program

employees may voluntarily elect to defer a portion of their salary to future years with no required
contributions from the City Both programs are administered by ICMA Retirement Corp The
City does not exercise any control or fiduciary responsibility over the Plans assets Therefore

the assets liabilities and transactions are not included in the City s financial statements

NOTE 12 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

The City agreed to provide a defined benefit retirement plan effective October 1 2003

through a collective bargaining contract between the City and the Miami Dade County Police
Benevolent Association City of Aventura Police Officers Retirement Plan the Plan The Plan

is a single employer defined benefit retirement plan The Plan was established by the City in
accordance with a City ordinance and state statutes The Plan covers only sworn police officers
and is funded by a combination of City contributions employee contributions rollover of 401 a
plan assets for certain employees and the proceeds of the state insurance premium tax on casualty
insurance policies The current funding levels of covered payroll are 20 955 for the City s
contribution 6 775 for the employee s contribution and 4 133 for the state premiums tax The
State is required to contribute pursuant to Chapter 185 of the Florida Statutes a premium on

certain casualty insurance contracts written on the City s property The premium tax is collected
by the State and remitted to the City During the current fiscal year the City received 287 726

from the State The Plan and employee contributions are mandatory for all sworn police officers
Contribution requirements of the Plan members and the participating employer are established and
may be changed by an amendment to the City ordinance

The City utilizes the entry age normal cost method The asset valuation method is a 5 year
smooth

Information as of the latest actuarial valuation dated October 1 2012 included no cost of

living adjustments and a 3 00 annual inflation rate an annual investment rate of return of

7 50 projected annual salary increases of 5 00 the amortization method is level dollar

closed and a remaining amortization period of 21 years There have been no plan changes

changes to assumptions or methods since the prior valuation report



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 12 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN continued

On October 1 2012 the most recent actuarial valuation date Plan membership consisted
of

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 13
Active Plan members 82

M

The financial statements of the Plan are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting
Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due The
City s contributions are recognized when due and a formal commitment to provide the
contributions has been made Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the Plan

The general administration management and investment decisions of the Plan and the
responsibility for carrying out its provisions is vested in the five 5 members Board of Trustees
Administrative costs of the Plan are financed through current or prior investment earnings

The City has issued stand alone financial statements for the Plan which may be obtained
from the City s Finance Department

Benefits

Normal retirement may be received upon attainment the earlier of age 55 with 10 years of
credited service or upon completion of 25 years of credited service regardless of age For the first

40 years of service the monthly benefit received will be 3 00 of final monthly compensation
multiplied by the number of years of service to a maximum of 80 00 Years credited beyond
40 will be taken into account at 2 00 of final compensation per year Early retirement may be
received upon the attainment of age 45 with 10 years of credited service The benefit may be
received either on a deferred basis or on an immediate basis On an immediate basis the benefit

amount will be the normal retirement benefit reduced by 3 00 per year for each year by which
the retirement date precedes the normal retirement date On a deferred basis the benefit amount
will be the same as the normal retirement benefit except that the final compensation and credited

service will be based upon the early retirement date

Disabilitv retirement

Members who become disabled due to service incurred injuries which arise out of

performance of service with the City will receive a monthly benefit amount equal to the member s
accrued benefit but not less than 42 00 of the member s final monthly compensation as of the
date of disability offset by any other payments such as worker s compensation Members who
become disabled due to non service incurred injuries which do not arise out of performance with

the City and who have completed at least 10 years of service will receive a monthly benefit
amount equal to 3 00 of final monthly compensation for each year of credited service but not
less than 30 00
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 12 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN continued

Trend information

Trend information indicates the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due An analysis of funding progress for the year ended September 30 2013 is as
follows

Funded status and funding progress

The schedule of funding progress presented as RSI following the notes to the financial
statements presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets

are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits An
analysis of funding progress as of October 1 2012 the most recent actuarial valuation date is as
follows

Annual Percentage Net Pension

Year Ending Pension of APC Obligation
September 30 Cost Contributed Asset

2013 1 972 010 99 193 330
2012 1 936 952 99 205 783
2011 1 659 953 99 219 038

Funded status and funding progress

The schedule of funding progress presented as RSI following the notes to the financial
statements presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets

are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits An
analysis of funding progress as of October 1 2012 the most recent actuarial valuation date is as
follows

The annual pension cost and net pension obligation asset for the Plan for year ended

September 30 2013 is as follows

Annual Required Contribution ARC 1 959 557

Interest on net pension obligation 15 435

Adjustment to annual required contribution 27 888

Annual Pension Cost 1 972 010

Contributions made 1 959 557

Decrease in net pension asset obligation 12 453

Net pension asset obligation beginning
of year 205 783

Net pension asset obligation end of year 193 330

51

Actuarial

Accrued Unfunded

Liability Actuarial UAAL

Actuarial Actuarial at Entry Accrued as of

Valuation Value of Age Liability Funded Covered Covered

Date Assets AAL UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

10 01 12 19 610 921 25 129 927 5 519 006 78 04 7 663 687 72 02

The annual pension cost and net pension obligation asset for the Plan for year ended

September 30 2013 is as follows

Annual Required Contribution ARC 1 959 557

Interest on net pension obligation 15 435

Adjustment to annual required contribution 27 888

Annual Pension Cost 1 972 010

Contributions made 1 959 557

Decrease in net pension asset obligation 12 453

Net pension asset obligation beginning
of year 205 783

Net pension asset obligation end of year 193 330
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 13 PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The GASB has issued several statements not yet implemented by the City The statements
which might impact the City are as follows

GASB Statement No 66 Technical Corrections 2012 an amendment of GASB
Statements No 10 and No 62 was issued March 2012 The objective of this Statement is to

improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governmental entities by resolving
conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements Statements No 54

Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions and No 62 Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre November 30 1989 FASB and
AICPA Pronouncements The provisions of this Statement will be effective for the fiscal year
ending September 30 2014

GASB Statement No 67 Financial Reporting for Pension Plans an amendment of GASB
Statement No 25 was issued June 2012 The objective of this Statement is to improve financial

reporting by state and local governmental pension plans This Statement results from a

comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial
reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision useful information supporting

assessments of accountability and inter period equity and creating additional transparency This

Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No 25 Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans and No 50 Pension

Disclosures as they relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent
arrangements hereafter jointly referred to as trusts that meet certain criteria The provisions of

this Statement will be effective for the fiscal year ending September 30 2014

GASB Statement No 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions an amendment

of GASB Statement No 27 was issued June 2012 The primary objective of this Statement is to
improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions This

Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of
accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision useful
information supporting assessments of accountability and inter period equity and creating

additional transparency This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No 27 Accounting
for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers as well as the requirements of

Statement No 50 Pension Disclosures as they relate to pensions that are provided through
pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements hereafter jointly referred to as
trusts that meet certain criteria The provisions of this Statement will be effective for the fiscal

year ending September 30 2015

GASB Statement No 69 Government Combinations and Disposals of Government
Operations was issued January 2013 This Statement establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards related to government combinations and disposals of government operations
As used in this Statement the term government combinations include a variety of transactions
referred to as mergers acquisitions and transfers of operations The provisions of this Statement

will be effective for the fiscal year ending September 30 2015

GASB Statement No 70 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non Exchange Financial
Transactions was issued April 2013 The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting
and financial reporting by state and local governments that extend and receive non exchange
financial guarantees The provisions of this Statement will be effective for the fiscal year ending
September 30 2014
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30 2013

NOTE 13 PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE continued

GASB Statement No 71 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non Exchange Financial
Transactions was issued November 2013 The objective of this Statement is to address an issue

regarding application of the transition provisions of Statement No 68 Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions The issue relates to amounts associated with contributions if any made
by a state or local government employer or nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit
pension plan after the measurement date of the government s beginning net pension liability The

provisions of this Statement will be effective for the fiscal year ending September 30 2015

The City s management has not yet determined the effect that these unadopted standards
may have on the City s financial statements

NOTE 14 RESTATEMENT OF BEGINNING NET POSITION

For the year ended September 30 2013 the City implemented GASB Statement No 65
Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities This resulted in a decrease to the beginning
net position on the statement of activities of 154 918 for governmental activities to remove bond
issuance costs in accordance with GASB 65
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

Charges for services

Certificate of use fees 5 200 5 200 4 095

Variance

Lien search fees 75 000 75 000 113 000

with Final

Development review fees 50 000 50 000 141 229

Budget

Recreation cultural events

Budgeted Amounts

1 063 000

Actual Positive

Police services

Original Final Amounts Negative
REVENUES

2 080 200 2 178 200 2 408 326 230 126

Ad valorem taxes

Current 12 300 495 12 300 495 11 857 991 442 504
Delinquent 50 000 50 000 222 233 172 233

Utility service taxes
Electric 4 000 000 4 000 000 4 259 017 259 017

Telecommunication 2 524 505 2 609 505 2 732 283 122 778

Water 875 000 875 000 844 187 30 813
Gas 34 000 34 000 21 282 12 718

Franchise fees

Electric 2 300 000 2 300 000 2 328 313 28 313

Gas 30 000 30 000 17 795 12 205

Sanitation 420 000 420 000 457 007 37 007

Towing 30 000 30 000 20 375 9 625

Total taxes 22 564 000 22 649 000 22 760 483 111 483

Intergovernmental revenues

Federal grants 8 000 202 382 221 876 19 494

State and local grants 8 677 8 677 22 209 13 532

State pension contribution 250 000 250 000 287 726 37 726

Alcoholic beverage licenses 20 000 20 000 18 708 1 292

State revenue sharing 365 000 365 000 512 571 147 571

Half cent sales tax 2 200 000 2 379 000 2 455 850 76 850

County occupational licenses 45 000 45 000 48 567 3 567

Total intergovernmental

revenues 2 896 677 3 270 059 3 567 507 297 448

Licenses and permits

City business tax receipts 772 000 772 000 877 939 105 939

Building permits 1 451 500 1 539 500 1 542 790 3 290

Certificates of occupancy 25 000 25 000 41 933 16 933

Engineering 11 000 11 000 27 045 16 045

Total licenses and permits 2 259 500 2 347 500 2 489 707 142 207

Charges for services

Certificate of use fees 5 200 5 200 4 095 1 105

Lien search fees 75 000 75 000 113 000 38 000

Development review fees 50 000 50 000 141 229 91 229

Recreation cultural events 965 000 1 063 000 1 114 939 51 939

Police services 985 000 985 000 1 035 063 50 063

Total charges for services 2 080 200 2 178 200 2 408 326 230 126
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND

continued

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

Fines and forfeitures

County court fees
Code violation fines

Total fines and forfeitures

Other

Interest income

Miscellaneous

Total other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government

City Commission
Personnel services

Operating
City Manager

Personnel services

Operating
Finance

Personnel services

Operating
Capital outlay

Information technology
Personnel services

Operating
Capital outlay

Legal

Operating
City Clerk

Personnel services

Operating

Total general government

departmental

Budizeted Amounts

Original Final

400 000 400 000

1 057 000 1 407 000

1 457 000 1 807 000

125 000

53 300

178 300

31 435 677

62 063

61 005

750 970

159 800

713 077

100 940

2 000

686 405

242 800

151 000

270 000

224 921

75 000

3 499 981
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125 000

53 300

178 300

32 430 059

62 063

61 005

750 970

159 800

713 077

100 940

2 000

686 405

242 800

390 634

355 000

224 921

75 000

Actual

Amounts

383 118

1 820 383

2 203 501

32 034

146 502

178 536

15 ono non

62 432

57 876

772 744

126 301

712 246

68 234

1 332

574 857

192 599

160 443

350 422

227 506
An

3 824 615 3 356 758

Variance

with Final

Budget

Positive

Negative

16 882
A1 nO

396 501

92 966

93 202

X1 1

369

3 129

21 774

33 499

831

32 706

668

111 548

50 201

230 191

4 578

2 585

25 234

467 857



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND

continued

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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Variance

with Final

Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

rigina Final Amounts Negative
Nondepartmental

Personnel services 15 000 15 000 15 000

Operating 1 405 556 1 405 556 1 242 542 163 014

Capital outlay 18 073 488 18 073 488 3 625 514 14 447 974

Total general government

nondepartmental 19 494 044 19 494 044 4 868 056 14 625 988

Total general government 22 994 025 23 318 659 8 224 814 15 093 845

Public safety
Police

Personnel services 14 800 330 14 800 330 14 756 795 43 535

Operating 1 760 500 2 110 500 2 001 155 109 345

Capital outlay 864 400 3 862 328 2 065 359 1 796 969

Community development
Personnel services 744 064 744 064 728 184 15 880

Operating 920 250 1 187 250 1 195 892 8 642

Capital outlay 93 800 93 800 2 664 91 136

Total public safety 19 183 344 22 798 272 20 750 049 2 048 223

Community services
Personnel services 1 339 559 1 339 559 1 308 452 31 107

Operating 2 816 950 2 914 950 2 940 963 26 013

Capital outlay 903 600 1 103 885 633 580 470 305

Arts and cultural center

Operating 673 590 673 590 664 482 9 108

Capital outlay 27 700 27 700 12 666 15 034

Total community services 5 761 399 6 059 684 5 560 143 499 541

Total expenditures 47 938 768 52 176 615 34 535 006 17 641 609

Excess deficiency of
revenues over expenditures 16 503 091 19 746 556 926 946 18 819 610

Other financing sources uses
Transfers in 8 000 8 000 8 000

Transfers out 2 220 961 2 205 882 2 205 882

Appropriated fund balance 18 716 052 21 944 438 21 944 438

Total other financing
sources uses 16 503 091 19 746 556 2 197 882 21 944 438

Net change in

fund balance 3 124 828 3 124 828

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STREET MAINTENANCE FUND

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenues

Impact fees

Interest income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Operating
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of
revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES USES

Appropriated fund balance

Total other financing
sources uses

Net change in

fund balance

Variance

with Final

Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual Negative

1 580 250 1 580 250 1 978 747 398 497

494 919 494 919

500 500 1 485 985

1 580 750 1 580 750 2 475 151 894 401

785 000

854 900

1 639 900

785 000 778 001 6 999
1 Zn nc nni ont coc 117

2 392 063 1 699 847 692 216

59 150 811 313 775 304 1 586 617

59 150 811 313 811 313

811 313 811 313

775 304 775 304

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN FUND
AND OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS UNAUDITED

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS UNAUDITED

10 01 13 679 000 679 000

10 01 11 710 000 710 000

10 01 08 735 000 735 000

UAAL

as a

Percentage

c of Covered

Covered Payroll

Payroll b a c

7 663 687

6 418 797

5 576 592

0 0 11 640 000

0 0 12 781 000

0 0 9 175 000

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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72 02

91 88

69 76

5 83

5 56

8 01

b

Actuarial

Accrued

Liability
a AAL Unfunded

Actuarial Actuarial Frozen AAL Funded

Valuation Value Initial UAAL Ratio

Date of Assets Liability b a a b

POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN FUND UNAUDITED

10 01 12 19 610 921 25 129 927 5 519 006 78 04

10 01 09 10 375 587 16 273 418 5 897 831 63 76

10 01 07 6 935 097 10 825 108 3 890 011 64 06

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS UNAUDITED

10 01 13 679 000 679 000

10 01 11 710 000 710 000

10 01 08 735 000 735 000

UAAL

as a

Percentage

c of Covered

Covered Payroll

Payroll b a c

7 663 687

6 418 797

5 576 592

0 0 11 640 000

0 0 12 781 000

0 0 9 175 000

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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72 02

91 88

69 76

5 83

5 56
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FROM THE EMPLOYER AND THE STATE
OF FLORIDA POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN FUND UNAUDITED

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information

59

CITY STATE OF FLORIDA

Annual

Required City Percentage Annual Percentage

Contribution Contribution Contributed Contribution Contributed

2013 1 671 831 1 671 831 100 00 287 726 100 00

2012 1 655 005 1 655 005 100 00 268 692 100 00

2011 1 645 843 1 645 843 100 00 250 125 100 00

2010 1 245 754 1 320 667 106 01 284 381 100 00

2009 886 124 1 149 156 129 68 265 314 100 00

2008 1 006 054 1 024 908 101 87 163 088 100 00

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

September 30 2013

NOTE 1 BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for all governmental funds with the exception of
the Charter School Fund Federal Forfeiture Fund Law Enforcement Trust Fund and Capital
Projects Fund Special Revenue Funds

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic
financial statements

a The City Manager submits to the City Commission a proposed operating and capital
budget for the ensuing fiscal year The budget includes proposed expenditures and
the means of financing them

b Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments

Prior to October 1 the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance

d Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during
the year for the governmental funds described above

The City Commission by ordinance may make supplemental appropriations for the
year up to the amount of revenues in excess of those estimated The City
Commission made several supplementary budgetary appropriations throughout the
year including approximately 4 222 800 in the General Fund

Budgets for the governmental funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles GAAP

g The City Manager is authorized to transfer part or all of an unencumbered
appropriation balance within departments within a fund however any revisions that
alter the total appropriations of any department or fund must be approved by the
City Commission The classification detail at which expenditures may not legally
exceed appropriations is at the department level

h Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end Unencumbered amounts are

reappropriated in the following year s budget for capital accounts only

Expenditures did not exceed appropriations in any of the governmental funds

NOTE 2 ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

Police Officers Retirement Plan Fund Information as of the latest actuarial valuation date

of October 1 2012 included no cost of living adjustments and a 3 00 annual inflation rate an

annual investment rate of return of 7 50 projected annual salary increases of 5 00 the

amortization method is level dollar closed and a remaining amortization period of 21 years

Other Post Employment Benefits Information as of the latest actuarial valuation date of
October 1 2013 included an annual investment rate of return of 4 0 the amortization method is

level dollar an amortization period of 12 year open and an actuarial cost method of projected unit

credit

1
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NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report specific revenues that are restricted or committed
to expenditure for particular purposes other than debt service or capital projects

Police Education Fund This fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures associated with the
two dollars 2 the City receives from each paid traffic citation by State Statute must be used to further
the education of the City s police officers

Police Capital Outlay Impact Fee Fund This fund is used to account for impact fees derived from new

developments and restricted by ordinance for police capital improvements This fund provides a funding
source to assist the City in providing police services required by the growth in the City This fund was

closed during the fiscal year ended September 30 2013

Park Development Fund This fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures specifically
earmarked for capital improvements to the City s park system This fund accounts for impact fees derived
from new developments and restricted by ordinance for park capital improvement projects This fund was
closed during the fiscal year ended September 30 2013

911 Fund This fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures specifically earmarked for the
Crtymergency 911 system in accordance with Florida Statutes 365 172 The funds may be used to
provide emergency dispatch systems training communication maintenance and repairs and related capital
outlay purchases The fund offsets a portion of the emergency 911 operations

Federal Forfeiture Fund This fund is used to account for proceeds obtained from the sale of confiscated

and unclaimed property turned over to the City through court judgments Proceeds are to be used solely
for crime fighting purposes

Law Enforcement Trust Fund This fund is used to account for resources resulting from police
department confiscations and their expenditure for law enforcement purposes

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted

committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays including the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities and other capital assets

Capital Projects This fund is used to account for impact fees and other revenue sources specifically
earmarked or capital projects

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt service funds are used to account for and report the accumulation of financial resources that are
restricted committed or assigned for the payment ofprincipal and interest on all general long term debt

Debt Service Fund Series 2010 2011 This fund is used to accumulate monies for the payment of the

2010 and 2011 Refunding Revenue Bonds Non ad valorem tax revenues in the governmental funds are
pledged for the payment of principal and interest

Debt Service Fund Series 2012 Charter School Land Ac uisition This fund is used to accumulate

monies or the payment o the 2012 Re ndmg Revenue Bonds Non ad valorem tax revenues in the
governmental funds are pledged for the payment of principal and interest

Debt Service Fund Series 2012 Charter School Building Construction This fund is used to accumulate

monies for the payment of the 2002 Re nding Revenue Bonds Non ad valorem tax revenues in the
governmental funds are pledged for the payment of principal and interest



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

OTHER NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30 2013

Special Revenue Funds

Police

Capital

Police Outlay Park Federal

Education Impact Development 911 Forfeiture

Fund Fee Fund Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS

Cash cash equivalents

and investments 8 040 80 995 922 743

Restricted cash cash equivalents

and investments

Accounts receivable net 53 423

Due from other governments 1 444 3 252

Total assets 9 484 134 418 925 995

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 35 308 588

Accrued liabilities

Total liabilities 35 308 588

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue intergovernmental 30 335

FUND BALANCES

Restricted for

Community services
Public safety 9 484 104 048 617 407

Debt service

Total fund balances 9 484 104 048 617 407

Total liabilities deferred inflows

of resources and fund balances 9 484 134 418 925 995
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30 335

140 933 140 933

120 688 19 891 871 518

12 049 9 456 125 936 147 441

120 688 160 824 12 049 9 456 125 936 1 159 892

148 529 160 824 267 763 9 456 125 936 1 782 405

62

Capital

Projects Fund Debt Service Funds

Debt Debt

Service Fund Service Fund

Debt Series 2012 Series 2012
Law Service Charter Charter Total

Enforcement Fund School School Nonmajor
Trust Capital Series 2010 Land Building Governmental
Fund Projects 2011 Acquisition Construction Funds

148 529 160 824 267 763 9 393 125 875 1 724 162

63 61 124

53 423

4 696

148 529 160 824 267 763 9 456 125 936 1 782 405

27 841 336 464

255 714 255 714

30 335

140 933 140 933

120 688 19 891 871 518

12 049 9 456 125 936 147 441

120 688 160 824 12 049 9 456 125 936 1 159 892

148 529 160 824 267 763 9 456 125 936 1 782 405
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OTHER NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

63

Special Revenue Funds

Police

Capital

Police Outlay Park Federal

Education Impact Development 911 Forfeiture

Fund Fee Fund Fund Fund Fund

REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenues 165 211

Fines and forfeitures 10 452 105 986

Impact fees

Interest income 16 49 1 684

Miscellaneous income

Total revenues 10 468 165 260 107 670

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public safety 12 834 82 870

Capital outlay 5 513 2 264 491 069

Debt service

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures 12 834 5 513 2 264 82 870 491 069

Excess deficiency of
revenues over expenditures 2 366 5 513 2 264 82 390 383 399

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES

Transfers in

Transfers out 8 000

Total other financing sources uses 8 000

Net change in fund balances 2 366 5 513 2 264 74 390 383 399

FUND BALANCES beginning 11 850 5 513 2 264 29 658 1 000 806

FUND BALANCES ending 9 484 104 048 617 407
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M

Capital

Projects Fund Debt Service Funds

Debt Debt

Service Fund Service Fund

Debt Series 2012 Series 2012

Law Service Charter Charter Total

Enforcement Fund School School Nonmajor

Trust Capital Series 2010 Land Building Governmental
Fund Projects 2011 Acquisition Construction Funds

165 211

51 605 168 043

160 824 160 824
265 254 13 2 281

7 700 7 700

59 570 160 824 254 13 504 059

42 897 138 601

498 846

675 000 278 834 311 166 1 265 000

523 224 114 855 128 241 766 320

42 897 1 198 224 393 689 439 407 2 668 767

16 673 160 824 1 197 970 393 676 439 407 2 164 708

1 198 430 399 642 444 000 2 042 072

8 000

1 198 430 399 642 444 000 2 034 072

16 673 160 824 460 5 966 4 593 130 636

104 015 11 589 3 490 121 343 1 290 528

12008 160 824 12 049 9 456 125 936 1 159 892

M



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

POLICE EDUCATION FUND

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

REVENUES

Fines and forfeitures

Interest income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Operating

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of
revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES USES

Appropriated fund balance

Total other financing
sources uses

Net change in

fund balance

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Variance

with Final

Budget

Positive

Actual Negative

7 000 7 000 10 452 3 452

16 16

7 000 7 000 10 468 3 468

7 000 18 850 12 834 6 016

11 850 2 366 9 484

11 850 11 850

11 850 11 850

2 366 2 366

CZ



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

POLICE CAPITAL OUTLAY IMPACT FEE FUND

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of
revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES USES

Appropriated fund balance

Total other financing
sources uses

Net change in

fund balance

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Variance

with Final

Budget

Positive

Actual Negative

5 513 5 513

5 513 5 513

5 513 5 513

5 513 5 513

5 513 5 513

5 513 5 513



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

REVENUES

Interest income

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of
revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES USES

Appropriated fund balance

Total other financing
sources uses

Net change in

fund balance

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Variance

with Final

Budget

Positive

Actual Negative

2 256 2 264 2 264

2 256 2 264 2 264

2 256 2 264 2 264

2 256 2 264 2 264

2 256 2 264 2 264

2 264 2 264
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
911 FUND

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenues
Interest income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Operating
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of
revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES USES

Transfers out

Appropriated fund balance

Total other financing
sources uses

Net change in

fund balance

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

137 400 137 400

Variance

with Final

Budget

Positive

Actual Negative

165 211 27 811

137 400 137 400 165 260 27 860

129 400 129 400 82 870 46 530

29 658 29 658

129 400 159 058

8 000 21 658

82 870 76 188

82 390 104 048

8 000 8 000 8 000

29 658 29 658

8 000 21 658 8 000 29 658

74 390 74 390



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUND SERIES 2010 2011

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

REVENUES

Interest income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of
revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES USES

Transfers in

Appropriated fund balance

Total other financing
sources uses

Net change in

fund balance

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Variance

with Final

Budget

Positive

Actual Negative

254 254

675 000 675 000 675 000

535 019 535 019 523 224 11 795

1 210 019 1 210 019 1 198 224 11 795

1 210 019 1 210 019 1 197 970 12 049

1 210 019 1 198 430 1 198 430

11 589 11 589

1 210 019 1 210 019 1 198 430 11 589

460 460

ME



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUND SERIES 2000

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

REVENUES

Interest income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of
revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES USES

Transfers in

Total other financing
sources uses

Net change in

fund balance

Variance

with Final

Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual Negative

25 410 25 410

25 410 25 410

325 000 325 000 325 000

182 810 182 810 182 449

507 810 507 810 507 449

507 810 507 810 482 039

507 810 507 810 507 810

361

25 771

507 810 507 810 507 810

25 771 25 771
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUND SERIES 2012

CHARTER SCHOOL LAND ACQUISITION
For the Year Ended September 30 2013

Variance

with Final

Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual Negative

REVENUES

Interest income 13 13

Total revenues 13 13

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service

Principal 278 834 278 834 278 834

Interest 114 855 114 855 114 855

Trustee fees and other 9 443 9 443 9 443

Total expenditures 403 132 403 132 393 689 9 443

Excess deficiency of
revenues over expenditures 403 132 403 132 393 676 9 456

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES USES

Transfers in 403 132 399 642 399 642

Appropriated fund balance 3 490 3 490

Total other financing
sources uses 403 132 403 132 399 642 3 490

Net change in

fund balance 5 966 5 966
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUND SERIES 2012

CHARTER SCHOOL BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service

Principal

Interest

Trustee fees and other

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of
revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES USES

Transfers in

Total other financing
sources uses

Net change in

fund balance

Variance

with Final

Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual Negative

311 166 311 166 311 166

128 241 128 241 128 241

5 683 5 683 5 683

445 090 445 090 439 407 5 683

445 090 445 090 439 407 5 683

445 090

i M1

72

444 000 1 090

444 000 1 090

4 593 4 593
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STATISTICAL SECTION



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of City of Aventura s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what information in the financial statements note disclosures and required

supplementary information says about the City s overall financial health

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City s
financial performance and well being have changed over time

Net position by component 73
Changes in net position 74 75

Governmental activities tax revenues by source 76
Fund balances of govermnental funds 77

Changes in fund balances of govermnental funds 78 79

General governmental tax revenues by source 80

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City s most significant
local revenue source the property tax

Assessed value and estimated actual assessed value of taxable property 81

Property tax rates direct and overlapping governments 82 83

Principal property taxpayers 84

Property tax levies and collections 85

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
City s current levels of outstanding debt and the City s ability to issue additional debt in
the future

Ratios of outstanding debt by type 86

Ratios of general bonded debt outstanding 87

Direct and overlapping governmental activity debt 88

Legal debt margin information 89

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City s financial activities take place

Demographic and economic statistics 90

Occupational employment by group Miami Dade County Florida 91

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information
in the City s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs

Full time equivalent city government employees by function
Operating indicators by function
Capital asset statistics by function

92

93

94

Sources Unless otherwise indicated information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the respective years
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Fiscal

CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA Table 3

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Tax

Roll Ad Valorem Utility Franchise
Vo T m rte

2004 2003 10 143 246 5 460 119
2005 2004 11 842 689 5 719 554

2006 2005 14 089 388 6 015 016
2007 2006 17 127 913 6 269 809
2008 2007 15 942 020 6 741 903
2009 2008 15 189 005 7 451 872

2010 2009 13 253 848 7 362 899
2011 2010 11 734 232 7 379 830
2012 2011 11 724 189 7 772 000

2013 2012 12 080 224 7 551 899

17

2 185 155 17 788 520

2 330 809 19 893 052

3 359 261 23 463 665

4 234 574 27 632 296

4 270 671 26 954 594

3 644 177 26 285 054

3 686 885 24 303 632

2 684 216 21 798 278

3 070 065 22 566 254

2 823 490 22 455 613
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

REVENUES

Ad valorem taxes

Utility service taxes
Franchise fees

Intergovernmental

Licenses and permits

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures

Impact fees

Interest income

Developer contributions

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government

Public safety
Community services
Nondepartmental

Capital outlay
Debt service

Principal

Advance refunding escrow
Interest

Trustee fees and other

Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES

Issuance of debt

Transfers in

Transfers out

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent

Total other financing sources uses

Net change in

fund balances

Debt service as a percentage of

noncapital expenditures

Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006 2007

10 143 246

5 460 119

2 185 155

7 663 308

2 146 913

1 099 321

351 698

754 954

174 983

85 842

134 768

30 200 307

11 842 689

5 719 554

2 330 809

7 263 468

3 335 034

1 598 230

472 465

959 264

553 135

298 875

34 373 523

14 089 388

6 015 016

3 359 261

10 905 885

3 277 960

1 904 741

601 339

398 436

1 159 778

610 584

17 127 913

6 269 809

4 234 574

11 586 872

3 229 778

2 194 596

577 148

40 340

1 580 978

234 544

42 322 388 47 076 552

2 371 236 2 580 989 2 668 284 4 884 708

10 594 453 12 256 346 13 781 535 14 360 873

7 495 145 7 997 769 9 019 229 10 817 310

1 292 580 1 623 794 2 978 900

3 905 875 7 416 346 5 800 374 9 265 681

900 000 930 000 965 000 1 005 000

1 786 797 1 753 446 1 719 392 1 682 298

28 932 28 363 25 817 24 691

28 375 018 34 587 053 36 958 531 42 040 561

1 825 289 213 530 5 363 857 5 035 991

3 687 963 2 821 795 2 740 850 2 898 498

3 285 681 2 718 585 2 690 108 2 898 498

402 282 103 210 50 742

2 227 571 110 320 5 414 599 5 035 991

10 98

78
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Table 5

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

15 942 020 15 189 005 13 253 848 11 734 232 11 724 189 12 080 224

6 741 903 7 451 872 7 448 097 7 465 029 7 486 791 7 856 769

4 270 671 3 644 177 3 686 885 2 684 216 3 070 065 2 823 490

11 762 763 13 273 593 12 970 784 11 764 642 11 738 610 12 432 705

2 808 112 1 892 862 2 025 310 2 374 902 2 522 665 2 489 707

2 313 107 2 078 224 2 322 794 2 814 652 2 891 647 2 997 916

652 747 2 275 882 3 107 179 2 096 677 2 459 276 2 371 544

15 581 101 189 440 22 426 655 743

1 035 457 292 180 310 885 195 382 174 152 65 726

748 831 438 421 428 907 414 678 303 795 380 446

46 275 611 46 551 797 45 554 790 41 733 850 42 393 616 44 154 270

4 561 020 4 639 737 4 360 999 4 274 015 4 266 981 4 437 525

14 727 849 15 625 029 16 965 808 17 636 378 18 413 325 18 820 627

10 798 272 11 057 179 11 950 071 12 083 949 12 305 720 12 727 047

9 256 902 7 278 743 8 576 499 2 596 599 3 050 256 8 158 627

1 035 000 1 080 000 1 130 000 635 000 960 000 1 590 000

520 000 336 928 597 856

1 642 606 1 607 984 1 553 980 1 212 882 987 303 948 769

25 306 18 194 89 766 49 496 77 909

42 046 955 41 306 866 45 147 123 38 825 247 40 659 350 46 682 595

4 228 656 5 244 931 407 667 2 908 603 1 734 266 2 528 325

10 385 000 5 565 000 9 885 000

2 907 111 5 254 251 4 526 447 2 316 510 2 747 803 2 657 882

2 907 111 5 254 251 4 526 447 2 316 510 2 747 803 2 657 882

10 321 560 5 504 006 9 810 000

63 440 60 994 75 000

4 228 656 5 244 931 471 107 2 969 597 1 809 266 2 528 325

8 17 7 90 7 15 5 07 5 11 6 54
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

PROPERTY TAX RATES

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

PER 1 000 OF TAXABLE VALUE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Source Miami Dade County Appraiser s Office

82

Overlapping Rates

Cite of Aventura School District State

South

Florida Florida

Tax Debt Total Debt Total Water Inland Total

Fiscal Roll Operating Service City Operating Service School Everglades Management Navigational State

Year Year Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Project District District Millage

2004 2003 2 2270 2 2270 8 4180 0 6820 9 1000 0 1000 0 5970 0 0385 0 7355

2005 2004 2 2270 2 2270 8 0900 0 5970 8 6870 0 1000 0 5970 0 0385 0 7355

2006 2005 2 2270 2 2270 7 9470 0 4910 8 4380 0 1000 0 5970 0 0385 0 7355

2007 2006 2 2270 2 2270 7 6910 0 4140 8 1050 0 1000 0 5970 0 0385 0 7355

2008 2007 1 7261 1 7261 7 5700 0 3780 7 9480 0 0894 0 5346 0 0345 0 6585

2009 2008 1 7261 1 7261 7 5330 0 2640 7 7970 0 0894 0 5346 0 0345 0 6585

2010 2009 1 7261 1 7261 7 6980 0 2970 7 9950 0 0894 0 5346 0 0345 0 6585

2011 2010 1 7261 1 7261 7 8640 0 3850 8 2490 0 0894 0 5346 0 0345 0 6585

2012 2011 1 7261 1 7261 7 7650 0 2400 8 0050 0 0624 0 3739 0 0345 0 4708

2013 2012 1 7261 1 7261 7 7650 0 2330 79980 0 0613 0 3676 0 0345 0 4634

Source Miami Dade County Appraiser s Office

82



Table 8

83

Overlapping Rates

Miami Dade County Special Districts

Total

Direct

Debt Total Fire Total and

Operating Service County Children s and Fire District s Overlapping

Millage Millage Millage Trust Rescue Debt Library Millage Rates

5 9690 0 2850 6 2540 0 5000 2 5820 0 0790 0 4860 3 6470 21 9635

5 9350 0 2850 6 2200 0 4442 2 5920 0 0690 0 4860 3 5912 21 4607

5 8350 0 2850 6 1200 0 4288 2 6090 0 0520 0 4860 3 5758 21 0963

5 6150 0 2850 59000 0 4223 2 6090 0 0420 0 4860 3 5593 20 5268

4 5796 0 2850 4 8646 0 4223 2 2067 0 0420 0 3842 3 0552 18 2524

4 8379 0 2850 5 1229 0 4212 2 1851 0 0420 0 3822 3 0305 18 3350

4 8379 0 2850 5 1229 0 5000 2 1851 0 0420 0 3822 3 1093 18 6118

5 4275 0 4450 5 8725 0 5000 2 5753 0 0200 0 2840 3 3793 19 8854

4 8050 0 2850 5 0900 0 5000 2 4496 0 0131 0 1795 3 1422 18 4341

4 7035 0 2850 4 9885 0 5000 2 4496 0 0131 0 1725 3 1352 18 3112
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA Table 11

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Notes Details regarding the City s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements
1 See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data

Information not available

Me

Business Type

Governmental Activities Activities

General Total Percentage Per

Fiscal Obligation Revenue Line of Outstanding Primary of Personal Capita

Year Bonds Bonds Credit Bonds Government Income 1 1

2004 37 155 000 37 155 000 4 27 1 317 23

2005 36 225 000 36 225 000 3 85 1 271 05

2006 35 260 000 35 260 000 3 33 1 197 24

2007 34 255 000 34 255 000 3 07 1 127 44

2008 33 220 000 33 220 000 2 88 1 070 09

2009 32 140 000 32 140 000 2 90 1 032 58

2010 30 815 000 30 815 000 2 70 988 26

2011 30 045 000 30 045 000 2 21 841 05

2012 28 805 000 28 805 000 1 99 773 52

2013 27 215 000 27 215 000 721 40

Notes Details regarding the City s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements
1 See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data

Information not available

Me



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Table 12

Notes Details regarding the City s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements
1 See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for population data

87

Less Ratio Net

Amounts of Net Bonded

Available Assessed Bonded Debt

Gross in Debt Net Value of Debt to Per

Fiscal Bonded Service Bonded Taxable Assessed Capita

Year Debt Funds Debt Property Value 1

2004 37 155 000 31 000 37 124 000 4 730 954 049 0 78 1 316 13

2005 36 225 000 42 000 36 183 000 5 557 061 536 0 65 1 269 58

2006 35 260 000 24 278 35 235 722 6 616 421 499 0 53 1 196 42

2007 34 255 000 133 053 34 121 947 8 160 923 804 0 42 1 123 06

2008 33 220 000 136 790 33 083 210 9 609 881 719 0 34 1 065 69

2009 32 140 000 137 175 32 002 825 9 439 807 532 0 34 1 028 17

2010 30 815 000 280 321 30 534 679 8 063 834 953 0 38 979 27

2011 30 045 000 231 562 29 813 438 7 244 606 607 0 41 834 57

2012 28 805 000 274 594 28 530 406 7 290 634 319 0 39 766 14

2013 27 215 000 311 384 26 903 616 7 501 239 017 0 36 713 15

Notes Details regarding the City s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements
1 See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for population data

87



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY DEBT

September 30 2013

Jurisdiction

Overlapping debt
Miami Dade Board of County Commissioners 2

Miami Dade County School Board 2

Subtotal overlapping debt

Direct debt

City of Aventura

Subtotal direct debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Debt

Outstanding

3 800 709 000

3 141 534 000

6 942 243 000

27 215 000

27 215 000

6 969 458 000

Estimated

Percentage

Applicable

to City of
Aventura

1

Table 13

Estimated

Share of

Overlapping
T 1

3 938 149 671 920

3 938 123 713 609

273 385 529

100 000 27 215 000

27 215 000

Notes 1 The percentage of the overlap is calculated as follows
Overlapping portion of the government s revenue base City of Aventura
Total revenue base of the overlapping government Miami Dade County

Assesed value of taxable property is the base used in the above calculation

2 Source Miami Dade County Public Schools Finance Department

300 600 529
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Data sources

1 Years are as of April 1 of each year per the University of Florida
Bureau of Economics Business Research

Table 15

Unemployment

Rate

3

2 Represents income per capita for Miami Dade County as provided
by the U S Department of Commerce Bureau of Economic Analysis

3 Florida Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Market Information

Information not available

E

3 3

3 7

3 4

3 5

4 3

8 5

9 2

8 7

6 8

6 3

Personal

Income Per Capita

Amounts Personal

Fiscal Population Expressed in Income

Year 1 Thousands 2

2004 28 207 869 706 30 833

2005 28 500 940 700 33 007

2006 29 451 1 057 379 35 903

2007 30 383 1 115 481 36 714

2008 31 044 1 151 484 37 092

2009 31 126 1 107 556 35 583

2010 31 181 1 142 908 36 654

2011 35 723 1 362 047 38 128

2012 37 239 1 447 108 38 860

2013 37 725

Data sources

1 Years are as of April 1 of each year per the University of Florida
Bureau of Economics Business Research

Table 15

Unemployment

Rate

3

2 Represents income per capita for Miami Dade County as provided
by the U S Department of Commerce Bureau of Economic Analysis

3 Florida Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Market Information

Information not available

E

3 3

3 7

3 4

3 5

4 3

8 5

9 2

8 7

6 8

6 3



CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA Table 16

OCCUPATIONAL EMPLOYMENT BY GROUP MIAMI DADE COUNTY FLORIDA

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Source Represents Metropolitan and Nonmetropolitan Area Occupational Employment for the
entire Miami Miami Beach Kendall Florida Metropolitan Division as provided by the
U S Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Statistics as of May 2012 Estimates do

not include self employed workers

N A Information not available

01

Fiscal Year

2013 2004

Percentage Percentage

of Total of Total

Occupational Groups Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Office and administrative support 197 250 1 19 74 N A N A N A

Sales and related 142 470 2 14 26 N A N A N A

Food preparation and service related 93 050 3 9 31 N A N A N A

Transportation and material moving 70 560 4 7 06 N A N A N A

Healthcare practitioners and technical 63 640 5 6 37 N A N A N A

Business and financial operations 53 330 6 5 34 N A N A N A

Education training and library 51 200 7 5 12 N A N A N A

Protective service 36 810 8 3 68 N A N A N A

Installation maintenance and repair 36 710 9 3 67 N A N A N A

Production 34 470 10 3 45 N A N A N A

Building and grounds cleaning and
maintenance 32 730 11 3 27 N A N A N A

Management 32 520 12 3 25 N A N A N A

Personal care and service 30 040 13 3 01 N A N A N A

Healthcare support 25 420 14 2 54 N A N A N A

Construction and extraction 22 710 15 2 27 N A N A N A

Computer and mathematical science 17 170 16 1 72 N A N A N A

Legal 15 080 17 1 51 N A N A N A

Arts design entertainment

sports and media 14 410 18 1 44 N A N A N A

Community and social services 12 130 19 1 21 N A N A N A

Architecture and engineering 9 960 20 1 00 N A N A N A

Life physical and social sciences 4 010 21 0 40 N A N A N A

Farming fishing and forestry 3 720 22 0 37 N A N A N A

Total 999 390 100 00 N A N A

Source Represents Metropolitan and Nonmetropolitan Area Occupational Employment for the
entire Miami Miami Beach Kendall Florida Metropolitan Division as provided by the
U S Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Statistics as of May 2012 Estimates do

not include self employed workers

N A Information not available

01
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Keefe McCullough Co LLP
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor

Members of the City Commission and City Manager
City of Aventura Florida

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States the financial statements of the
governmental activities the business type activities each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Aventura Florida the City as of and for the year ended September

30 2013 and the related notes to the financial statements which collectively comprise the City s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 12 2014 Our report includes

a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the City of Aventura Police
Officers Retirement Plan Pension Trust Fund as described in our report on the City s financial
statements This report does not include the results of the other auditor s testing of internal control
over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those
auditors

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements we considered the City s internal
control over financial reporting internal control to determine the audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City s internal
control Accordingly we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City s internal control

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis A material weakness is a deficiency or

combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph

of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies Given these limitations during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses However
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified

6550 N Federal Highway 1b Suite 410 Fort Lauderdale FL 33308 1 954 771 0896 954 938 9353 F www kmccpa com
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City of Aventura Florida

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City s financial statements are free of
material misstatement we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws
regulations contracts and grant agreements noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts However providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly we do not
express such an opinion The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other

matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity s internal control or on compliance This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity s internal control and
compliance Accordingly this communication is not suitable for any other purpose

Fort Lauderdale Florida

February 12 2014

W

kee e c cu

KEEFE McCULLOUGH CO LLP



Keefe McCullough Co LLP
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A 133

To the Honorable Mayor

Members of the City Commission and City Manager
City of Aventura Florida

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Aventura Florida s the City compliance with the types of compliance

requirements described in the OMB Circular A 133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct

and material effect on each of City s major Federal programs for the year ended September 30 2013
The City s major Federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs

Management s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws regulations contracts

and grants applicable to its Federal programs

Auditor s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City s major Federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above We

conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government

Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and OMB Circular A
133 Audits of States Local Governments and Non Profit Organizations Those standards and OMB
Circular A 133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a

direct and material effect on a major Federal program occurred An audit includes examining on a
test basis evidence about the City s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major Federal program However our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City s
compliance

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion the City complied in all material respects with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
Federal programs for the year ended September 30 2013

6550 N Federal Highway i Suite 410 Fort Lauderdale FL 33308 4 954 771 0896 954 938 9353 F AwA kn ccpa corn
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City of Aventura Florida

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to in the first paragraph In

planning and performing our audit of compliance we considered the City s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major

Federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major Federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A 133 but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance
Accordingly we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City s internal control over
compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance

requirement of a Federal program on a timely basis A material weakness in internal control over

compliance is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a Federal program will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency or a combination of

deficiencies in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal
program and or state project that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over

compliance yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the

first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might material weaknesses or significant deficiencies We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses However material weaknesses

may exist that have not been identified

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of OMB Circular A 133 Accordingly this report is not suitable for any other purpose

Fort Lauderdale Florida

February 12 2014

Kee o VIC CO LLB
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Keefe McCullough Co LLP
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT TO CITY MANAGEMENT

To the Honorable Mayor

Members of the City Commission and City Manager
City of Aventura Florida

We have audited the basic financial statements of City of Aventura Florida the City as of and

for the year ended September 30 2013 and have issued our report thereon dated February 12 2014

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States OMB Circular A 133 Audits

of States Local Governments and Non Profit Organizations and Chapter 10 550 Rules of the

Florida Auditor General We have issued our Independent Auditor s Report on Internal Control over

Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards Independent Auditor s Report on
Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by OMB
Circular A 133 and Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Disclosures in those reports and

schedule which are dated February 12 2014 should be considered in conjunction with this
management letter

Additionally our audit was conducted in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10 550 Rules
of the Auditor General which governs the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in
the State of Florida This letter includes the following information which is not included in the
aforementioned auditor s reports

Section 10 554 1 i l Rules of the Auditor General requires that we determine whether or not

corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report There were no recommendations made in the preceding annual financial
report

Section 10 554 1 i 2 Rules of the Auditor General requires our audit to include a review of the
provisions of Section 218 415 Florida Statutes regarding the investment of public funds In

connection with our audit we determined that the City complied with Section 218 415 Florida

Statutes

Section 10 554 1 i 3 Rules of the Auditor General requires that we address in the management

letter any recommendations to improve financial management In connection with our audit we did

not have any such recommendations

Section 10 554 1 i 4 Rules of the Auditor General requires that we address noncompliance

with provisions of contracts or grant agreements or abuse that have occurred or are likely to have
occurred that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants
the attention of those charged with governance In connection with our audit we did not have any
such findings

6550 N Federal Highway Suite 410 Fort Lauderdale FL 33308 954 771 0896 954 938 9353 F www kmccpa com
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City of Aventura Florida

Section 10 554 1 i 5 Rules of the Auditor General requires that the name or official title and

legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be
disclosed in this management letter unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements The

information is disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements

Section 10 554 1 i 6 a Rules of the Auditor General requires a statement be included as to

whether or not the local governmental entity has met one or more of the conditions described in
Section 218 503 1 Florida Statutes and identification of the specific condition s met In connection

with our audit we determined that the City did not meet any of the conditions described in Section
218 503 1 Florida Statutes

Section 10 554 1 i 6 b Rules of the Auditor General requires that we determine whether the

annual financial report for the City for the fiscal year ended September 30 2013 filed with the

Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section 218 32 1 a Florida Statutes is in

agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30 2013 In

connection with our audit we determined that these two reports were in agreement

Pursuant to Sections 10 554 1 i 6 c and 10 556 7 Rules of the Auditor General we applied

financial condition assessment procedures It is management s responsibility to monitor the City s
financial condition and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made

by management and the review of financial information provided by same

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives the Florida

Auditor General Federal and other granting agencies and applicable management and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties

Fort Lauderdale Florida

February 12 2014
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

September 30 2013

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the grant activity
of the City and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting The information in this schedule is

presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A 133 Audits of States Local
Governments and Non Profit Organizations Therefore some amounts presented in this schedule

may differ from amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements

NOTE 2 CONTINGENCY

The grant revenue amounts received are subject to audit and adjustment If any
expenditures or expenses are disallowed by the grantor agencies as a result of such an audit any
claim for reimbursement to the grantor agencies would become a liability of the City of Aventura
Florida In the opinion of management all grant expenditures are in compliance with the terms of
the grant agreements and applicable Federal and state laws and regulations

NOTE 3 CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE

Complete Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance CFDA numbers are presented for
those programs for which such numbers were available CFDA prefixes are presented for
programs for which a complete CFDA number is not available
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CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended September 30 2013

A SUMMARY OF AUDITOR S RESULTS

1 The auditor s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements

2 No material weaknesses relating to the audit of the basic financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditor s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

3 No instances of noncompliance material to the basic financial statements of City of Aventura
Florida were disclosed during the audit

4 No material weaknesses relating to the audit of the major Federal program is reported in the
Independent Auditor s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control

over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A 133

5 The auditor s report on compliance for the major Federal program for City of Aventura
Florida expresses an unmodified opinion

6 No audit findings relative to the major Federal program for City of Aventura Florida are
reported in Part C of this schedule

7 The program tested as major program is as follows

Federal Program

United States Department of Justice

Equitable Sharing Program

Federal CFDA No

16 922

8 The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was 300 000 for the major Federal

programs

9 City of Aventura Florida was not determined to be a low risk auditee pursuant to OMB
Circular A 133

B FINDINGS FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

NONE

C FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

NONE

D OTHER ISSUES

No Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings for Federal Awards is required because there
were no prior audit findings related to Federal programs

No Corrective Action Plan is required because there were no findings required to be reported
under the Federal Single Audit Act
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CITY OF AVENTURA

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER

MEMORANDUM

TO City Commission

FROM Eric M Soroka ICMA CM Citymffp r g

DATE February 21 2014

SUBJECT Resolution Authorizing Agreemelvor G rant Funds for Pedestrian
and Bicycle Safety Enforcement Cabi0aign

March 4 2014 Commission Meeting Agenda Item 5 x

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Commission authorize the execution of the attached
grant Agreement with the University of South Florida s Center for Urban Transportation
Research in the amount of 9 360 for the Police Department to implement a pedestrian

and bicycle safety enforcement campaign

BACKGROUND

In our continued efforts to improve pedestrian and bicycle safety throughout the City
the Police Department has obtained a grant to pay for overtime costs to implement a
Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety Enforcement Campaign The services to be provided by
the Police Department include high visibility enforcement through the use of selective
enforcement and education distribution of safety educational materials and engaging
the media to assist with distributing messages to the community regarding the safety
campaign

If you have any questions please feel free to contact me

EMS act

Attachment

CCO1836 14



Letter of Agreement and Contract

In this contract between the City of Aventura Police Department vendor and the University of South
Florida Board of Trustees for the University of South Florida s Center for Urban Transportation
Research University the vendor shall perform the services outlined in the scope of services Exhibit A

Total not to exceed 9 360 00

This contract is being entered into under the terms and conditions of the Florida Department of Transportation
FDOT project TWO 945 001 Contract BDV25 A final product must be received or services completed

by August 15 2014 a final invoice must be received by August 15 2014 The vendor shall forfeit payment of
costs if final invoice is not received by close of business on August 15 2014 Invoices may be mailed via the
U S Post Office shipped or emailed to Kristin c cutr usf edu Faxed invoices are not accepted

It is expressly understood that the vendor is an independent contractor and not an agent of the FDOT or the
University of South Florida The FDOT and the University s liability in negligence or indemnity for acts of its
employees or officers will only be provided under Section 768 28 Florida Statutes Neither the FDOT nor the
University shall be responsible for attorney fees except as provided by statute

Subject to the limitations of Section 768 28 Florida Statutes the contractor shall be required to defend hold

harmless and indemnify the University the FDOT NHTSA FHWA and USDOT from all claims and liability
or both due to recklessness or intentional wrongful misconduct of the contractor consultant or their employees

In accordance with the contract the vendor is authorized to perform the tasks detailed in the attached Exhibits

and is fully responsible for satisfactory completion of all services The delivery of services will begin upon
execution of the contract and will end on or before August 15 2014 Allowable expenses include overtime

detail hours and FICA and retirement based on those hours only

Invoices must be submitted monthly beginning within 30 days of execution of this contract All invoices are
required to include the inclusive dates to from of service and the following certification statement All costs
are true and valid costs incurred in accordance with the agreement and must be signed by an authorized vendor
representative

CANCELLATION This contract may be unilaterally cancelled by the Department or the University for refusal
by the contractor to allow public access to all documents papers letters or other material made or received by
the contractor in conjunction with this contract unless the records are exempt from section 24 1 of Article 1 of

the state constitution and section 11 9 07 l Florida Statutes

Date

University of South Florida

Date

Project Director University of South Florida

Vendor s Authorized Agent Signature Date



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE SAFETY ENFORCEMENT CAMPAIGN

City of Aventura Police Department Vendor Agency

1 OBJECTIVE

The Florida Department of Transportation through a Task Work Order with the University of South Florida
will utilize law enforcement support to enhance a comprehensive safety campaign that promotes safe
pedestrian bicyclist and driver behaviors in high priority counties throughout the state

II PURPOSE

In 2011 traffic crashes in Florida resulted in 497 pedestrian fatalities 6 194 pedestrian injuries 120 bicyclist
fatalities and 4 632 bicyclist injuries Based on the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration NHTSA
Traffic Safety Facts these rates nearly double the national average for pedestrians and nearly triple the
national average for bicyclists

Pedestrian and Bicycle crashes are more likely to result in fatal or serious injuries than any other types of
crashes The number of hospitalizations and emergency room visits related to these crashes indicate that
the magnitude of the problem may even be larger than identified by traffic crash reports The financial
impacts and suffering caused by these fatalities and injuries are significant

This campaign is a component of Florida s Bicycle Pedestrian Focused Initiative Communication High

Visibility Enforcement Implementation under the direction of the Florida Department of Transportation

FDOT and the University of South Florida This program supports the goals established in Florida s

Pedestrian and Bicycle Strategic Safety Plan

III SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

A High Visibility Enforcement of all road users including pedestrians bicyclists and motorists
These enforcement activities are being implemented to remind and educate pedestrians bicyclists and
motorists of safe behaviors The main objective of this effort is to reduce traffic crashes and fatalities

involving pedestrians and bicyclists through the use of selected Traffic Enforcement and Education

Details Education and Enforcement activities may include warnings and or citations to pedestrians
bicyclists and motorists in accordance with Florida Statues

B Enforcement Officers shall distribute safety educational materials such as reflective items and printed

materials during High Visibility Enforcement Activities It is strongly recommended that an education
phase be conducted prior to issuing citations

C Enforcement agencies are required to engage the media to assist in distributing messages regarding the
safety campaign to motorist pedestrians and bicyclist in the identified areas Approved messages will
be provided for your use

IV DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

A The Department will provide each agency copies of the required training materials a copy of Florida s
Pedestrian and Bicycle Strategic Safety Plan and educational materials to support the efforts It is

required that education and enforcement efforts included in this project be concentrated in high priority
areas as identified in the proposal and approved by the Department Funding is restricted to overtime
efforts specific to pedestrian and bicycle safety in the identified high priority areas

V AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES

All officers assigned to details under this contract must first complete the National Highway Traffic Safety

Administration s Pedestrian Safety Training for Law Enforcement Once training has been completed a

certification must be submitted to the University listing which officers completed the training A copy of this
training CD has been provided to your training officer



B It is strongly recommended that officers engaged in these enforcement efforts also participate in

NHTSA Bicycle Safety Training for Law Enforcement
http mcs nhtsa gov index cfm fuseaction category display category ID 24 CFID 20271928 CFTOK
EN 38513143

NHTSA Roll Call Video Enforcing Law for Bicyclists
http www nhtsa gov Driving Safety Bicycles Enhancing Bicycle Safety Law Enforcement s Role

Within 30 days of the contract execution the agency must submit a list of personnel authorized to perform
overtime details under this agreement

Only personnel listed on the authorized personnel list and with a certification of completion of the approved

training are eligible for reimbursement under this agreement

Monthly reports will be provided to the University which will include

Number of enforcement details conducted with a list of officers assigned working the detail and the date
time and location specified

Citation data including warnings issued to motorist pedestrians and bicyclists

Educational efforts conducted with date time location and number of contacts specified

Personnel Timesheet Forms and Detail Reporting Forms these will be provided to you by the University

The funding that is provided to the Agency is not to be used to supplant the Agency s on going enforcement
and educational efforts Duplicated efforts will not be eligible for reimbursement

VI BEGINNING AND LENGTH OF SERVICES

A The performance period of this Agreement shall begin upon execution of the contract and shall end on

August 15 2014

B This Agreement is non renewable

VII ATTACHMENTS

Exhibits required forms and additional data may be attached to this agreement

VIII TERMINATION ACTION

This contract may be unilaterally cancelled by the Department for refusal by the contractor to allow public
access to all documents papers letters or other material made or received by the contractor in conjunction
with this contract unless the records are exempt from section 24 1 of Article 1 of the state constitution and

section 119 07 1 Florida Statutes



EXHIBIT B

METHOD OF COMPENSATION

PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE SAFETY ENFORCEMENT CAMPAIGN

City of Aventura Police Department Vendor Agency

PURPOSE

This Exhibit defines the limits and method of compensation to be made to the Vendor for the services set
forth in Exhibit A and the method by which payments shall be made

COMPENSATION

For the satisfactory performance of services detailed in Exhibit A the Vendor shall be paid a Maximum
Amount of 9 360 00

The University based on need and availability of budget may increase or decrease the Maximum Amount
by Amendment

III PROGRESS PAYMENTS

The Vendor shall submit an invoice 3 copies in a format acceptable to the Department Payment shall be

made at the contract hourly billing rates in Exhibit C for services provided as approved by the
Department The contract hourly billing rates shall include the costs of salaries and fringe benefits Payment

for expenses shall be made on the basis of actual allowable cost incurred as authorized and approved by the
Department

Invoices shall be submitted to

University of South Florida
Attn Kristin Larsson

4202 East Fowler Avenue CUT 100

Tampa Florida 33620

IV DETAILS OF COSTS AND FEES

Details of costs and fees for the performance of the services are contained in Exhibit C attached hereto

and made a part hereof

V TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY

This contract does not involve the purchase of Tangible Personal Property as defined in Chapter 273 F S



EXHIBIT C

PRICE SHEET PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE SAFETY ENFORCEMENT CAMPAIGN

City of Aventura Police Department

SERVICE PROVIDED Enhanced Traffic Enforcement Detail High Visibility Enforcement

Details to be completed per week 1

Hours per detail 3

Officers per detail 2

Total number of hot spots corridors 1

Frequency each hot spot will be
enforced

Once every week

Total number of times each hot spot

will be enforced
26

Hourly Rate Quantity Total Budget

60 156 9 360 00

Quantity calculated from 26 weeks at
level of effort indicated above

NOTE Modifications from submitted proposal reduction from 30 total details to 26 1x per week for 26 weeks no

funding for physical improvements 7 500 reduction compress education warn citation phases to 6 months total

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT I certify that I have read and agree to abide by the pricing and all terms and conditions of this
Agreement and that I am authorized to sign for the City of Aventura Police Department

Agency

Address

City

Authorized Signature

Printed Name

Title

FEID

State FL Zip

Date



PERSONNEL SERVICES TIME SHEET

Implementing Agency

Project Number Claim Number

For a period of to

Certified Correct by
Signer of Administrator of Implementing Agency

Instructions

1 DeIa II Locatron reflects the roadways and inkrsecllona wTere the enforcement activdiee were pedonnetl
2 protect Tma reflttta the dumber of hoard tlirectty related to duties associated with Mis prolttl Amual aM sick leave are part of project time
3T Hours reflects protect lime aM otter hours perla mi duties paitl for by a ercy

Name Name Name

Day of Month

Detail Location
Project1
Time Total Hours Detail Location

Project

Time Total Hours Detail Location
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Time Total Hours
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Agency Name

Street Address

City ST ZIP Code
Phone phone Fax fax

TO

University of South Florida
4202 East Fowler Ave CUT 100

Tampa FL 33602

ATTN Kristin Larsson

kristin a cutr usf edu

COMMENTS OR SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

INVOICE

INVOICE 100

DATE CLICK TO SELECT A DATE

Make all checks payable to Company Name
If you have any questions concerning this invoice contact Name phone email

Inclusive Dates of Service from to

All costs are true and valid costs incurred in accordance with the agreement

Authorized Agent Signature



RESOLUTION NO 2014

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA
FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND

OTHERWISE ENTER INTO THAT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF
AVENTURA AND THE UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA BOARD OF

TRUSTEES FOR THE UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA S CENTER FOR
URBAN TRANSPORTATION RESEARCH AUTHORIZING THE CITY

MANAGER TO DO ALL THINGS NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE AIMS OF
THIS RESOLUTION AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE

CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA THAT

Section 1 The City Manager is authorized to execute and otherwise enter into

that certain Agreement attached hereto between the City of Aventura and the University

of South Florida Board of Trustees for the University of South Florida s Center for

Urban Transportation Research

Section 2 The City Manager is authorized to do all things necessary to carry

out the aims of this Resolution

Section 3 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its

adoption

The foregoing Resolution was offered by Commissioner who moved its

adoption The motion was seconded by Commissioner and upon being put to a

vote the vote was as follows

Commissioner Enbar Cohen

Commissioner Teri Holzberg
Commissioner Billy Joel
Commissioner Michael Stern

Commissioner Luz Urbaez Weinberg
Vice Mayor Howard Weinberg
Mayor Susan Gottlieb



Resolution No 2014

Page 2

PASSED AND ADOPTED this
4th

day of March 2014

SUSAN GOTTLIEB MAYOR

ATTEST

TERESA M SOROKA MMC

CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

CITY ATTORNEY



CITY OF AVENTURA

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM

TO City Commission

FROM Eric M Soroka IC C

City Manager

BY Joanne Carr AICP

Community Developmen irector

DATE February 13 2014

SUBJECT Request of Pollo Tropical for Sign Variance

20403 Biscayne Boulevard 01 SV 14

March 4 2014 City Commission Meeting Agenda Item 6

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Commission approve the request for a second
wall sign measuring 23 36 square feet to be located on the west elevation of the
proposed Pollo Tropical building at 20403 Biscayne Boulevard in the Promenade
Shops Plaza

THE REQUEST

The applicant Corporate Property Services Inc is requesting variance from
Section 31 1910 2 a of the City Code to permit a second wall sign on a one
story freestanding restaurant building in the Promenade Shops Plaza at 20403
Biscayne Boulevard where one wall sign is permitted by Code See Exhibit 1

for Letter of Intent

BACKGROUND

OWNER OF PROPERTY Promventure Limited Partnership

LOCATION OF PROPERTY 20403 Biscayne Boulevard see Exhibit

2 for Location Map and Exhibit 3 for

Detail of Restaurant Location



LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ZONING

Subject property
Property to the North
Property to the South

Property to the East

Property to the West

EXISTING LAND USE

Subject property
Property to the North
Property to the South
Property to the East

Property to the West

Part of Tract A B The Promenade

Shops as recorded in Plat Book 133

Page 39 Public Records of Miami Dade

County

B2 Community Business District
OP Office Park District

RMF3 Multifamily Medium Density
Residential District

TC3 Town Center Neighborhood

District and CF Community Facilities
District

MO Medical Office District

Commercial Plaza

Office Park

Multifamily Residential
Aventura Turnberry Jewish Center and
Vacant Land

Commercial Plazas and Bank

FUTURE LAND USE According to the City of Aventura Comprehensive Plan
the following properties are currently designated as follows

Subject property Business and Office

Property to the North Business and Office

Property to the South Medium High Density Residential
Property to the East Business and Office

Property to the West Business and Office

The Site The subject site lies within the Promenade Shops Plaza on the east

side of Biscayne Boulevard The specific site is the former one story freestanding
Burger King restaurant building in the southwesterly portion of the plaza

The Project The applicant is proposing to demolish the existing one story
2972 square foot building and to construct a new one story 3505 square foot for
a Pollo Tropical restaurant with drive through facility new parking area and

landscaping Administrative site plan approval for the development was issued

on February 12 2014

The applicant has submitted a sign package for the new restaurant and is

requesting two wall signs one sign over the entrance door on the east elevation
of the building interior to the plaza and one on the west elevation of the building
facing Biscayne Boulevard

2



The sign package showing location and detail of the two requested wall signs is
attached as Exhibit 4

The new restaurant has 49 feet 6 inches of building frontage Our City s Sign
Code permits one channel letter or reverse channel letter wall sign measuring a
maximum of 49 5 square feet The applicant is proposing a 47 00 square foot
channel letter wall sign on the front east elevation of the building facing the
interior of the plaza and requests sign variance approval for a 23 36 square foot

channel letter wall sign on the rear west elevation of the building facing
Biscayne Boulevard The east elevation sign will provide direction to the

restaurant for traffic inside the plaza but is visible only from the interior of the
plaza The second sign is requested to provide direction for traffic on Biscayne

Boulevard

Citizen Comments As of the date of writing of this report the Community
Development Department has not received any written or verbal citizen

comments

ANALYSIS

Section 31 1910 2 a of the City Code regulates wall signs on retail buildings
One wall sign per building is permitted except two wall signs may be permitted
for corner or through locations This is not a corner or through location The

maximum size of the sign is one square foot for each one lineal foot of building
frontage This building has a frontage of 49 5 lineal feet therefore one wall sign
at 49 5 square feet is permitted by Code The applicant is requesting sign
variance approval for a second wall sign measuring 23 36 square feet

The criteria for approval of sign variances are set out in Section 31 1910 8 of
the City of Aventura Land Development Regulations as follows

The Sign Variance maintains the basic intent and purpose of these

regulations particularly as it affects the stability and appearance of the
City and provided that the variance will be otherwise compatible with the
surrounding land uses and would not be detrimental to the community No
showing of unnecessary hardship to the land is required

This request does maintain the basic intent and purpose of the City s sign
regulation It does preserve or enhance the unique character of the City it is
compatible with the surrounding land uses and it will properly index the
environment by providing direction to the restaurant for traffic on Biscayne
Boulevard

3



CORPORATE PROPERTY SERVICES INC
1 289 E NEWPORT CENTER DRIVE SUITE 1 13 DEERFIELD BEACH FLORIDA 38442

January 14 2014

Ms Joanne Carr

Community Development Director
City of Aventura
19200 West Country Club Drive
Aventura FL 33180

RE Letter of Intent

Polio Tropical

20403 Biscayne Boulevard

Aventura Florida

Dear Ms Carr

Pollo Tropical is proposing to demolish the existing 2 972 square foot Burger King restaurant with a drive thru and construct a new
3 505 square foot Pollo Tropical restaurant with a drive thru The site is currently zoned B 2 Community Business and has a
Commercial Future Land Use Designation The proposed use is consistent with permitted uses in the B 2 Zoning District and
compatible with the Commercial Future Land Use Designation The restaurant and drive thru use is consistent with the existing
commercial uses in the Promenade Shops and will provide a healthy dining option for the residents of Aventura The project will

provide safe onsite circulation and facilitate convenient access while reducing the current visual clutter The proposed architectural
building elevations will create an appealing development pattern which will improve the aesthetic quality and character of the
Biscayne Boulevard corridor in the City of Aventura The proposed site layout will provide a new ADA compliant pedestrian

connection path to the existing sidewalk adjacent to Biscayne Boulevard which will be surrounded by landscaping and located in
between the existing public sidewalk and the proposed buildings

The project will foster and preserve the public health safety comfort and welfare and aid in the harmonious orderly and progressive
development within the Biscayne Boulevard Corridor as well as the Promenade Shops and in accordance with the Growth
Management Plan

Pollo Tropical in order to facilitate the construction of the proposed restaurant is requesting a sign variance from Section 31
1910 2a to allow for an additional wall identification sign The justification for the request has been included with this submittal

The overall site will be greatly improved in terms of how it functions and visually appears from that which currently exists today and
will foster and preserve the public health safety comfort and welfare

Thank you for consideration of this application If you have any questions please call me

Sincerely

Craig McDonald
Agent for Pollo Tropical

Exhibit 1

01 SV 14

954 426 5144 FAX 954 570 0391

REGULATORY LAND USE CONSULTANT

CERTIFIED GENERAL CONTRACTOR
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APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE AFFIDAVIT

Pursuant to Seckon 31 71 b 2 i of the City of Aventura Land Development Code this Applicant Representative Affidavit is hereby made and
submitted The undersigned authorized representative of the individual or entity applying for the Development Permit which is identified in the accompanying
application and the owner of the property subject to the application if different hereby fists and identifies all persons representing the individual or entity
apptying for fhe Development Permit in connection with the appitcatton as follows

Name

1j

titr2 G ar ln

C Cir f J y r S

Relationship i e Attomeys Architects Landscape
Architects Engineers Lobbyists Etc

Surv t gl

Attach Additional Sheets If Necessary

NOTICE ANY STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATIONMADE BY ANY PERSON LISTED ON THE APPLrANT REPRESENTATIVE AFFIDAVIT
SHALL BE BINDING UPON THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY APPLYING FOR THE DEVELOPMEffr PERMIT AND THE OWNER OF
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY APPLICANTS AND AFFIANTS ARE ADVISED TO TIMELY SUPPLEMENT THIS AFFIDAVIT
PURSUANT TO SEC 31 71 B OF THE CITY S LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS IN THE CITY CODE IN THE EVENT
THAT PRIOR TO CONSIDERATION OF THE APPLICATION BY THE CITY BOARD OR COMMISSION THE INFORMATION
PROVIDED IN THE AFFIDAVIT BECOMES INCORRECT OR INCOMPLETE

WITNESS MY HAND THIS DAY OF

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF APPLICANT

By
w

atCName
a

n A t

Print

Title

Address

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF AMPA E 5ro A 6

200

OWNER

By

Name eC n l c

Print

Title

Address

Before me the undersigned authority personally appeared
kc Ot6 as the authorized representative of the

Applicant and or the owner of the prop subject to the application Who bei g duly swom did swear or affirm that he she
executed this Affidavit for the purposes stated therein and that it is rue and correct

AFFIAN

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME this13 day of gbrvar t 20041

I If IANE 0 CUIMARAES
MY COMMISSION EE057046

EXPIRES January 23 2015

407 Nl Oi 3 partdallotaryservice com

Notary P of Florida At Large

Printed ame of Notary li ies

My commission expires L LU



Jii BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP AFFIDAVIT

tar jFx 0

This Affidavit is made pursuant to Section 31 71 b 2 ii of the City of Aventura Land Development Code The undersigned Affiant hereby discloses that
mark with x applicable portions only

1 Affiant does not have a Business Relationship with any member of the City Commission or any City Advisory Board to which
the application will be presented

2 Affiant hereby discloses that it does have a Business Relationship with a member of the City Commission or a City Advisory
Board to which the application will be presented as follows

List name of Commissioner or Advisory Board Member who serves on the

List City Commission or City Advisory Board upon which member serves

The nature of the Business Relationship is as follows

i Member of City Commission or Board holds an ownership interest in excess of 1 of total assets or capital stock
of Applicant or Representative

ii Member of City Commission or Board is a partner co shareholder as to shares of a corporation which are not

listed on any national or regional stock exchange or joint venturer with the Applicant or Representative in any
business venture

iii The Applicant or Representative is a Client of a member of the City Commission or Board or a Client of another
professional working from the same office or for the same employer as the member of the City Commission or
Board

iv A City Commissioner or Board member is a Client of the Applicant or Representative

v The Applicant or Representative is a Customer of the member of the City Commission or Board or of his or her
employer and transacts more than 10 000 00 of the business of the member of the City Commission or Board or
his or her employer in a given calendar year

vi The member of the City Commission or Board is a Customer of the Applicant or Representative and transacts
more than 25 000 00 of the business of the Applicant or Representative in a given calendar year

WITNESS MY HAND THIS 7 DAY OF N 0VPMbe 2011 5

APPLICANT

By Signature

a Ch a1 L Print

Title itc r cal Print

WITNESS MY HAND THIS o17 DAY OF Moye nbce 2063

PROPERTY OWNER

B y Signature

N wiwc 4 4d fa iWal r
Title 1 o Print

The terms Business Relationship Client Customer Applicant Representative and Interested Person are defined in

Section 2 395 of the A ventura City Code



WITNESS MY HAND THIS 2 1 DAY OF N ovcm bcr 2043

REPRESENTATIVE Listed on Business Relationship Affidavit

BY wre Byly

Name rG a 1 1 C1o4Ant Name

Title c r cr Print Title

ilo Tro tGal

Signature

Print

Print

By Signature By Signature

Name Print Name Print

Print

By Signature

Title

Name Print

Title Print

By Signature

Print

Title Print

Title Print

By Signature

Title Print

Title Print

By Signature

Title Print

Title Print

NOTE 1 Use duplicate sheets if disclosure information for Representative varies

2 Applicants and Affiants are advised to timely supplement this Affidavit pursuant to Sec 31 71 b 2 iv of
the City s Land Development Regulations in the City Code in the event that prior to consideration of the
application by the City Board or Commission the information provided in the Affidavit becomes incorrect or
incomplete

Title Print

By Signature

Name Print

Title Print

By Signature

Title Print

Title Print

By Signature

Title Print

Title Print

By Signature

Title Print

Title Print

NOTE 1 Use duplicate sheets if disclosure information for Representative varies

2 Applicants and Affiants are advised to timely supplement this Affidavit pursuant to Sec 31 71 b 2 iv of
the City s Land Development Regulations in the City Code in the event that prior to consideration of the
application by the City Board or Commission the information provided in the Affidavit becomes incorrect or
incomplete



NOTARIZATION PROVISION
STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF Mt tfitf E Q rrJ v r4

Before me the undersigned authority personally appeared i the Affiant who being first by me duly sworn did swear or affirm that he she
executed this Affidavit for the purposes stated therein and that it is true and correc

THN

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me this day of KPe m 54 204

LILIANE D GUIMARAES
Nota ate of Florida At Lake

MY COMMISSION EE057046 ti ac

EXPIRES January 23 2015 Printed Name of Notary

407 398 0153 Flondallotaryservice com My commission expires 1 l2 5

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF MIAMI DADE

Before me the undersigned authority personally appeared the Affiant who being first by me duly sworn did swear or affirm that he she
executed this Affidavit for the purposes stated therein and that it is true and correct

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me this day of

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF MIAMI DADE

Before me the undersigned authority personally appeared
executed this Affidavit for the purposes stated therein and that it is true and correct

200

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me this day of 200

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF MIAMI DADE

Before me the undersigned authority personally appeared
executed this Affidavit for the purposes stated therein and that it is true and correct

AFFIANT

Notary Public State of Florida At Large

Printed Name of Notary
My commission expires

the Affiant who being first by me duly sworn did swear or affirm that he she

AFFIANT

Notary Public State of Florida At Large

Printed Name of Notary
My commission expires

the Affiant who being first by me duly sworn did swear or affirm that he she

AFFIANT

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me this day of 200

Notary Public State of Florida At Large

Printed Name of Notary
My commission expires



BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP AFFIDAVIT

This Affidawt is made porauent 10 Section 31 710 2j ii of the City of Averrtura Land Development Code The undesigmed Afba d he daeloaes that

mark TAY applicable ponlons only

1 Afban does not have a ftness Relationship w4h any memmer of the City Comrtission or any City Advisory Board to which
the appiraliim will be presented

f 12 Afbam hereby discloses that R on ft a Bueineea Rdeionship wil a member of the Gly Commission or a City Advisory
Board to a8id1 the appicelim will be presented as follows

List name of Commissioner or Advisory Board Member who serves an the
List City Commission or City Advisory Board upon which member serval

The rwdreof the Busirm Relatiorrstrip is as fdb m

HLi Member d City Commission or Board holds an ownership interest in excess of 1 of total assets or capes slod
of Appicari or Representative

ii Member of City Commission or Board is a Partner w4wrehalder as to shares d a corporation which are not
isled an any national or mi ionai stone achaVo or joint venturer wih the Appticsk or Represer6five in any
bush os va nkae

I iii The Appicad or Representative is a Client of a member of the City t waasion or Board or a Client of another
proiessfornal woriiq from the sane dim or for the same employer as ire merttber of the Ciy Commission of
Board

1 w A City Comraissaaer of Bond mwrber is a Client d the Appkamt or Representative

1 The Applicant or Representative is a Customer d the member of she City Coronissim or Board or of his or her
eaj rM and trwoM more than S10 00D 00 of the business dthe member of the City Commission or Board or
his or her employer in a given cdm dw year

1 vi The member of the City Comrdeaicn a Bond is a Cwjomer of We Appiant or wive and Irmnsacts
more tfear ZM0 00of the buaimes d the Applicant or Representative in a given calendar yaw

WITNESS lift NAND THIS DAY OF 2W

WITNESS MY HIND THIS DAY OF 200

LL u

By fie

Name AI

Tile Phio

The li m Mterm Rafaaons 7a WX t iesmtl aet pgatiC C irclefeser ahr re and Wverestw twOn are Ol4l w in
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By NOW
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By
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7de

NOTE 1 Use dWgcate Wwb it disckmn WOMMon for RepvsmWWe varies

2 Applicants and Afflawarc advised to iwcly suppicnm this Affidavit pursuant to Sec 31 71 bX2 iv of
ft City s Land DeveWpinent Replatiom in the City Code in the event that ww to consideration of the
application by the City Board or Commission tree inhwnadom providod in the Affidavit becomes kicon or

incomplete
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AFFTANT

SINOiiyl TO AND SUBSCRIBED before we Ns 4 dey of Tig c 4081 3

DENISE ASHLEY
MY CONIMSSION DD989424

EXPIRES June 24 2014

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF MtAM I
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STATE DF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF W10DADE
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STATE OF FLORIDA
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BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP AFFIDAVIT

Thin ffdsvnit is matde puraueat to Section 31 71 b1 2Ka of the City of Aventm Land Development Code The undeeigned Affiant hereby discloses that
mwk with 5n 40cahle pions only

X1 Af ant dm g have a lvness Retallons4 oath any member of the City Camrtissioa or any City Advisory Board to which
the appYcwm will be paweded

12 AffWK hereby discloses that it dm ft a Workless Relabordhpvilh a member of the City Commission or a City Advisory
Board to which the appicelm wB be preseft as follcwx

List name of Commtastorw or Advisory Board MetnDer ore serves on the

Nit City Commission or City AdAM Board upon which member serves

The nal reof the Business Ralatim is as fdbA

1 i Member of City Commission or Board holds an ownership interest in now of 1 of total assets or cat stock

of Aq v or Representative

ii Member of City Commission or Board is a partner co4wreholder as to shares of a corporaion which ere not
lisled on any aalional or mg W sbdn mccloge or lsnl venom with the Applicant or PAWesentalive in any
bwne verrhne

1 in The Appicant or Representative is a Client of a member of the City Comn Aion or Board or a Client of another
polessronat wxlrig from the an dice or for the same employer as the member of the Cdy Commission or
Board

I I iv A Qty CommiSSA er Of Board mernber ii a Client of the Applicant or Reprewtative

1 v The Applicant or Pepresantelive is a Cualomar d the member d the City Cornrtission or Board or of his or her
employer and I arrit cfc more than i1Qi M00 of the bushiness of ita member of the City Comrmissi n or Board or
hs or har employer in a given aierrdo year

1 vi The member d the City Corrosion a Board is a Cuslow d the Appicerrt or Representative and transacts
more than ti X0 00 of an business of the Applicant or Represerna6us in a given calendar year

HOTNESS MY HAND TH S 2 6 0Ay pF D e c mb e r Y 2013

WITNESS MY KWTHS 6 DAY OF Decembers 2013

By Sigrareurd

Name A iirl

Tom Piintl

i re terms a mess RetadorW l 7lyent 7 u m ggaicau fvmwm and waested Pew are die ow fn

Serebn 2 JZ of Anrerltaa City Code
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BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP AFFIDAVIT

This Al davit is made pareuent to Section 31 71 b 2 i of the Qty d Aveniura Land Development Code The undersigned Affiant hereby discloses that
mark wqh 7r applicable porim only

1 Mann does nd have a tAainess PAWorrshp vdh any member d the Ci y Commission or any City Advisory Board to which
the applicaft M71 be preseabd

112 Affant hereby discloses that ion Nve s uinese Relabift with a member d the Qty Commssion or a City Advisory
Board to which ft appicalan will be pressed as tog w

List name of Commissioner or Advsory Board Member who serves on the

list City Commissirn or Ciy Advisory Board upon which member serves

The nal sedthe Business Relationship is as follows

1 i Member d City Commission or Board holds an ownership interest in excess of 11 d total assets or capital stodr
of Applicant or ReDresernfalive

Iii Member of City Commission a Board is a partner co shareholder as to shares of a corporation which are not
listed on any national or regional stodn adtarge or joint ventures with the Applicant or Repmentaive in any
bush m venture

1 iii The Applicant or tiepresentaM is a Client d a member of the City Commission or Board or a Client of another
professional working from the same office or for the same employer as the member of the City Commission or
Bowel

1 iv A City Commissioner or Board member is a Client of the Applicant or Representative

j v The Applicant or Representative is a Customer of the member of the City Commission or Board or of his or her
employer and transacts roars than 10 01ADD of the business of ft member of the City Commission or Board or
his or her employer in a given calendar year

j vi The member of the Cky Commission or Board is a Cut lomer of the Applicant or Representative and Iarsacts
more Nran 525 000 01 of the businasa of the Appir W or Representative in a given calendar year

WITNESS HAAND THIS DAY OF 200

APPUCANT Z I

Name P1nYJ
Tille

j

lR rNJ

WITNESS MtY HAND THIS 6 OF ZC5

PROPERTY OWNER

By Sigvwe

Name l h
Tile Pfiw

The enris si m RefadovisV VOX riWWW AA04 nl RWffialatnie and WVMSted Person are oto W n
Section 395 ofthe Awa wa City Coale
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WITNESS MY HAND THIS DAY OF ECFM moo

REPRESENTONE I Wed an B ite66 Reiatienahip Atfidewl
1

SgnarrBe By lSgnarrre

Name ANfd yjZ c pruHl Name

Title 2 S prig Tale Prov

By 1Sigma 4

Name Rimy

Tihe Pier

By SO I

Name Prig

Title Prig

By S mmaL re

Tips fPror

Title Prier

BY Signiature

Tille prim

Tips Prior

By Sigmarure

Title Prieto

Title Prieto

BY lSwaa re

Name Prrr

Tile fto

By fSgAmwe

Name Prim1J

rdle Prior

Br f V a ure

Title Pmr

rdW PMV

By Sng wme

rate Pritr

rare

By Sgmrure

Tills Phr II

Title Prex

NOTE 1 Use dupticate sheets if discltrAn idarRi Lion for RepresetNative varies

2 Applicants and Affiants are advised to timely supplement this Affidavit pursuant to See 31 71 bN2 iv of
the City s Land Development ReRutuions in the City Code in the event that prior to consideration of the
application by the City Board or Commission the information provided in the AfirWavit becomes incorrect or
incomplete

13 1576
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RESOLUTION NO 2014

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA
FLORIDA APPROVING SIGN VARIANCE FOR POLLO TROPICAL

RESTAURANT ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 20403 BISCAYNE

BOULEVARD CITY OF AVENTURA PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS the property described herein is zoned B2 Community Business

District and

WHEREAS the Applicant Corporate Property Services Inc as agent for Pollo
Tropical through Application No 01 SV 14 has requested a sign variance to permit a

second wall sign measuring 23 36 square feet on the west elevation of a one story
freestanding building at 20403 Biscayne Boulevard in the Promenade Shops Plaza
where one wall sign is permitted by Code and

WHEREAS following proper notice the City Commission has held a public
hearing as provided by law and

WHEREAS the City Commission finds that the application for the second wall
sign meets the criteria of the applicable codes and ordinances to the extent the

application is granted herein and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE

CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA THAT

Section 1 Application No 01 SV 14 for Sign Variance to permit a second wall

sign measuring 23 36 square feet on the west elevation of the one story freestanding

building at 20403 Biscayne Boulevard City of Aventura legally described as Part Tract

A B according to the plat of The Promenade Shops as recorded in Plat Book 133

Page 39 of the Public Records of Miami Dade County Florida is hereby granted

exclusively to the Pollo Tropical restaurant in the Promenade Shops Plaza subject to

the condition that the sign must substantially comply with the plans submitted with

Application No 01 SV 14 as follows



Resolution No 2014
Page 2

Polio Tropical Site Plan and Sign Schedule Sheet 1 of 12 Federal Heath Sign
Company dated 9 30 2013
Polio Tropical Front and Rear Elevation Sheet 2 of 12 Federal Heath Sign
Company dated 9 30 2013
Polio Tropical Right and Left Elevation Sheet 3 of 12 Federal Heath Sign
Company dated 9 30 2013
Polio Tropical Letter Set Elevation Sheet 4 of 12 Federal Heath Sign

Company dated 9 30 2013
Polio Tropical Letter Set Elevation Sheet 5 of 12 Federal Heath Sign
Company dated 9 30 2013

Polio Tropical Wall Section Sheet 6 of 12 Federal Heath Sign Company dated
9 30 2013

Section 2 Issuance of this development order by the City of Aventura does not in

any way create any right on the part of an applicant to obtain a permit from a state or

federal agency and does not create any liability on the part of the City of Aventura for

issuance of the development order if the applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or

fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or undertakes actions that
result in a violation of state or federal law All applicable state and federal permits must

be obtained before commencement of the development This condition is included

pursuant to Section 166 033 Florida Statutes as amended

Section 3 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its
adoption

The foregoing Resolution was offered by Commissioner
who moved its adoption The motion was seconded by Commissioner
and upon being put to a vote the vote was as follows

Commissioner Enbar Cohen

Commissioner Teri Holzberg
Commissioner Billy Joel
Commissioner Michael Stern

Commissioner Luz Urbaez Weinberg
Vice Mayor Howard Weinberg
Mayor Susan Gottlieb



Resolution No 2014
Page 3

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th

day of March 2014

ATTEST

Teresa M Soroka MMC City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

CITY ATTORNEY

Susan Gottlieb Mayor

This Resolution was filed in the Office of the City Clerk this day of March 2014

CITY CLERK



CITY OF AVENTURA

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM

TO City Commission

FROM Eric M Soroka ICMA CM City Manager

BY Brian K Raducci Finance Director

DATE February 21 2014

SUBJECT Mid Year Ordinance Amending 2013 14 Budget
1St

Reading March 4 2014 City Commission Meeting Agenda Item
2nd

Reading April 1 2014 City Commission Meeting Agenda Item

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Commission approve the attached Ordinance amending
the 2013 14 budget The total amount of each fund s budget amendment is outlined
below

BACKGROUND

As you are aware the City normally amends the budget to recognize actual fund
balance amounts carried over based on the prior year s audit In addition budget

amounts are amended to re appropriate the balances in capital outlay projects which
were not 100 complete by the end of the prior fiscal year

The need to re appropriate unspent capital accounts and to recognize the actual fund
balances at September 30 2013 to the 2013 14 budget was also discussed in my
memorandum dated February

20th

which was distributed electronically to the

Commission along with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

GENERAL FUND 001 REVENUES EXPENDITURES 857 254

To recognize additional Carryover to fund the items described below

1 To re appropriate 848 759 worth of capital outlay projects which were not 100
complete by the end of the prior fiscal year as follows

a computer equipment 381 510
b equipment other 66 858
c street lighting improvements 400 391

2 To appropriate 30 000 for the commission of a piece of art this project was approved
at the February 4th commission meeting



3 To decrease Non Departmental Transfers by 21 505 in order to recognize
actual fund balances as explained under the two related debt service funds
found at the end of this memorandum based on the prior year s audit

POLICE EDUCATION FUND 110 REVENUES EXPENDITURES 5 484

To recognize and re appropriate the actual fund balance amount carried over based on
the prior year s audit

STREET MAINTENANCE FUND 120 REVENUES EXPENDITURES 1 293 315

To recognize additional Carryover to fund the two 2 items described below

To re appropriate 100 000 worth of Street Lighting Improvements e g Biscayne

Lighting Project Phase III which was not 100 complete by the end of the prior
fiscal year

2 To increase the Capital Reserve by 1 193 315 in order to recognize additional

fund balance amounts to be utilized to fund future capital improvement projects

911 FUND 180 REVENUES EXPENDITURES 63 148

To recognize and re appropriate the actual fund balance amount carried over based on
the prior year s audit

DEBT SERVICE FUND SERIES 2010 2011 230 REVENUES 0
Revenue Reclassification of 12 049 Net effect is 0

To recognize and re appropriate the actual fund balance amount carried over based on

the prior year s audit and to reduce the transfer from the General Fund respectively by
12 049 for a net effect of 0

DEBT SERVICE FUND SERIES 2012 Charter School Land 250 REVENUES 0

Revenue Reclassification of 9 456 Net effect is 0

To recognize and re appropriate the actual fund balance amount carried over based on

the prior year s audit and to reduce the transfer from the General Fund respectively by
9 456 for a net effect of 0

iA



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 392 REVENUES EXPENDITURES 160 824

1 To recognize and re appropriate the actual fund balance amount that existed at
end of the prior fiscal year that resulted from the collection of 160 824 worth of
impact fees 140 933 for Parks and 19 891 for Police and

2 To adjust the current fiscal year budget for the timing difference related to the
sale of City land on Biscayne Boulevard 1 M which was originally anticipated
to occur during FY 2012 13

If you should have any questions related to this memorandum please feel free to
contact the City Manager

BKR bkr

3



Exhibit A

FY 2013 14 Budget Amendments

GENERAL FUND 001
2013f14 2013 14

JECT ADOPTED AMENDED
DE CATEGORY BUDGET eUht IMT

Revenues

Non Revenue

3999000 Carryover 16 768 640 857 254 17 625 894
SUBTOTAL 16 768 640 857 254 17 625 894

Total Amendments Revenues 857 254

Expenditures

Capital Outlay Information Technology 8012 513
6401 Computer Equipment 5 000 227 400 217 500 444 900

SUBTOTAL 227 400 217 500 444 900

Capital Outlav Public Safetv 8020 521

6401 Computer Equipment 5 000 338 490 1 510 340 000
6402 Computer Equipment 5 000 265 882 72 500 338 382
6405 E911 Equipment 165 000 52 000 217 000

SUBTOTAL 769 372 126 010 895 382

Capital Outlay Community Development 8040 524
6402 Computer Equipment 5 000 4 000 90 000 94 000

SUBTOTAL 4 000 90 000 94 000

Capital Outlay Community Services 8050 539 541

6307 Street Lighting Improv 1 000 000 400 391 1 400 391
SUBTOTAL 1 000 000 400 391 1 400 391

Arts Cultural Center 8070 575

6410 Equipment 5 000

SUBTOTAL

Non Departmental 8090 590

6454 Art in Public Places

SUBTOTAL

Non Departmental Transfers 9001 581
9123 Transfer to 1999 Debt Service Fund 230

9125 Transfer to 2012 Debt Service Fund 250
SUBTOTAL

Total Amendments Expenditures

15 200 14 858 30 058
15 200 14 858 30 058

30 000 30 000

30 000 30 000

1 206 428 12 049 1 194 379

403 364 9 456 393 908

1 609 792 21 505 1 588 287

857 254

Page 1 of 3



Exhibit A

POLICE EDUCATION FUND 110
2013 14 2013114

CT ADOPTED AMENDED
E CATEGORY BUDGET AMOUNT

Revenues

Non Revenue

3999000 Carryover 4 000 5 484 9 484
SUBTOTAL 4 000 5 484 9 484

Total Amendments Revenues 5 484

Expenditures

Public Safety 2001 521

5450 Training 11 000 5 484 16 484
SUBTOTAL 11 000 5 484 16 484

Total Amendments Expenditures 5 484

TRANSPORTATION AND STREET MAINTENANCE FUND 120

revenues

Non Revenue

3999000 Carryover 293 302 1 293 315 1 586 617
SUBTOTAL 293 302 1 293 315 1 586 617

Total Amendments Revenues 1 293 315

Expenditures

Community Services 5001 541

6307 Street Lighting Improv
6999 Capital Reserve

SUBTOTAL

Total Amendments Expenditures

100 000 100 000

165 500 1 193 315 1 358 815

165 500 1 293 315 1 458 815

911 FUND 180
20131

ECT AD P1
kE CATEGORY BuQG

1 293 315

2013114

AMENDED

nues

Non Revenue

3999000 Carryover 40 900 63 148 104 048

SUBTOTAL 40 900 63 148 104 048

Total Amendments Revenues 63 148

Expenditures

Public Safety 2001 521

6999 Capital Reserve 63 148 63 148
SUBTOTAL 63 148 63 148

Total Amendments Expenditures 63 148

Page 2 of 3



Exhibit A

DEBT SERVICE FUND

SERIES 2010 2011 230
2013114 2013 14

OBJECT ADOPTED AMENDED
CODE CATEGORY BUDGET AMOUNT
Revenues

Non Revenue

3811001 Transfer from General Fund 1 206 428 12 049 1 194 379
3999000 Carryover 12 049 12 049

SUBTOTAL 1 206 428 1 206 428
Total Amendments Revenues

DEBT SERVICE FUND

SERIES 2012 CHARTER SCHOOL LAND ACQUISITION 250
2013114 2013114

OBJECT ADOPTED AMENDED
CODE CATEGORY BUDGET AMOUNT
Revenues

Non Revenue

3811001 Transfer from General Fund 403 364 9 456 393 908
3999000 Carryover 9 456 9 456

SUBTOTAL 403 364 403 364

Total Amendments Revenues

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 392

OBJECT

CODE CATEGORY

2013114

ADOPTED

BUDGET

2013 14

AMENDED
AMOUNT

2013114

REVISED

BUDGET
Revenues

Non Revenue

3644300 Sale of Land 1 000 000 1 000 000
3999000 Carryover Parks 1 000 000 859 067 140 933
3999000 Carryover Police 19 891 19 891

SUBTOTAL 1 000 000 160 824 1 160 824

Total Amendments Revenues 160 824

Expenditures

Public Safety 2001 521

6999 Capital Reserve 780 000 160 824 940 824
SUBTOTAL 780 000 160 824 940 824

Total Amendments Expenditures 160 824

Page 3 of 3



ORDINANCE NO 2014

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA AMENDING ORDINANCE
NO 2013 04 WHICH ORDINANCE ADOPTED A BUDGET
FOR THE 2013 2014 FISCAL YEAR BY REVISING THE
2013 2014 FISCAL YEAR OPERATING AND CAPITAL
BUDGET AS OUTLINED IN EXHIBIT A ATTACHED
HERETO AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO DO
ALL THINGS NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE AIMS OF
THIS ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE

WHEREAS upon the periodic review and analysis of current budgetary

commitments and obligations and based upon the projected needs and requirements

of the City and upon the recommendations of the City Manager and the concurrence of

the Finance Director as to Accounting Principles it is deemed necessary to adjust

amend and implement the 2013 2014 Operating and Capital Budget as set forth in

Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE

CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS

Section 1 The recitals contained in the preamble to this Ordinance are

incorporated by reference herein

Section 2 The City Commission hereby authorizes the amendment of

Ordinance No 2013 04 which Ordinance adopted a budget for the 2013 2014 fiscal

year by revising the 2013 2014 budget as set forth on the attached Exhibit A which

exhibits are deemed incorporated by reference as though set forth in full herein



Ordinance No 2014

Page 2

Section 3 The City Manager is hereby authorized to do all things necessary to

carry out the aims of this Ordinance

Section 4 Effective Date This Ordinance shall be effective immediately

upon adoption on second reading and shall be applicable retroactively from and after

October 1 2013

The foregoing Ordinance was offered by Commissioner who moved

its adoption on first reading This motion was seconded by Commissioner and

upon being put to a vote the vote was as follows

Commissioner Enbar Cohen

Commissioner Teri Holzberg
Commissioner Billy Joel
Commissioner Michael Stern

Commissioner Luz Urbaez Weinberg
Vice Mayor Howard Weinberg
Mayor Susan Gottlieb

The foregoing Ordinance was offered by Commissioner who moved its

adoption on second reading This motion was seconded by Commissioner and

upon being put to a vote the vote was as follows

Commissioner Enbar Cohen

Commissioner Teri Holzberg
Commissioner Billy Joel
Commissioner Michael Stern

Commissioner Howard Weinberg
Commissioner Luz Urbaez Weinberg
Mayor Susan Gottlieb

2



Ordinance No 2014
Page 3

PASSED AND ADOPTED on first reading this
4th

day of March 2014

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading this
1St

day of April 2014

TERESA M SOROKA MMC

CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

CITY ATTORNEY

3

SUSAN GOTTLIEB MAYOR



CITY OF AVENTURA

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM

TO City Commission

FROM Eric M Soroka

imirector
City Manager

BY Joanne Carr

AICommunityDev

DATE January 30 2014

SUBJECT Application to Amend Section 31 144 c 5 a of the Land Development
Regulations to add a provision for increased lot coverage for specific uses
01 LDR 14

February 4 2014 Local Planning Agency Agenda Item T
February 4 2014 City Commission Meeting Agenda Item Lp
March 4 2014 City Commission Meeting Agenda Item 0

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Commission approve the request for an amendment to
Section 31 144 Business Zoning Districts of the Land Development Regulations to add
to that section a provision for a maximum lot coverage of 45 of the total lot area for

parcels that include shopping centers provided that the shopping center buildings contain
more than 1 000 000 square feet of gross leasable area and do not exceed five stories in
height and provide a centralized multi modal transportation facility which is enclosed with a
parking structure

THE REQUEST

The owner of the Aventura Mall is proposing an expansion consisting of a three story
288 250 square foot addition to the mall structure and a seven level parking structure
The first level of the parking structure will contain a mass transit terminal which will
accommodate City County and other buses taxis and other private transit vehicles In
order to build the expansion and parking structure and to accommodate future

development on the Mall property the owner is requesting an amendment to the site
development criteria of the B2 zoning district to increase maximum lot coverage from 40
to 45 See Exhibit 1 for Letter of Intent



BACKGROUND

After construction of the last expansion of the Aventura Mall for the Nordstrom anchor and
retail approach wing the current lot coverage is 36 of the total lot area The applicant
advises that the current expansion proposal will increase lot coverage to 40 34 The

applicant further advises that other proposed future development may increase lot
coverage up to a maximum of 45

The B2 zoning district allows a maximum height of 12 stories or 120 feet Any expansion
of the Aventura Mall could maintain the 40 lot coverage maximum by building vertically
The increased lot coverage is requested to keep the low profile of the shopping center
buildings which are currently four stories at the highest and to allow for the construction
of a new parking structure that will contain a multi modal transportation facility

Generally lot coverage maximums are included in development codes to ensure that open
space is provided and also to ensure that proper drainage is provided and maintained
Section 31 144 c of the Code includes all buildings on site in lot coverage calculation
This includes the primary building and any accessory buildings such as parking
structures but does not include surface parking areas

In the case of an enclosed regional mall traditional outdoor open space would not be
used by the public in this type of commercial environment What is desirable for public

comfort in a regional mall are interior public plazas with seating areas to meet others or to
rest water features pedestrian corridors that can also function as recreational walking
areas and other public amenities such as art displays This was recognized by the City
Commission in 2005 through passage of Ordinance No 2005 15 which allows a minimum
of 15 open space for regional malls where up to 40 was required by Code at that time
provided that the aforementioned public amenities are in place The Aventura Mall is

complying with this open space amenity provision

The consulting engineer for the Aventura Mall has confirmed that an increase of 5 in

permitted lot coverage will not affect the ability to provide and maintain proper drainage
The drainage structures and retention ponds are currently functioning as intended Any
development application for expansion will be required to include drainage plans to
upgrade and improve as necessary any components of the drainage system Those
drainage plans will be reviewed by the City s Consultants as part of the site plan review
process

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT

The proposed amendment to the Community Business 132 District follows in underlined
text

Section 31 144 c Community Business 132 District

E



C Community Business B2 District This district is intended primarily to provide for
general commercial activity for a wide range of goods and services to the entire
community and sub region Such businesses generally require locations convenient for
both vehicular and pedestrian traffic and would be expected to have orientation toward
and direct access to arterial roadways

5 Site development standards

a Floor area ratio and lot coverage and minimum landscaped open space
requirements

1 For all buildings Any structure parking serving the primary use on the
site shall be incorporated into the building envelope and shall be compatibly
designed Such parking structure shall comply with all minimum setback and buffer
yard requirements

2 The floor area ratio shall be 0 40 at one story and shall be increased
by 0 11 for each additional story Structure parking shall not count as part of the
floor area but shall be counted in computing building height The total lot coverage
permitted for all buildings on the site shall not exceed 40 percent of the total lot
area except as provided in Subsection 4 below The floor area ratio shall not

exceed 2 0 for all buildings in this district in conformance with the comprehensive
plan

3 For shopping center buildings with other more than 1 000 000 square
feet of gross leasable area that provide public amenities including but not limited
to public plazas fountains or other water features seating areas and recreational
walking areas and that do not exceed five stories in height the minimum

landscaped open space shall be 15 percent of the total lot area Said open space
shall be extensively landscaped with grass trees and shrubbery in accordance with
a landscape plan to be approved by the City Manager The non leasable areas
within enclosed or non enclosed malls which are landscaped with grass trees

and or shrubbery water areas therein and areas therein with permanent art display
areas may be used as part of the required landscaped open space provided such
areas do not exceed ten percent of the required landscaped open space

4 For parcels that include one or more shopping center buildings the
maximum lot coverage shall not exceed 45 of the total lot area provided that

such shopping center buildings contain more than 1 000 000 square feet of gross

leasable area and do not exceed five stories in height and that the shopping center
building provides a centralized multi modal transportation facility which is enclosed

3



within a parking structure and which may be used by City transit providers County
transit providers any other governmental entities requesting use of the facility and
private transit providers

ANALYSIS

Staff provides the following analysis of the request using the standards for reviewing
proposed amendments to the text of the Land Development Regulations contained in

Section 31 77 of the City Code

1 The proposed amendment is legally required

The proposed amendment is legally required to implement the requested revision to
the Code

2 The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals and objectives of the

Comprehensive Plan

The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals and objectives of the

Comprehensive Plan The business and office land use designation is described in the

Future Land Use Element of the City s Comprehensive Plan This category provides
that the specific range and intensity of uses applicable in a particular Business and
Office property is dependent upon the particular land use design urban services

transportation environmental and social conditions on and around the subject

property including consideration of applicable goals objectives and policies of the
Plan The Transportation Goal in the Transportation Element of the City s
Comprehensive Plan includes the goal to provide a safe and efficient multimodal

transportation system to serve the needs of the City This proposed amendment is

consistent with both the language of the Business and Office future land use category
and with the Transportation Goal in that this particular property will be designed to
provide a multimodal transit facility that will function as part of an overall safe and
efficient transportation system within the City

3 The proposed amendment is consistent with the authority and purpose of the LDRs

The proposed amendment is consistent with the authority and purpose of the Land
Development Regulations The purpose of the LDRs is to implement further the

Comprehensive Plan of the City by establishing regulations procedures and standards
for review and approval of all development and uses of land and water in the City
Further the LDRs are adopted in order to foster and preserve public health safety and
welfare and to aid in the harmonious orderly and progressive development and
redevelopment of the City The proposed amendment is consistent with this purpose

The proposed amendment will aid in the harmonious orderly and progressive

redevelopment of the City

4 The proposed amendment furthers the orderly development of the City

12



The proposed amendment furthers the orderly development of the City for the reasons
provided in Paragraph 3 above

5 The proposed amendment improves the administration or execution of the
development process

The proposed amendment improves the administration or execution of the

development process in that it provides for regulation and a process by which to
approve development or redevelopment of a property within the Community Business
District

A



BGRCOW RADGLL FFERNAN DEZ
ZONINC3 LANE3 USE ANE EN IFRONMENTAL LAW

DIRECT LINE 305 377 6238
E MAIL mmarrero dbrzoninglaw com

VIA HAND DELIVERY AND E MAIL

January 16 2014 Exhibit 1

Ms Joanne Carr
01 LDR 14

Community Development Director

City of Aventura

19200 West Country Club Drive 4th Floor
Aventura Florida 33180

Re Land Development Code Amendment Regarding Lot Coverage in 132

Dear Joanne

This law firm represents Aventura Mall Venture and Turnberry
Associates Inc the Applicant with regard to an application to amend the

City of Aventura Land Development Code to permit additional lot coverage in
the 132 zoning district for shopping center buildings that provide a multi modal
transportation facility within their property

Proposed Expansion The Applicant is proposing to add additional floor
area to the existing mall at the northeast corner of the structure The proposal

will add 288 249 SF of additional floor area comprised mostly of small retail
shops Additionally there will be additional concourse and non retail related
areas These improvements to the Property will continue to enhance the
Aventura Mall and help continue making the City of Aventura one of the
preeminent destinations in South Florida It is important that the mall and its

stores continue to stay current and vibrant as the Mall hopes to continue its
recent successes The improvement will also include a multi modal

transportation facility

The Applicant requests an amendment to Section 31 144 c of the City
Code in order to provide for additional allowable lot coverage up to 45 for

shopping center buildings with more than 1 000 000 square feet of gross leasable
area that also provide a centralized multi modal transportation facility Section

SOUTHEAST FINANCIAL CENTER 200 SOUTH BISCAYNE BOULEVARD SUITE 850 MIAMI FLORIDA 33131
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31 155 c provides for the site development standards for properties in the 132

zoning district and would thus be the appropriate place for the amendment

Section 33 77 g of the City Code provides standards that staff and the
Citv Commission shall consider when reviewing proposed amendments to the
text of the Citv s Land Development Regulations the LDRs The Applicant s

request addresses each of the standards as follows

1 The proposed amendment is legally required

In order for the Aventura Mall to continue to improve as envisioned

pursuant to the submitted site plan application the proposed amendment

to the LDRs must be approved and is thus required

2 The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals and

objectives of the Comprehensive Plan

The proposed changes are consistent with the goals and objectives of the

Comprehensive Plan specifically the Business and Office designation

3 The proposed amendment is consistent with the authority and
purpose of the LDR

The proposed amendment is consistent with the authority and purpose of

the LDRs as described in Section 31 2 of the City Code

4 The proposed amendment furthers the orderly development of the
City

The proposed amendment certainly furthers the orderly development of
the City The proposed amendment will permit the continued

improvements to the Aventura Mall one of the City s most important
landmark properties and one of the most successful shopping centers in
the country Further the amendment will permit the development of a

multi modal transportation facility within the mall property which will
accommodate City County and other public and private transportation
Understanding that the mall generates a great deal of visitors from outside
of the City this improvement hopes to encourage more users to use public

transportation and alleviate traffic to the Citv Additionally the

improvement will certainly centralize much of the public transportation

and naturally provide traffic and

BCRCOW RADGLL FERNANDEZ
ZONING LAND USE ANA ENVIRONMENTAL LAW



Ms Joanne Carr

January 16 2014

Page 3

5 The proposed amendment improves the administration or execution
of the development process

This amendment itself does not have a direct effect on the administration
of the City s development process

For all the foregoing reasons the applicant respectfully requests your
department s favorable review and recommendation of this application Should
you have any questions comments or require additional information please do
not hesitate to phone my direct line at 305 377 6238

Sincerelv yours

1 is iael J Marrero

BGRCOW RADGLL FERNAN DEZ
ZONING LANG IJSE AND ENVIRONMENTAL LAW
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APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE AFFIDAVIT

Pursuant to Section 31 71 b 2 i of the City of Aveniiwa Land Development Code this Applicant Representative Affidavit is hereby made and
suixnilted The undef ned authorized representative of the individual or entity applying for the Development Permt which is identified in the accompanying
appl calion and the owner of the properly subject to the appiratton if different hereby lists and identifies all persons representing the individual or entity
applying for the Development Pernht in connection with the application as follows

Name

Ktckml

Relationship e Attorneys Architects Landscape
Architects Engineers Lobbyists Etc

j o f n

me

AUach Additional Sheets If Necessary

NOTICE ANY STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION MADE BY ANY PERSON LISTED ON THE APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE AFFIDAVIT
SHALL BE BINDING UPON THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY APPLYING FOR THE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AND THE OWNER OF
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY APPLICANTS AND AFFIANTS ARE ADVISED TO TIMELY SUPPLEMENT THIS AFFIDAVIT
PURSUANT TO SEC 31 71 B 1 IV OF THE CITY S LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS IN THE CITY CODE IN THE EVENT
THAT PRIOR TO CONSIDERATION OF THE APPLICATION BY THE CITY BOARD OR COMMISSION THE INFORMATION
PROVIDED IN THE AFFIDAVIT BECOMES INCORRECT OR INCOMPLETE

WITNESS MY HAND THIS DAY OF

AUTHORIZED RE PRESEWkTIVE OF APPLICANT

By
StgnalureJ

Name rre r p

Print

Tille A40 erne

Address

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF MIAMI DADE

200

OWNER

By

Narne n FFGA

V
T

Address 14450 WJsfi wn Yy Clu b Dr v

Before me the undersigned authority personally appeared l qfjr
Applicant and or the owner of the property subject to fne application who being first
executed this Affidavit for the purposes stated therein and that it Is true and rrecI

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME thAay of Z

noun Public sat of FIOna
P Ana Hernandez

C My Cgmnbsicr EE075919
OF w

Expire 041291201 s

IDr laor Q e iuia c 3N8

r as the authorized representative of the

duly spogl did swear or affirm that he she

AFFIANT

P
otary P c State of to At Large
n Name of Notary 1 r

y commission expires



BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP AFFIDAVIT

This Affidavit is made pursuant to Section 31 71 b 2 ii of the City of Avenlura Land Development Code The undersigned Affianl hereby discloses that
mark with x applicable portions only

Affani does not have a Business Relationship with any member of the City Commission or any City Advisory Board to which
the application will be presented

2 AffianI hereby discloses that it does have a Business Relaloonship with a member of the C ly Commission Ora City Advsory
Board to which the application w ll be presented as follows

List name of Commissioner or Advisory Board Member who serves on the

List City Commission or City Advisory Board upon which member serves

The nature of the Business Relationship is as follows

I Member of City Commission or Board holds an ownersNp interest in excess of 1 of total assets a capital stock
of Applicant or Represenlalive

J u Member of City Commission or Board is a partner co shareholder as to shares of a corporation which are not
sled on any naliona of regional stock exchange or joint venturer with the Applicant or Representative in any

business venture

j r The Applicant or Representative is a Client of a member of the City Commission or Board or a Ctient of another
professional working from the same office or for the same employer as the member of the City Comrrnssan or
Board

j iv A City Commissioner or Board member is a Client of the Applicant or Representative

1 v The Applicant or Representative is a Customer of the member of the Crty Commission or Board or of his or her
employer and transacts more than t0 000 00 of the brsmess of the member of the City Commission or Board or
his or her employer in a given calendar year

I vi The member of the City Corrunission or Board is a Customer of the Applicant a Representative and transacts
more than 25 000 00 of the business of the Applicant o Representative in a given calendar year

WITNESS MY HAND THIS DAY OF a J 20d 1

APPLICANT

BY Signature
Name G It K 4F r f a Dint
Title or Pono

WITNESS MY HAND THIS DAY OF 200

PROPERTY

By Srgnatti e
Name Print

Ttle rinc Piwt

The terms Busines Relationship Client Customer ApAJrcant Representative and Interested Person are deffried in
Section 2 395 of the entura City Code



rITNESS MY HAND THIS DAY OF J u n j r 20

REPRESENTATIVE Listed on Business Relabonshtp Affidavit

B r Sgnature By ISgnature

Ghlt
Name Pnn J Name Print

Title f v n Punt Tale Prml

By Signature By Signature

r
I I r 00Name J

nt Name Pant

Title Pont Title Print

By Signature By Signature

Name P int Name Pant

Title Print Title Pent

By Signature By Signature

Title Print T dle Print

Title Prue Title Print

6 y Signature By Signature

Tale Pnnt Title Print

TWe Print Title Pant

By Signature By Signature

Title Prurt Title Print

Title Print Title Print

NOTE 1 Use duplicate sheets if disclosure information for Representative varies

2 Applicants and Affiants are advised to timely supplement this Affidavit pursuant to Sec 31 7 1 b 2 iv of
the City s Land Development Regulations in the City Code in the event that prior to consideration of the
application by the City Board or Commission the information provided in the Affidavit becomcs incorrect or
incomplete



NOTARIZATION PROVISION
STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF MIAMI DADS

Before me the unde signed authority personally appeared rI1Eel a

the Arfian who being first by me duty sworn did swear or affirm that heshe
executed this AM W for the purposes slated therein and Ihal it is tn e and correct

AFFIANT

SWORN T e

Notary PuNle State of Florida
Ma Hernwndez
My Commistilm uolrs919 State of At Large

p R ExpkaI 0412612013

Printed Name of

My commission expires

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF MIAMI 0ADE

Before me the undersigned authority personally atipealeje typr ow a ni who y me dul orn did swear or affirm that heishe
executed this AffdM for the purposes stated therein and that it is true and correct

L T

S

RNo om

n u oO y
ate of Florida JJ
ez

EE075919 late of F Large
15

Pnnted Name d Nole

TE OF FLORIDA

JNTY OF MIAMI DADE

Belae rne the undersigned aulhonty personally appeared Ct e sin S0
exeaned Ltirs Affidavit for the purposes staled therein and that it is true aj cared

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED beVe me N 7
day of jlrl 1 20t l

CAROL ABRAMSON

9 Commission K DO 946451
Expires April 14 2014

f q Bated Thu Troy Fam I wmw 8043115r701e
er

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF MIAMI DADE

Before me the undersigned authonty personally appeared
executed ttus Affidavit for the purposes slated therein and that d is he and correct

My comm scion ex it 7 J

by me duly sworn did sworn or affirm that heishe

NotPubic State ofKlonda AI e

a i l M r I a t1 L

My
Name of Notary II Icommission expres T

the Aflarf who being first by me duly sworn dd swear or affirm that helshe

AFFIANT

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me this day of 200

Notary Public Stale o1 Florida At Large

Printed Name of Notary
My commission expires



ORDINANCE NO 2014

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA AMENDING
SECTION 31 144 BUSINESS ZONING DISTRICTS OF THE CITY S

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS BY AMENDING SECTION 31
144 C 5 A COMMUNITY BUSINESS 132 DISTRICT TO ALLOW
INCREASED LOT COVERAGE FOR SHOPPING CENTERS WITH

MORE THAN 1 000 000 SQUARE FEET OF GROSS LEASABLE AREA
WITH HEIGHT NOT GREATER THAN FIVE STORIES AND THAT
PROVIDE A CENTRALIZED MULTI MODAL TRANSPORTATION

FACILITY WHICH IS ENCLOSED WITHIN A PARKING STRUCTURE
AND WHICH MAY BE USED BY CITY TRANSIT PROVIDERS COUNTY
TRANSIT PROVIDERS ANY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES
REQUESTING USE OF THE FACILITY AND PRIVATE TRANSIT

PROVIDERS PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY PROVIDING FOR

INCLUSION IN THE CODE PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS the City Commission of the City of Aventura City Commission is

desirous of amending Section 31 144 Business Zoning Districts of Chapter 31 Land

Development Regulations of the Code of Ordinances City Code to include a

provision for a maximum lot coverage of 45 for parcels that include one or more

M
shopping center buildings with more than 1 000 000 square feet of leasable area and
that do not exceed five stories in height and that provide a centralized multi modal

transportation facility which is enclosed within a parking structure and which may be
used by City transit providers County transit providers any other governmental entities
requesting use of the facility and private transit providers and

WHEREAS the Business and Office future land use category applicable to the
proposed amendment provides that the specific range and intensity of uses
applicable in a particular Business and Office property is dependent upon the particular
land use design urban services transportation environmental and social conditions on

and around the subject property including consideration of applicable goals objectives
and policies of the Plan and the Transportation Goal in the Transportation Element

of the City s Comprehensive Plan is to provide a safe and efficient multimodal

transportation system to serve the needs of the City and

WHEREAS the City Commission finds that the proposed amendment to Section

31 144 of the City Code to provide increased lot coverage for large scale shopping
center buildings which provide a centralized multi modal transportation facility which is
enclosed within a parking structure is consistent with the applicable goals objectives
and policies of the City s Comprehensive Plan and
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Page 2

WHEREAS the City Commission has been designated as the Local Planning
Agency for the City pursuant to Section 163 3174 Florida Statutes and

WHEREAS the Local Planning Agency has reviewed the proposed amendment
during the required public hearing and has recommended approval to the City
Commission and

WHEREAS the City Commission has reviewed the proposed amendment and

finds that it is in the best interests of the public to amend Section 31 144 of Chapter 31
Land Development Regulations as set forth in this Ordinance and

WHEREAS the City Commission has held the required public hearings duly
noticed in accordance with law and

WHEREAS the City Commission has reviewed the action set forth in the
Ordinance and has determined that such action is consistent with the Comprehensive
Plan

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF AVENTURA FLORIDA THAT

Section 1 Recitals The foregoing whereas clauses are hereby ratified and
incorporated within this Ordinance

Section 2 City Code Amended That Section 31 144 Business Zoning
Districts of Article VII Use Regulations of Chapter 31 Land Development

Regulations of the City Code is hereby amended to read as follows

Sec 31 144 Business Districts

c Community Business B2 District This district is intended primarily to provide
for general commercial activity for a wide range of goods and services to the
entire community and sub region Such businesses generally require locations
convenient for both vehicular and pedestrian traffic and would be expected to

have orientation toward and direct access to arterial roadways

Underlined provisions constitute proposed additions to existing text Strikethrough provisions constitute proposed
deletions to existing text
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5 Site development standards

a Floor area ratio and lot coverage and minimum landscaped open

space requirements

1 For all buildings Any structure parking serving the primary use on

the site shall be incorporated into the building envelope and shall be compatibly
designed Such parking structure shall comply with all minimum setback and
buffer yard requirements

2 The floor area ratio shall be 0 40 at one story and shall be

increased by 0 11 for each additional story Structure parking shall not count as
part of the floor area but shall be counted in computing building height The total
lot coverage permitted for all buildings on the site shall not exceed 40 percent of

the total lot area except as provided in Subsection 4 below The floor area ratio

shall not exceed 2 0 for all buildings in this district in conformance with the

comprehensive plan

3 For shopping center buildings with ether more than 1 000 000
square feet of gross leasable area that provide public amenities including but not
limited to public plazas fountains or other water features seating areas and

recreational walking areas and that do not exceed five stories in height the
minimum landscaped open space shall be 15 percent of the total lot area Said

open space shall be extensively landscaped with grass trees and shrubbery in
accordance with a landscape plan to be approved by the City Manager The non
leasable areas within enclosed or non enclosed malls which are landscaped with

grass trees and or shrubbery water areas therein and areas therein with

permanent art display areas may be used as part of the required landscaped
open space provided such areas do not exceed ten percent of the required

landscaped open space

4 For parcels that include one or more shopping center buildings the

maximum lot coverage shall not exceed 45 of the total lot area provided that

such shopping center buildings contain more than 1 000 000 square feet of gross

leasable area and do not exceed five stories in height and that the shopping

center building provides a centralized multi modal transportation facility which is
enclosed within a parking structure and which may be used by City transit

providers County transit providers any other governmental entities requesting
use of the facility and private transit providers

Section 3 Severability The provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be

severable and if any section sentence clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for any

reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional such decision shall not affect the validity
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of the remaining sections sentences clauses and phrases of this Ordinance but they
shall remain in effect it being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand

notwithstanding the invalidity of any part

Section 4 Inclusion in the Code It is the intention of the City Commission

and it is hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be

made a part of the Code of the City of Aventura that the sections of this Ordinance may

be renumbered or re lettered to accomplish such intentions and that the word

Ordinance shall be changed to Section or other appropriate word

Section 5 Effective Date This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon

adoption on second reading

The foregoing Ordinance was offered by

adoption on first reading This motion was seconded by

upon being put to a vote was as follows

Commissioner Enbar Cohen

Commissioner Teri Holzberg
Commissioner Billy Joel
Commissioner Michael Stern

Commissioner Luz Urbaez Weinberg
Vice Mayor Howard Weinberg
Mayor Susan Gottlieb

who moved its

and

The foregoing Ordinance was offered by who moved its

adoption on second reading This motion was seconded by

and upon being put to a vote was as follows

Commissioner Enbar Cohen

Commissioner Teri Holzberg
Commissioner Billy Joel
Commissioner Michael Stern

Commissioner Luz Urbaez Weinberg
Vice Mayor Howard Weinberg
Mayor Susan Gottlieb
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PASSED on first reading this
4th

day of February 2014

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading this
4th

day of March 2014

SUSAN GOTTLIEB MAYOR

ATTEST

TERESA M SOROKA MMC

CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

CITY ATTORNEY

This Ordinance was filed in the Office of the City Clerk this day of 2014



CITY OF AVENTURA

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER

MEMORANDUM

TO City Commission

FROM Eric M Soroka ICMA CM City anag r

DATE January 22 2014

SUBJECT Ordinance Amending City Co a to egulate the Retail Sales of Dogs

And Cats

1 Reading February 4 2014 City Commission Meeting Agenda Item 18
2nd

Reading March 4 2014 City Commission Meeting Agenda Item

BACKGROUND

As per the direction of the City Commission at the January 2014 Workshop Meeting
attached is an Ordinance amending the City Code to regulate the retail sales of dogs
and cats The Ordinance was developed based on the Village of Pinecrest Ordinance

If you have any questions please feel free to contact me

EMS act

Attachment

CCO1830 14



CITY OF AVENTURA

OFFICE OF THE CITY COMMISSION

MEMORANDUM

TO City Commission

FROM Commissioner Enbar Cohen

DATE January 7 2013

SUBJECT Proposed Ordinance Regulating the Sale of Dogs and Cats

I would like to propose an Ordinance regulating the sale of dogs and cats in the City of
Aventura in order to promote community awareness of animal welfare and to
encourage pet consumers to adopt dogs and cats from shelters thereby saving the
animals lives and reducing the cost to the public of sheltering animals Attached is a
sample Ordinance drafted by the City of Pinecrest

Please place this item on the next Workshop Agenda

Thank you

EC tms



ORDINANCE NO 2014

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF AVENTURA

FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 1 GENERAL

PROVISIONS OF THE CITY CODE OF THE CITY OF

AVENTURA BY CREATING SECTION 1 17 RETAIL

SALE OF DOGS AND CATS PROVIDING FOR

SEVERABILITY PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE

CODE PROVIDING FOR PENALTY PROVIDING FOR

EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS existing state and federal laws regulate dog and cat breeders as
well as pet stores that sell dogs and cats including the Animal Welfare Act AWA 7

U S C Section 2131 et seq and

WHEREAS the Animal Welfare Act requires among other things the licensing
of certain breeders of dogs and cats and that these breeders maintain minimum health

safety and welfare standards for animals in their care with enforcement of these
requirements by the United States Department of Agriculture USDA and

WHEREAS according to The Humane Society of the United States American
consumers purchase dogs and cats from pet stores that the consumers believe to be

healthy and genetically sound but in reality the animals often face an array of health
problems including communicable diseases or genetic disorders that present

immediately after sale or that do not surface until several years later all of which lead to
costly veterinary bills and distress to consumers and

WHEREAS according to The Humane Society of the United States hundreds of
thousands of dogs and cats in the United States have been housed and bred at

substandard breeding facilities known as puppy mills or kitten factories that mass

produce animals for sale to the public and many of these animals are sold at retail in
pet stores and

WHEREAS according to USDA inspection reports some additional documented
problems found at puppy mills include 1 sanitation problems leading to infectious
disease 2 large numbers of animals overcrowded in cages 3 lack of proper

veterinary care for severe illnesses and injuries 4 lack of protection from harsh

weather conditions and 5 lack of adequate food and water and

WHEREAS while puppy mill puppies and kitten factory kittens are being sold
in pet stores many dogs and cats are euthanized by Miami Dade County s Animal
Control Services and
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WHEREAS across the country thousands of independent pet stores as well as
large chains operate profitably with a business model focused on the sale of pet
services and supplies and not on the sale of dogs and cats many of these stores
collaborate with local animal sheltering and rescue organizations to offer space and
support for showcasing adoptable homeless pets on their premises and

WHEREAS while the City Commission recognizes that not all dogs and cats
retailed in pet stores are products of inhumane breeding conditions and would not
classify every commercial breeder selling dogs or cats to pet stores as a puppy mill or
kitten factory it is the City Commission s belief that puppy mills and kitten factories

continue to exist in part because of public demand and the sale of dogs and cats in pet
stores and

WHEREAS the City Commission believes that eliminating the retail sale of dogs
and cats in pet stores in the City will promote community awareness of animal welfare
and in turn will foster a more humane environment as well as encourage pet
consumers to adopt dogs and cats from shelters thereby saving animals lives and
reducing the cost to the public of sheltering animals

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF AVENTURA AS FOLLOWS

Section 1 Findings That the forgoing Whereas clauses are hereby ratified
and incorporated as the legislative intent of this Ordinance

Section 2 City Code Amended That Chapter 1 General Provisions of the

City s Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by creating a new Section 1 17 to read
as follows

Section 1 17 Retail Sale of Dogs and Cats

La Definitions For purposes of this Section the following definitions
shall apply

Animal shelter means a public animal shelter or duly
incorporated nonprofit organization devoted to the rescue

care and adoption of stray abandoned or surrendered

animals and which does not breed animals

Cat means an animal of the Felidae family of the order
Carnivora

I Underlined text indicates proposed additions to the City Code stricken thF text indicates

proposed deletions from existing City Code text
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Dog means an animal of the Canidae family of the order
Carnivora

Pet store means a pet shop doq beauty parlor dog or pet
hospital or other retail establishment open to the public and
engaging in the business of selling pet supplies and or
services and or offering for sale and or selling animals at
retail

Pet store operator means a person who owns or operates
a pet store or both

Retail sale includes display offer for sale offer for

adoption barter auction give away or other transfer of any
cat or dog

Prohibition No pet store shall display sell deliver offer for sale
barter auction give away or otherwise transfer or dispose of dogs
or cats in the City on or after the effective date of this Section

c Exemptions This Section shall not apply to

A person or establishment that sells delivers offers for sale
barters auctions gives away or otherwise transfers or

disposes of only animals that were bred and reared on the
premises of the person or establishment

A publicly operated animal control facility or animal shelter

A private charitable nonprofit humane society or animal
rescue organization or

A publicly operated animal control agency nonprofit humane
society or nonprofit animal rescue organization that

operates out of or in connection with a pet store

Adoption of Shelter and Rescue Animals Nothing in this Section
shall prevent a pet store or its owner operator or employees from

providing space and appropriate care for animals owned by a

Publicly operated animal control agency nonprofit humane society
or nonprofit animal rescue agency and maintained at the pet store

for the purpose of adopting those animals to the public

Section 3 Severability That the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be

severable and if any section sentence clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for any
reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional such decision shall not affect the validity of
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the remaining sections sentences clauses and phrases of this Ordinance but they shall
remain in effect it being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand

notwithstanding the invalidity of any part

Section 4 Inclusion in the Code with Cross Reference That it is the intention

of the City Commission and it is hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall
become and made a part of the City Code of the City of Aventura that the sections of this
Ordinance may be renumbered or re lettered to accomplish such intentions that the word
Ordinance shall be changed to Section or other appropriate word and that a cross
reference to Section 1 17 shall be added to Sections 31 144 c 1 h and 31 144 c 1 t

Section 5 Penalty Any person who violates any provisions of this Ordinance
shall upon conviction be punished by a fine not to exceed 500 00 or imprisonment for a

term not to exceed 60 days or by both such fine and imprisonment Each day any
violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall continue shall constitute a separate
offense This Ordinance shall be subject to enforcement under the Local Government

Code Enforcement Act Chapter 162 F S as amended and Article V of Chapter 2 of the

City Code as amended Enforcement may also be by suit for declaratory injunctive or
other appropriate relief in a court of competent jurisdiction

Section 6 Effective Date That this Ordinance shall be effective upon passage

by the City Commission on second reading

The foregoing Ordinance was offered by who

moved its adoption on first reading This motion was seconded by
and upon being put to a vote the vote was as follows

Commissioner Enbar Cohen

Commissioner Teri Holzberg
Commissioner Billy Joel
Commissioner Michael Stern

Commissioner Luz Urbaez Weinberg
Vice Mayor Howard Weinberg
Mayor Susan Gottlieb

The foregoing Ordinance was offered by who

moved its adoption on second reading This motion was seconded by
and upon being put to a vote the vote was as follows

Commissioner Enbar Cohen

Commissioner Teri Holzberg
Commissioner Billy Joel
Commissioner Michael Stern

Commissioner Luz Urbaez Weinberg
Vice Mayor Howard Weinberg
Mayor Susan Gottlieb
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PASSED on first reading this
4th

day of February 2014

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading this
4th

day of March 2014

ATTEST

TERESA M SOROKA MMC

CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

CITY ATTORNEY

5

Susan Gottlieb Mayor
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